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Environmental Reporting Guidelines (issued in 2012 by the 
Ministry of the Environment)
ISO 26000 (Guidance on Social Responsibility)

This report covers the activities and results in FY2016 (April 1, 
2016–March 31, 2017). However, in some parts, it mentions 
activities and results after April 2017.

Cover Page Commentary

Reference Guidelines

Period Covered

NICHICON Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries
Scope

The cover visual describes the way in 
which the NICHICON Group’s two 
businesses, capacitor businesses and 
the Nichicon Energy Control System 
Technology (NECST), support people’s 
lives and contribute to society’s 
development in the automotive, home 
electronics, and environment and 
energy fields.
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“ko-do” (Think and Work) : NICHICON has coined this word (in the Japanese original), which refers to thinking and working.

Mission Statement
We dedicate ourselves to creating valued products that will contribute to a brighter future for society.

We strive to attain a better global environment, to live up to our ethical and social responsibilities and to 

diligently work to exceed the expectations of our customers, shareholders and employees.

With heart and soul we aim to maximize our corporate value by the way of “ko-do” (Think and Work).

Profile

The NICHICON Business Model

Message from the Chairman and the President

Performance

Special Feature

Review by Product Sector

Global Operations

Governance

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities

NICHICON and Society

NICHICON and the Environment

Business Risks

Financial Review

Consolidated Financial Statements

Independent Auditor’s Report

Consolidated Subsidiaries
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Explanation of the Appropriate Use of Performance 
Forecasts, and Other Items of Special Note
This report contains projections of operating results and other predictions 
about the future. These statements are made using currently available 
information and are based on rational judgments. However, these 
projections do not constitute a promise of future results. Actual 
performance may differ substantially from these projections and is 
subject to changes in economic conditions, risk of exchange rate 
fluctuations, the risk of price competition, the potential risk of overseas 
presence, changes in and reinforcement of legal restrictions and 
numerous other factors. The section entitled Business Risks (page 31) 
provides details about risks having the potential to affect the NICHICON 
Group’s management performance, stock price and financial conditions. 
However, factors having the potential to affect operating performance 
are not limited to those indicated in this section.
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Shifting our perspective from manufacturing to 
Koto-Zukuri (the creation of customer expectations) and from 
being a manufacturing business to being a “creation business”

Capacitors

NECST products™

The NICHICON Group got its start in 1950, manufacturing 
capacitors in Kusatsu, Shiga Prefecture, for the power reception 
and transformation facilities markets. Next, we rapidly expanded 
our fields of business, moving into capacitors for electric 
apparatus, home electronics and information and communications 
equipment, and electronic controls. We currently develop, 
manufacture and sell the capacitors and circuit products that are 
essential to a host of electrical and electronic equipment. We 
concentrate specifically on strengthening our operations in three 
core product lines: aluminum electrolytic capacitors, film 
capacitors and circuit products.
     In recent years, we have leveraged the proprietary 
technologies we have cultivated since our founding for the 
efficient management of electricity. We have concentrated on the 
energy and environment field, steadily introducing into the 
marketplace such new products as the “Home Power Station,” a 
household energy storage system; the “EVPower Station,” the 
world’s first vehicle-to-home (V2H) system; EV and PHV quick 
chargers; and public and industrial power storage systems.
     Overseas, we are expanding our sales network in such 

emerging markets as China and India, bolstering our 
manufacturing and technological development capabilities, 
promoting local procurement and working to lower cost of sales 
by boosting productivity.
     Going forward, based on the policy of “Top Notch 
Management” with first-class performance in every aspect of our 
business, including quality, cost, delivery, service and 
technology, we will continue to promote a management structure 
that integrates all operations from development through sales into 
two business headquarters: the Capacitor Business Headquarters 
and the NECST Business Headquarters. We are focusing in 
particular on four key markets: Energy, Environment (Ecology) 
& Medical equipment; Automotive & Railway-car related 
appliances; Household Electrical Appliances & Industrial 
Inverters; and Information & Communications equipment.
     Furthermore, we aim to make the switch from being a 
manufacturing business to being a creation business by shifting 
our perspective from manufacturing to Koto-Zukuri (the creation 
of customer expectations), satisfying and impressing our 
customers by proposing products that deliver value exceeding 
their expectations.

Film 
capacitors

Aluminum 
electrolytic 
capacitors

EVPower 
Station

EV and PHV 
Quick Charger

Public and 
industrial power 
storage 
systems

Home Power 
Station
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The NICHICON Group’s Value Creation Model

Mission Statement NICHICON Group

In recent years there has been increasing focus on problems 
facing society such as energy shortages and global warming, and 
new technologies like electric vehicles, automatic driving, IoT 
and AI have been evolving. The NICHICON Group is developing 
our Capacitor and NECST businesses around our core technologies 
for generating, storing and saving energy in order to solve these 

We dedicate ourselves 
to creating valued 
products that will 
contribute to a brighter 
future for society.
We strive to attain a 
better global 
environment, to live 
up to our ethical and 
social responsibilities 
and to diligently work 
to exceed the 
expectations of our 
customers, 
shareholders and 
employees. With 
heart and soul we 
aim to maximize 
our corporate value 
by the way of “ko-do” 
(Think and Work).
“ko-do” (Think and Work) : 
NICHICON has coined this word 
(in the Japanese original), which 
refers to thinking and working.

problems and create new markets.
We supply various products for a smart society to the automotive 
market, the power electronics market and others. Through these 
products, we will deliver comfort, safety and security, and energy 
savings to people’s lives and create new value.

Collaboration with Universities, Research Institutes and         Other Companies

×

Human resources development

Energy
Generating
Technology

Energy
Storing

Technology

Energy
Saving

Technology

Capacitor Business
Aluminum electrolytic capacitors /

Film capacitors

NECST Business
Circuit products / Applied equipment

Top Notch Management
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Value 
Provided

Comfort

Safety and
security

Energy savings

Clean energy

High 
performance 
products

Higher 
product 
reliability

Effective 
utilization 
of energy

Energy savings 
and reduced 
environmental 
impact

Collaboration with Universities, Research Institutes and         Other Companies

Human Capital 
(P26)

• Hiring of technical employees
• Training system for improving skills

Intellectual Capital 
 (PP08-10)

• Development of unique technologies
• Brand power in the capacitor �eld

Manufacturing Capital 
 (P18)

• Production equipment of domestic and
   overseas plants

Social and
Relationship Capital 
(PP09-10, 13-14)

• Industry-academia-government 
   collaboration
• Inter-industry collaboration

Important Non-financial Capital
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Shigeo Yoshida
Representative Director, 
President & CEO

Ippei Takeda
Representative Director and 
Chairman

We wish to offer everyone our sincerest gratitude for their unwavering and exceptional support.
The following explains our performance in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2017, as well as the measures in which we are 
currently engaged and our management policies going forward.

Contributing to the achievement of local production 
of energy for local consumption and the creation of 
a smart society.
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Management Policy and Business Strategy

Aluminum electrolytic
capacitors Film capacitors Circuit products

Capacitor Business Headquarters NICHICON Energy Control System
Technology (NECST) Business Headquarters

Top Notch Management
First-class performance in every aspect of our business, including quality, cost, delivery, service and technology

Growth Strategy Based on Structure of Two Business Headquarters
For each business headquarters, completing an organizational structure for

thoroughly integrated management from development through to sales

Three Core Product Lines and Targets
Aluminum electrolytic capacitors / Film capacitors / Circuit products

Expand sales in growth markets Create new markets

Communications equipment, which are diversifying with 
the development of new key technologies such as IoT 
and AI. As a result, net sales declined 8.6% year on year, 
to ¥100,402 million; operating income fell 36.8%, to 
¥3,019 million; and net income attributable to owners of 
the parent was ¥2,624 million, compared with a net loss 
of ¥591 million in the preceding fiscal year. 

By product category, sales of capacitors used in 
automotive electronics were robust, but sales of 
capacitors used in home appliances and inverters 
declined, resulting in lower sales overall. Sales of 
capacitors for electric apparatus and power utilities and 
applied systems and equipment fell as a result of falling 
capacitor sales despite robust sales of devices. Sales of 
circuit products also fell, primarily as a result of a 
decline in sales of various power supply products and 
household energy storage systems.

Overseas, in the Asian market sales of products for use 
in home appliances declined, lowering overseas sales 9.3% 
year on year, to ¥57,622 million. As a result, the overseas 

During the year ended March 31, 2017, the Japanese 
economy continued its gentle recovery, boosted by robust 
exports despite the appreciation of the yen. Looking at the 
situation overseas, there was a recovery in corporate 
earnings and steady consumer spending in the United 
States, leading to mild economic growth. In Europe, the 
economy was in a recovery phase as the impact of 
England’s decision to exit the European Union was 
limited. On the other hand, the pace of economic recovery 
in China and emerging countries continued to lack vigor.

Against this backdrop, the NICHICON Group 
continued to focus on the four important fields of Energy, 
Environment (Ecology) & Medical equipment, Automotive 
& Railway-car related appliances, Household Electrical 
Appliances & Industrial Inverters and Information & 

Demand for Automotive-Related Products 
and Devices for Electric Apparatuses and 
Power Utilities on the Rise

sales ratio decreased 0.5 percentage points, to 57.4%. The 
NICHICON Group will continue working to expand sales 
in overseas markets as it strives to achieve growth.

The NICHICON Group’s mission statement indicates its 
aims of “striving to attain a better global environment” 
and “contributing to a brighter future for society by 
creating valued products.” Based on this statement, we 
have set forth top-notch management, which aims for 
first-class performance in every aspect of our business, 
including quality, cost, delivery, service and technology, 
as our management policy in the aim of establishing a 
creation business that is capable of Koto-Zukuri (the 
creation of customer expectations), providing value that 
exceeds customer expectations and delivering joy and 
inspiration. We are developing our business based on the 
closely connected capacitor business and NECST 
business, which aims for stable supply of energy and 
protection of the global environment.

In the capacitor business, we have provided highly 
reliable products, from aluminum electrolytic capacitors 
for the automotive market to film capacitors for motor 
drives. Additionally, in the power electronics market, 
including products for renewable energy and factory 
automation equipment, we have provided solutions that 
showcase our sophisticated technological capabilities, 

such as industry-leading high voltage and miniature 
products for energy savings. Moreover, we carried out 
technical and development investments in anticipation of 
growth of new businesses and strategic investments to 
strengthen our core businesses. These efforts have 
established a foundation for the next stage of our growth, 
and we will continue to leverage the strengths of our 
Group as we promote our business.

In the NECST business, we have been expanding sales 
of household energy storage systems and V2H systems 
for the coming smart society and have delivered many 
quick chargers to promote the spread of EVs and public 
and industrial power storage systems for evacuation 
centers. In the middle of 2016, the household energy 
storage system subsidies ended, so sales decreased, but 
we expanded our lineup, introducing a 12 kWh hybrid 
energy storage system in July of the same year and an 
11.1 kWh outdoor system in October that is under 
¥300,000 per kWh to address a wide range of needs.

Additionally, in December of 2016, we opened the 
NICHICON Tokyo Building in Nihonbashi, Chuo-ku, 
Tokyo, consolidating the Tokyo Branch Office, POWER 
SUPPLY CENTER and group company YUTAKA 
ELECTRIC MFG., which had been in separate locations 
within Tokyo. With power supply and storage technology 
at the core, we are integrating planning, engineering and 
sales to implement Koto-Zukuri (the creation of customer 
expectations) for new value creation at an overwhelming 
pace. We have installed a power storage type solar 
generating system on the roof of our new building as well 
as quick chargers to charge EVs with power from solar 
power generation and V2H systems. These systems 
embody our initiatives based on the themes of the new 
era of power storage and EV solutions.

In regard to the market environment in the year ending 
March 31, 2018, the Japanese market is expected to 
exhibit a mild recovery, while overseas the United States 

economy is expected to be robust overall even as the 
situations in Europe and China remain uncertain. Under 
these circumstances, overall demand in the industry to 
which our Group belongs has bottomed out, so we expect 
things to turn around in the year ending March 31, 2018.

The capacitor business, which is the backbone of our 
Group, is in a mature market, but we hope to promote 
development of appealing products to cultivate new 
markets. For example, our policy is to supply aluminum 
electrolytic capacitors with newly developed 
oscillation-proof structures and conductive polymer 
hybrid aluminum electrolytic capacitors, a new product 
for which mass production was launched this spring, for 
onboard ECUs and switching power supplies, which are 
increasing in demand, and develop these into the main 
products of the capacitor business. Furthermore, we will 
expand our lineup of new products for automobiles and 
railway cars and increase the sales ratio of automotive & 
railway-car related appliances from the current 18% to 
more than 30%. We are working on technical proposals 
for the use of our newly developed large aluminum 
electrolytic capacitors in industrial equipment, robots 

and major household appliances.
In the NECST business, the year ending March 31, 2018 

is being considered the beginning of the new era of power 
storage, and we will tie it into growth of the clean energy 
market, including generating, storing and saving energy. 
The NICHICON Group was the first in the industry to 
bring household energy storage systems to the market, and 
as of the year ended March 31, 2017, we have achieved 
cumulative sales of 36,000 units. As one of the leading 
companies in the industry, we will expand our sales ahead 
of the transition from the early phase to the popularization 
phase in terms of demand. As for our products for EVs, we 
predict increasing demand for 50kW to 100kW quick 
chargers and will simultaneously achieve improved output 
and miniaturization. We will expand our lineup of V2H 
systems to a total of four models to increase sales.

In recent years, the populations of emerging countries 
have been growing, while the populations of advanced 
countries are shrinking as birthrates decline and the 

populations age. Additionally, various challenges such as 
energy and environmental problems are coming to the 
surface, and expectations are growing for new markets 
and fields like advanced medicine, IoT, AI and automatic 
driving. We will promptly get to work on solving these 
challenges faced by society and will develop and sell 
products that contribute to the fields of power electronics, 
energy and the environment, and advanced medicine to 
contribute to achieving local production of energy for 
local consumption and creating a smart society.

Household energy storage systems are one of the main 
products of our NECST business, and as a leading 
company, we will grow the business substantially in 
anticipation of the new era of energy storage where every 
family will have such a system. We will also capture 
demand for public and industrial power storage systems 
and smart agriculture from the penetration of business 
continuity planning (BCP) measures. Marked expansion 
is expected in the EV-related market with the sudden 
materialization of EV and PHV markets in China and 
other Asian countries and the distinct shift from diesel 
engines to EVs in the European market. The NICHICON 
Group will promote development and sales of unique new 
products that anticipate environmental demand, such as 

onboard chargers, which are key devices of EVs, quick 
chargers for infrastructure development and V2H systems 
that connect the coming EV society and smart houses.

Additionally, in the capacitor business, we will focus 
on growth fields such as automobile-related advanced 
driver assist systems (ADAS), automatic driving, fusion 
with IoT in the field of power electronics, and the robot 
market, which is expected to grow rapidly in the future.

In the academic research field, our ultra-high-precision 
accelerator power supply was adopted for use in the heart 
of SACLA, RIKEN’s X-ray Free Electron Laser (XFEL) 
facility, and in the smart medicine field, that technology 
is utilized in corpuscular ray cancer treatment systems. 
This technology will be rolled out into the next 
generation of products in the NECST business.

As for R&D, we have established a system that integrates 
everything from production to sales under the 

organizational structure that manages R&D resources 
centered on the Technology Center of the Capacitor 
Business Headquarters and the R&D Center of the 
NECST Business Headquarters to accelerate the 
development of new products.

Not only are we engaged in in-house development but 
we are also aggressively pursuing industry-academia- 
government and intra-industry collaborations. In October 
2016, we signed a comprehensive industry-academia 
collaborative agreement with the Institute of Industrial 
Science, the University of Tokyo, for the purpose of 
contributing to local production of energy for local 
consumption and the creation of a smart society, and 
we have since been actively promoting joint R&D. This 
agreement promotes development of next-generation 
devices that use revolutionary new technologies and 
methods that are not possible as an extension of existing 
technologies. We will develop next-generation NECST 
products like small, high-performance household energy 
storage systems and EV and PHV quick chargers that are 
equipped with power semiconductors working on higher 
frequencies than in the past to create new value. We have 
dispatched three engineers to work at the Institute of 
Industrial Science, the University of Tokyo, and they 
conduct joint research on electrode material and 
electrolytes for aluminum electrolytic capacitors and 
train human resources that will handle the launching of 
new businesses.

Additionally, under the NEDO (New Energy and 
Industrial Technology Development Organization) project, 
we are developing a power conversion module that uses 
SiC semiconductors jointly with Osaka University and 
RIKEN. Field tests equipping SACLA, RIKEN’s X-ray 
Free Electron Laser (XFEL) facility, with our accelerator 
power supply were successful. We have applied this 
technology in miniaturizing and increasing the 
functionality of V2H systems that supply electricity to 
houses from EVs and public and industrial power storage 
systems. We are promoting collaboration and interaction 
with Ritsumeikan University for research and education. 
Our engineers participate in Management of Technology 
(MOT) classes provided by Ritsumeikan University so that 
we can train engineers that understand management. We 
are also engaged in joint development of electrolytes for 
aluminum electrolytic capacitors with Mie University, and 
with Kyoto University, we are jointly developing a SiC 

power conversion module under the super cluster program 
of the Japan Science and Technology Agency (JST).

As for intra-industry collaborations, we are 
developing new household energy storage system 
products in collaboration with Kyocera, Sekisui 
Chemical and others, and in the EV field, we are 
bringing V2H systems to market jointly with major 
automobile manufacturers like Nissan Motor. We will 
continue to form alliances with companies that lead in 
their respective fields and create markets as we 
promote R&D that anticipates future trends to quickly 
meet customer demand.

In addition to these growth strategies, we will work on 
thorough compliance and will enhance our structure to 
ensure reliability of financial reporting while optimizing 
operations, promoting further development and 
implementation of internal control in the aim of 
improving corporate value.

The NICHICON Group recognizes returning profits to 
shareholders as an important management issue, and we 
are working to steadily increase dividends by maximizing 
corporate value and strengthening our business structure. 
The annual dividend for the year ended March 31, 2017 
was 21 yen per share.

We ask our stakeholders, including our shareholders 
and investors, for their ongoing support.

June 29, 2017

Performance in the Year Ended March 31, 2017
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Communications equipment, which are diversifying with 
the development of new key technologies such as IoT 
and AI. As a result, net sales declined 8.6% year on year, 
to ¥100,402 million; operating income fell 36.8%, to 
¥3,019 million; and net income attributable to owners of 
the parent was ¥2,624 million, compared with a net loss 
of ¥591 million in the preceding fiscal year. 

By product category, sales of capacitors used in 
automotive electronics were robust, but sales of 
capacitors used in home appliances and inverters 
declined, resulting in lower sales overall. Sales of 
capacitors for electric apparatus and power utilities and 
applied systems and equipment fell as a result of falling 
capacitor sales despite robust sales of devices. Sales of 
circuit products also fell, primarily as a result of a 
decline in sales of various power supply products and 
household energy storage systems.

Overseas, in the Asian market sales of products for use 
in home appliances declined, lowering overseas sales 9.3% 
year on year, to ¥57,622 million. As a result, the overseas 

During the year ended March 31, 2017, the Japanese 
economy continued its gentle recovery, boosted by robust 
exports despite the appreciation of the yen. Looking at the 
situation overseas, there was a recovery in corporate 
earnings and steady consumer spending in the United 
States, leading to mild economic growth. In Europe, the 
economy was in a recovery phase as the impact of 
England’s decision to exit the European Union was 
limited. On the other hand, the pace of economic recovery 
in China and emerging countries continued to lack vigor.

Against this backdrop, the NICHICON Group 
continued to focus on the four important fields of Energy, 
Environment (Ecology) & Medical equipment, Automotive 
& Railway-car related appliances, Household Electrical 
Appliances & Industrial Inverters and Information & 

Promoting the Capacitor and NECST 
Businesses in the Aim of Establishing 
a Creation Business

sales ratio decreased 0.5 percentage points, to 57.4%. The 
NICHICON Group will continue working to expand sales 
in overseas markets as it strives to achieve growth.

The NICHICON Group’s mission statement indicates its 
aims of “striving to attain a better global environment” 
and “contributing to a brighter future for society by 
creating valued products.” Based on this statement, we 
have set forth top-notch management, which aims for 
first-class performance in every aspect of our business, 
including quality, cost, delivery, service and technology, 
as our management policy in the aim of establishing a 
creation business that is capable of Koto-Zukuri (the 
creation of customer expectations), providing value that 
exceeds customer expectations and delivering joy and 
inspiration. We are developing our business based on the 
closely connected capacitor business and NECST 
business, which aims for stable supply of energy and 
protection of the global environment.

In the capacitor business, we have provided highly 
reliable products, from aluminum electrolytic capacitors 
for the automotive market to film capacitors for motor 
drives. Additionally, in the power electronics market, 
including products for renewable energy and factory 
automation equipment, we have provided solutions that 
showcase our sophisticated technological capabilities, 

such as industry-leading high voltage and miniature 
products for energy savings. Moreover, we carried out 
technical and development investments in anticipation of 
growth of new businesses and strategic investments to 
strengthen our core businesses. These efforts have 
established a foundation for the next stage of our growth, 
and we will continue to leverage the strengths of our 
Group as we promote our business.

In the NECST business, we have been expanding sales 
of household energy storage systems and V2H systems 
for the coming smart society and have delivered many 
quick chargers to promote the spread of EVs and public 
and industrial power storage systems for evacuation 
centers. In the middle of 2016, the household energy 
storage system subsidies ended, so sales decreased, but 
we expanded our lineup, introducing a 12 kWh hybrid 
energy storage system in July of the same year and an 
11.1 kWh outdoor system in October that is under 
¥300,000 per kWh to address a wide range of needs.

Additionally, in December of 2016, we opened the 
NICHICON Tokyo Building in Nihonbashi, Chuo-ku, 
Tokyo, consolidating the Tokyo Branch Office, POWER 
SUPPLY CENTER and group company YUTAKA 
ELECTRIC MFG., which had been in separate locations 
within Tokyo. With power supply and storage technology 
at the core, we are integrating planning, engineering and 
sales to implement Koto-Zukuri (the creation of customer 
expectations) for new value creation at an overwhelming 
pace. We have installed a power storage type solar 
generating system on the roof of our new building as well 
as quick chargers to charge EVs with power from solar 
power generation and V2H systems. These systems 
embody our initiatives based on the themes of the new 
era of power storage and EV solutions.

In regard to the market environment in the year ending 
March 31, 2018, the Japanese market is expected to 
exhibit a mild recovery, while overseas the United States 

economy is expected to be robust overall even as the 
situations in Europe and China remain uncertain. Under 
these circumstances, overall demand in the industry to 
which our Group belongs has bottomed out, so we expect 
things to turn around in the year ending March 31, 2018.

The capacitor business, which is the backbone of our 
Group, is in a mature market, but we hope to promote 
development of appealing products to cultivate new 
markets. For example, our policy is to supply aluminum 
electrolytic capacitors with newly developed 
oscillation-proof structures and conductive polymer 
hybrid aluminum electrolytic capacitors, a new product 
for which mass production was launched this spring, for 
onboard ECUs and switching power supplies, which are 
increasing in demand, and develop these into the main 
products of the capacitor business. Furthermore, we will 
expand our lineup of new products for automobiles and 
railway cars and increase the sales ratio of automotive & 
railway-car related appliances from the current 18% to 
more than 30%. We are working on technical proposals 
for the use of our newly developed large aluminum 
electrolytic capacitors in industrial equipment, robots 

and major household appliances.
In the NECST business, the year ending March 31, 2018 

is being considered the beginning of the new era of power 
storage, and we will tie it into growth of the clean energy 
market, including generating, storing and saving energy. 
The NICHICON Group was the first in the industry to 
bring household energy storage systems to the market, and 
as of the year ended March 31, 2017, we have achieved 
cumulative sales of 36,000 units. As one of the leading 
companies in the industry, we will expand our sales ahead 
of the transition from the early phase to the popularization 
phase in terms of demand. As for our products for EVs, we 
predict increasing demand for 50kW to 100kW quick 
chargers and will simultaneously achieve improved output 
and miniaturization. We will expand our lineup of V2H 
systems to a total of four models to increase sales.

In recent years, the populations of emerging countries 
have been growing, while the populations of advanced 
countries are shrinking as birthrates decline and the 

populations age. Additionally, various challenges such as 
energy and environmental problems are coming to the 
surface, and expectations are growing for new markets 
and fields like advanced medicine, IoT, AI and automatic 
driving. We will promptly get to work on solving these 
challenges faced by society and will develop and sell 
products that contribute to the fields of power electronics, 
energy and the environment, and advanced medicine to 
contribute to achieving local production of energy for 
local consumption and creating a smart society.

Household energy storage systems are one of the main 
products of our NECST business, and as a leading 
company, we will grow the business substantially in 
anticipation of the new era of energy storage where every 
family will have such a system. We will also capture 
demand for public and industrial power storage systems 
and smart agriculture from the penetration of business 
continuity planning (BCP) measures. Marked expansion 
is expected in the EV-related market with the sudden 
materialization of EV and PHV markets in China and 
other Asian countries and the distinct shift from diesel 
engines to EVs in the European market. The NICHICON 
Group will promote development and sales of unique new 
products that anticipate environmental demand, such as 

onboard chargers, which are key devices of EVs, quick 
chargers for infrastructure development and V2H systems 
that connect the coming EV society and smart houses.

Additionally, in the capacitor business, we will focus 
on growth fields such as automobile-related advanced 
driver assist systems (ADAS), automatic driving, fusion 
with IoT in the field of power electronics, and the robot 
market, which is expected to grow rapidly in the future.

In the academic research field, our ultra-high-precision 
accelerator power supply was adopted for use in the heart 
of SACLA, RIKEN’s X-ray Free Electron Laser (XFEL) 
facility, and in the smart medicine field, that technology 
is utilized in corpuscular ray cancer treatment systems. 
This technology will be rolled out into the next 
generation of products in the NECST business.

As for R&D, we have established a system that integrates 
everything from production to sales under the 

organizational structure that manages R&D resources 
centered on the Technology Center of the Capacitor 
Business Headquarters and the R&D Center of the 
NECST Business Headquarters to accelerate the 
development of new products.

Not only are we engaged in in-house development but 
we are also aggressively pursuing industry-academia- 
government and intra-industry collaborations. In October 
2016, we signed a comprehensive industry-academia 
collaborative agreement with the Institute of Industrial 
Science, the University of Tokyo, for the purpose of 
contributing to local production of energy for local 
consumption and the creation of a smart society, and 
we have since been actively promoting joint R&D. This 
agreement promotes development of next-generation 
devices that use revolutionary new technologies and 
methods that are not possible as an extension of existing 
technologies. We will develop next-generation NECST 
products like small, high-performance household energy 
storage systems and EV and PHV quick chargers that are 
equipped with power semiconductors working on higher 
frequencies than in the past to create new value. We have 
dispatched three engineers to work at the Institute of 
Industrial Science, the University of Tokyo, and they 
conduct joint research on electrode material and 
electrolytes for aluminum electrolytic capacitors and 
train human resources that will handle the launching of 
new businesses.

Additionally, under the NEDO (New Energy and 
Industrial Technology Development Organization) project, 
we are developing a power conversion module that uses 
SiC semiconductors jointly with Osaka University and 
RIKEN. Field tests equipping SACLA, RIKEN’s X-ray 
Free Electron Laser (XFEL) facility, with our accelerator 
power supply were successful. We have applied this 
technology in miniaturizing and increasing the 
functionality of V2H systems that supply electricity to 
houses from EVs and public and industrial power storage 
systems. We are promoting collaboration and interaction 
with Ritsumeikan University for research and education. 
Our engineers participate in Management of Technology 
(MOT) classes provided by Ritsumeikan University so that 
we can train engineers that understand management. We 
are also engaged in joint development of electrolytes for 
aluminum electrolytic capacitors with Mie University, and 
with Kyoto University, we are jointly developing a SiC 

power conversion module under the super cluster program 
of the Japan Science and Technology Agency (JST).

As for intra-industry collaborations, we are 
developing new household energy storage system 
products in collaboration with Kyocera, Sekisui 
Chemical and others, and in the EV field, we are 
bringing V2H systems to market jointly with major 
automobile manufacturers like Nissan Motor. We will 
continue to form alliances with companies that lead in 
their respective fields and create markets as we 
promote R&D that anticipates future trends to quickly 
meet customer demand.

In addition to these growth strategies, we will work on 
thorough compliance and will enhance our structure to 
ensure reliability of financial reporting while optimizing 
operations, promoting further development and 
implementation of internal control in the aim of 
improving corporate value.

The NICHICON Group recognizes returning profits to 
shareholders as an important management issue, and we 
are working to steadily increase dividends by maximizing 
corporate value and strengthening our business structure. 
The annual dividend for the year ended March 31, 2017 
was 21 yen per share.

We ask our stakeholders, including our shareholders 
and investors, for their ongoing support.

June 29, 2017

Focusing on Growth Markets in 
the Capacitor Business; Cultivating 
New Markets in the NECST Business with 
the Dawn of a New Era of Power Storage

Initiatives during and after the Year Ending 
March 31, 2018
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Capacitor Business

NECST Business

Communications equipment, which are diversifying with 
the development of new key technologies such as IoT 
and AI. As a result, net sales declined 8.6% year on year, 
to ¥100,402 million; operating income fell 36.8%, to 
¥3,019 million; and net income attributable to owners of 
the parent was ¥2,624 million, compared with a net loss 
of ¥591 million in the preceding fiscal year. 

By product category, sales of capacitors used in 
automotive electronics were robust, but sales of 
capacitors used in home appliances and inverters 
declined, resulting in lower sales overall. Sales of 
capacitors for electric apparatus and power utilities and 
applied systems and equipment fell as a result of falling 
capacitor sales despite robust sales of devices. Sales of 
circuit products also fell, primarily as a result of a 
decline in sales of various power supply products and 
household energy storage systems.

Overseas, in the Asian market sales of products for use 
in home appliances declined, lowering overseas sales 9.3% 
year on year, to ¥57,622 million. As a result, the overseas 

During the year ended March 31, 2017, the Japanese 
economy continued its gentle recovery, boosted by robust 
exports despite the appreciation of the yen. Looking at the 
situation overseas, there was a recovery in corporate 
earnings and steady consumer spending in the United 
States, leading to mild economic growth. In Europe, the 
economy was in a recovery phase as the impact of 
England’s decision to exit the European Union was 
limited. On the other hand, the pace of economic recovery 
in China and emerging countries continued to lack vigor.

Against this backdrop, the NICHICON Group 
continued to focus on the four important fields of Energy, 
Environment (Ecology) & Medical equipment, Automotive 
& Railway-car related appliances, Household Electrical 
Appliances & Industrial Inverters and Information & 

sales ratio decreased 0.5 percentage points, to 57.4%. The 
NICHICON Group will continue working to expand sales 
in overseas markets as it strives to achieve growth.

The NICHICON Group’s mission statement indicates its 
aims of “striving to attain a better global environment” 
and “contributing to a brighter future for society by 
creating valued products.” Based on this statement, we 
have set forth top-notch management, which aims for 
first-class performance in every aspect of our business, 
including quality, cost, delivery, service and technology, 
as our management policy in the aim of establishing a 
creation business that is capable of Koto-Zukuri (the 
creation of customer expectations), providing value that 
exceeds customer expectations and delivering joy and 
inspiration. We are developing our business based on the 
closely connected capacitor business and NECST 
business, which aims for stable supply of energy and 
protection of the global environment.

In the capacitor business, we have provided highly 
reliable products, from aluminum electrolytic capacitors 
for the automotive market to film capacitors for motor 
drives. Additionally, in the power electronics market, 
including products for renewable energy and factory 
automation equipment, we have provided solutions that 
showcase our sophisticated technological capabilities, 

such as industry-leading high voltage and miniature 
products for energy savings. Moreover, we carried out 
technical and development investments in anticipation of 
growth of new businesses and strategic investments to 
strengthen our core businesses. These efforts have 
established a foundation for the next stage of our growth, 
and we will continue to leverage the strengths of our 
Group as we promote our business.

In the NECST business, we have been expanding sales 
of household energy storage systems and V2H systems 
for the coming smart society and have delivered many 
quick chargers to promote the spread of EVs and public 
and industrial power storage systems for evacuation 
centers. In the middle of 2016, the household energy 
storage system subsidies ended, so sales decreased, but 
we expanded our lineup, introducing a 12 kWh hybrid 
energy storage system in July of the same year and an 
11.1 kWh outdoor system in October that is under 
¥300,000 per kWh to address a wide range of needs.

Additionally, in December of 2016, we opened the 
NICHICON Tokyo Building in Nihonbashi, Chuo-ku, 
Tokyo, consolidating the Tokyo Branch Office, POWER 
SUPPLY CENTER and group company YUTAKA 
ELECTRIC MFG., which had been in separate locations 
within Tokyo. With power supply and storage technology 
at the core, we are integrating planning, engineering and 
sales to implement Koto-Zukuri (the creation of customer 
expectations) for new value creation at an overwhelming 
pace. We have installed a power storage type solar 
generating system on the roof of our new building as well 
as quick chargers to charge EVs with power from solar 
power generation and V2H systems. These systems 
embody our initiatives based on the themes of the new 
era of power storage and EV solutions.

In regard to the market environment in the year ending 
March 31, 2018, the Japanese market is expected to 
exhibit a mild recovery, while overseas the United States 

Gearing Up for a New Stage in Which 
Various Key Technologies Are Linked

economy is expected to be robust overall even as the 
situations in Europe and China remain uncertain. Under 
these circumstances, overall demand in the industry to 
which our Group belongs has bottomed out, so we expect 
things to turn around in the year ending March 31, 2018.

The capacitor business, which is the backbone of our 
Group, is in a mature market, but we hope to promote 
development of appealing products to cultivate new 
markets. For example, our policy is to supply aluminum 
electrolytic capacitors with newly developed 
oscillation-proof structures and conductive polymer 
hybrid aluminum electrolytic capacitors, a new product 
for which mass production was launched this spring, for 
onboard ECUs and switching power supplies, which are 
increasing in demand, and develop these into the main 
products of the capacitor business. Furthermore, we will 
expand our lineup of new products for automobiles and 
railway cars and increase the sales ratio of automotive & 
railway-car related appliances from the current 18% to 
more than 30%. We are working on technical proposals 
for the use of our newly developed large aluminum 
electrolytic capacitors in industrial equipment, robots 

and major household appliances.
In the NECST business, the year ending March 31, 2018 

is being considered the beginning of the new era of power 
storage, and we will tie it into growth of the clean energy 
market, including generating, storing and saving energy. 
The NICHICON Group was the first in the industry to 
bring household energy storage systems to the market, and 
as of the year ended March 31, 2017, we have achieved 
cumulative sales of 36,000 units. As one of the leading 
companies in the industry, we will expand our sales ahead 
of the transition from the early phase to the popularization 
phase in terms of demand. As for our products for EVs, we 
predict increasing demand for 50kW to 100kW quick 
chargers and will simultaneously achieve improved output 
and miniaturization. We will expand our lineup of V2H 
systems to a total of four models to increase sales.

In recent years, the populations of emerging countries 
have been growing, while the populations of advanced 
countries are shrinking as birthrates decline and the 

populations age. Additionally, various challenges such as 
energy and environmental problems are coming to the 
surface, and expectations are growing for new markets 
and fields like advanced medicine, IoT, AI and automatic 
driving. We will promptly get to work on solving these 
challenges faced by society and will develop and sell 
products that contribute to the fields of power electronics, 
energy and the environment, and advanced medicine to 
contribute to achieving local production of energy for 
local consumption and creating a smart society.

Household energy storage systems are one of the main 
products of our NECST business, and as a leading 
company, we will grow the business substantially in 
anticipation of the new era of energy storage where every 
family will have such a system. We will also capture 
demand for public and industrial power storage systems 
and smart agriculture from the penetration of business 
continuity planning (BCP) measures. Marked expansion 
is expected in the EV-related market with the sudden 
materialization of EV and PHV markets in China and 
other Asian countries and the distinct shift from diesel 
engines to EVs in the European market. The NICHICON 
Group will promote development and sales of unique new 
products that anticipate environmental demand, such as 

onboard chargers, which are key devices of EVs, quick 
chargers for infrastructure development and V2H systems 
that connect the coming EV society and smart houses.

Additionally, in the capacitor business, we will focus 
on growth fields such as automobile-related advanced 
driver assist systems (ADAS), automatic driving, fusion 
with IoT in the field of power electronics, and the robot 
market, which is expected to grow rapidly in the future.

In the academic research field, our ultra-high-precision 
accelerator power supply was adopted for use in the heart 
of SACLA, RIKEN’s X-ray Free Electron Laser (XFEL) 
facility, and in the smart medicine field, that technology 
is utilized in corpuscular ray cancer treatment systems. 
This technology will be rolled out into the next 
generation of products in the NECST business.

As for R&D, we have established a system that integrates 
everything from production to sales under the 

organizational structure that manages R&D resources 
centered on the Technology Center of the Capacitor 
Business Headquarters and the R&D Center of the 
NECST Business Headquarters to accelerate the 
development of new products.

Not only are we engaged in in-house development but 
we are also aggressively pursuing industry-academia- 
government and intra-industry collaborations. In October 
2016, we signed a comprehensive industry-academia 
collaborative agreement with the Institute of Industrial 
Science, the University of Tokyo, for the purpose of 
contributing to local production of energy for local 
consumption and the creation of a smart society, and 
we have since been actively promoting joint R&D. This 
agreement promotes development of next-generation 
devices that use revolutionary new technologies and 
methods that are not possible as an extension of existing 
technologies. We will develop next-generation NECST 
products like small, high-performance household energy 
storage systems and EV and PHV quick chargers that are 
equipped with power semiconductors working on higher 
frequencies than in the past to create new value. We have 
dispatched three engineers to work at the Institute of 
Industrial Science, the University of Tokyo, and they 
conduct joint research on electrode material and 
electrolytes for aluminum electrolytic capacitors and 
train human resources that will handle the launching of 
new businesses.

Additionally, under the NEDO (New Energy and 
Industrial Technology Development Organization) project, 
we are developing a power conversion module that uses 
SiC semiconductors jointly with Osaka University and 
RIKEN. Field tests equipping SACLA, RIKEN’s X-ray 
Free Electron Laser (XFEL) facility, with our accelerator 
power supply were successful. We have applied this 
technology in miniaturizing and increasing the 
functionality of V2H systems that supply electricity to 
houses from EVs and public and industrial power storage 
systems. We are promoting collaboration and interaction 
with Ritsumeikan University for research and education. 
Our engineers participate in Management of Technology 
(MOT) classes provided by Ritsumeikan University so that 
we can train engineers that understand management. We 
are also engaged in joint development of electrolytes for 
aluminum electrolytic capacitors with Mie University, and 
with Kyoto University, we are jointly developing a SiC 

power conversion module under the super cluster program 
of the Japan Science and Technology Agency (JST).

As for intra-industry collaborations, we are 
developing new household energy storage system 
products in collaboration with Kyocera, Sekisui 
Chemical and others, and in the EV field, we are 
bringing V2H systems to market jointly with major 
automobile manufacturers like Nissan Motor. We will 
continue to form alliances with companies that lead in 
their respective fields and create markets as we 
promote R&D that anticipates future trends to quickly 
meet customer demand.

In addition to these growth strategies, we will work on 
thorough compliance and will enhance our structure to 
ensure reliability of financial reporting while optimizing 
operations, promoting further development and 
implementation of internal control in the aim of 
improving corporate value.

The NICHICON Group recognizes returning profits to 
shareholders as an important management issue, and we 
are working to steadily increase dividends by maximizing 
corporate value and strengthening our business structure. 
The annual dividend for the year ended March 31, 2017 
was 21 yen per share.

We ask our stakeholders, including our shareholders 
and investors, for their ongoing support.

June 29, 2017

Priority Initiatives in the Year Ending March 31, 2018

Focus on growth �elds of 
automobiles and industrial 
equipment

Product development and 
introduction of new technologies 
ahead of new era of power 
storage and EV popularization 
phase

[Automobiles]

• Oscillation-proof structure   • High temperature support

• Low ESR support

• Conductive polymer hybrid aluminum electrolytic capacitors

• EV/HV �lm capacitors

[Industrial Equipment]

• Smallest size in industry

• Highest withstand voltage in industry

• Permissible abnormal voltage   • Longer life

[Power Storage Systems]

• Hybrid model (12kWh) for local production 
   for local consumption

• Single-function model (11.1kWh) 
   with superior cost performance

[EV-related]

• Power Mover portable power feeder

• Advanced model V2H system

• 10-50kW quick chargers

Business Strategy Key Products/Technologies
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Communications equipment, which are diversifying with 
the development of new key technologies such as IoT 
and AI. As a result, net sales declined 8.6% year on year, 
to ¥100,402 million; operating income fell 36.8%, to 
¥3,019 million; and net income attributable to owners of 
the parent was ¥2,624 million, compared with a net loss 
of ¥591 million in the preceding fiscal year. 

By product category, sales of capacitors used in 
automotive electronics were robust, but sales of 
capacitors used in home appliances and inverters 
declined, resulting in lower sales overall. Sales of 
capacitors for electric apparatus and power utilities and 
applied systems and equipment fell as a result of falling 
capacitor sales despite robust sales of devices. Sales of 
circuit products also fell, primarily as a result of a 
decline in sales of various power supply products and 
household energy storage systems.

Overseas, in the Asian market sales of products for use 
in home appliances declined, lowering overseas sales 9.3% 
year on year, to ¥57,622 million. As a result, the overseas 

During the year ended March 31, 2017, the Japanese 
economy continued its gentle recovery, boosted by robust 
exports despite the appreciation of the yen. Looking at the 
situation overseas, there was a recovery in corporate 
earnings and steady consumer spending in the United 
States, leading to mild economic growth. In Europe, the 
economy was in a recovery phase as the impact of 
England’s decision to exit the European Union was 
limited. On the other hand, the pace of economic recovery 
in China and emerging countries continued to lack vigor.

Against this backdrop, the NICHICON Group 
continued to focus on the four important fields of Energy, 
Environment (Ecology) & Medical equipment, Automotive 
& Railway-car related appliances, Household Electrical 
Appliances & Industrial Inverters and Information & 

sales ratio decreased 0.5 percentage points, to 57.4%. The 
NICHICON Group will continue working to expand sales 
in overseas markets as it strives to achieve growth.

The NICHICON Group’s mission statement indicates its 
aims of “striving to attain a better global environment” 
and “contributing to a brighter future for society by 
creating valued products.” Based on this statement, we 
have set forth top-notch management, which aims for 
first-class performance in every aspect of our business, 
including quality, cost, delivery, service and technology, 
as our management policy in the aim of establishing a 
creation business that is capable of Koto-Zukuri (the 
creation of customer expectations), providing value that 
exceeds customer expectations and delivering joy and 
inspiration. We are developing our business based on the 
closely connected capacitor business and NECST 
business, which aims for stable supply of energy and 
protection of the global environment.

In the capacitor business, we have provided highly 
reliable products, from aluminum electrolytic capacitors 
for the automotive market to film capacitors for motor 
drives. Additionally, in the power electronics market, 
including products for renewable energy and factory 
automation equipment, we have provided solutions that 
showcase our sophisticated technological capabilities, 

such as industry-leading high voltage and miniature 
products for energy savings. Moreover, we carried out 
technical and development investments in anticipation of 
growth of new businesses and strategic investments to 
strengthen our core businesses. These efforts have 
established a foundation for the next stage of our growth, 
and we will continue to leverage the strengths of our 
Group as we promote our business.

In the NECST business, we have been expanding sales 
of household energy storage systems and V2H systems 
for the coming smart society and have delivered many 
quick chargers to promote the spread of EVs and public 
and industrial power storage systems for evacuation 
centers. In the middle of 2016, the household energy 
storage system subsidies ended, so sales decreased, but 
we expanded our lineup, introducing a 12 kWh hybrid 
energy storage system in July of the same year and an 
11.1 kWh outdoor system in October that is under 
¥300,000 per kWh to address a wide range of needs.

Additionally, in December of 2016, we opened the 
NICHICON Tokyo Building in Nihonbashi, Chuo-ku, 
Tokyo, consolidating the Tokyo Branch Office, POWER 
SUPPLY CENTER and group company YUTAKA 
ELECTRIC MFG., which had been in separate locations 
within Tokyo. With power supply and storage technology 
at the core, we are integrating planning, engineering and 
sales to implement Koto-Zukuri (the creation of customer 
expectations) for new value creation at an overwhelming 
pace. We have installed a power storage type solar 
generating system on the roof of our new building as well 
as quick chargers to charge EVs with power from solar 
power generation and V2H systems. These systems 
embody our initiatives based on the themes of the new 
era of power storage and EV solutions.

In regard to the market environment in the year ending 
March 31, 2018, the Japanese market is expected to 
exhibit a mild recovery, while overseas the United States 

economy is expected to be robust overall even as the 
situations in Europe and China remain uncertain. Under 
these circumstances, overall demand in the industry to 
which our Group belongs has bottomed out, so we expect 
things to turn around in the year ending March 31, 2018.

The capacitor business, which is the backbone of our 
Group, is in a mature market, but we hope to promote 
development of appealing products to cultivate new 
markets. For example, our policy is to supply aluminum 
electrolytic capacitors with newly developed 
oscillation-proof structures and conductive polymer 
hybrid aluminum electrolytic capacitors, a new product 
for which mass production was launched this spring, for 
onboard ECUs and switching power supplies, which are 
increasing in demand, and develop these into the main 
products of the capacitor business. Furthermore, we will 
expand our lineup of new products for automobiles and 
railway cars and increase the sales ratio of automotive & 
railway-car related appliances from the current 18% to 
more than 30%. We are working on technical proposals 
for the use of our newly developed large aluminum 
electrolytic capacitors in industrial equipment, robots 

and major household appliances.
In the NECST business, the year ending March 31, 2018 

is being considered the beginning of the new era of power 
storage, and we will tie it into growth of the clean energy 
market, including generating, storing and saving energy. 
The NICHICON Group was the first in the industry to 
bring household energy storage systems to the market, and 
as of the year ended March 31, 2017, we have achieved 
cumulative sales of 36,000 units. As one of the leading 
companies in the industry, we will expand our sales ahead 
of the transition from the early phase to the popularization 
phase in terms of demand. As for our products for EVs, we 
predict increasing demand for 50kW to 100kW quick 
chargers and will simultaneously achieve improved output 
and miniaturization. We will expand our lineup of V2H 
systems to a total of four models to increase sales.

In recent years, the populations of emerging countries 
have been growing, while the populations of advanced 
countries are shrinking as birthrates decline and the 

populations age. Additionally, various challenges such as 
energy and environmental problems are coming to the 
surface, and expectations are growing for new markets 
and fields like advanced medicine, IoT, AI and automatic 
driving. We will promptly get to work on solving these 
challenges faced by society and will develop and sell 
products that contribute to the fields of power electronics, 
energy and the environment, and advanced medicine to 
contribute to achieving local production of energy for 
local consumption and creating a smart society.

Household energy storage systems are one of the main 
products of our NECST business, and as a leading 
company, we will grow the business substantially in 
anticipation of the new era of energy storage where every 
family will have such a system. We will also capture 
demand for public and industrial power storage systems 
and smart agriculture from the penetration of business 
continuity planning (BCP) measures. Marked expansion 
is expected in the EV-related market with the sudden 
materialization of EV and PHV markets in China and 
other Asian countries and the distinct shift from diesel 
engines to EVs in the European market. The NICHICON 
Group will promote development and sales of unique new 
products that anticipate environmental demand, such as 

onboard chargers, which are key devices of EVs, quick 
chargers for infrastructure development and V2H systems 
that connect the coming EV society and smart houses.

Additionally, in the capacitor business, we will focus 
on growth fields such as automobile-related advanced 
driver assist systems (ADAS), automatic driving, fusion 
with IoT in the field of power electronics, and the robot 
market, which is expected to grow rapidly in the future.

In the academic research field, our ultra-high-precision 
accelerator power supply was adopted for use in the heart 
of SACLA, RIKEN’s X-ray Free Electron Laser (XFEL) 
facility, and in the smart medicine field, that technology 
is utilized in corpuscular ray cancer treatment systems. 
This technology will be rolled out into the next 
generation of products in the NECST business.

As for R&D, we have established a system that integrates 
everything from production to sales under the 

organizational structure that manages R&D resources 
centered on the Technology Center of the Capacitor 
Business Headquarters and the R&D Center of the 
NECST Business Headquarters to accelerate the 
development of new products.

Not only are we engaged in in-house development but 
we are also aggressively pursuing industry-academia- 
government and intra-industry collaborations. In October 
2016, we signed a comprehensive industry-academia 
collaborative agreement with the Institute of Industrial 
Science, the University of Tokyo, for the purpose of 
contributing to local production of energy for local 
consumption and the creation of a smart society, and 
we have since been actively promoting joint R&D. This 
agreement promotes development of next-generation 
devices that use revolutionary new technologies and 
methods that are not possible as an extension of existing 
technologies. We will develop next-generation NECST 
products like small, high-performance household energy 
storage systems and EV and PHV quick chargers that are 
equipped with power semiconductors working on higher 
frequencies than in the past to create new value. We have 
dispatched three engineers to work at the Institute of 
Industrial Science, the University of Tokyo, and they 
conduct joint research on electrode material and 
electrolytes for aluminum electrolytic capacitors and 
train human resources that will handle the launching of 
new businesses.

Additionally, under the NEDO (New Energy and 
Industrial Technology Development Organization) project, 
we are developing a power conversion module that uses 
SiC semiconductors jointly with Osaka University and 
RIKEN. Field tests equipping SACLA, RIKEN’s X-ray 
Free Electron Laser (XFEL) facility, with our accelerator 
power supply were successful. We have applied this 
technology in miniaturizing and increasing the 
functionality of V2H systems that supply electricity to 
houses from EVs and public and industrial power storage 
systems. We are promoting collaboration and interaction 
with Ritsumeikan University for research and education. 
Our engineers participate in Management of Technology 
(MOT) classes provided by Ritsumeikan University so that 
we can train engineers that understand management. We 
are also engaged in joint development of electrolytes for 
aluminum electrolytic capacitors with Mie University, and 
with Kyoto University, we are jointly developing a SiC 

Collaboration-Based Technology & Product Development System

power conversion module under the super cluster program 
of the Japan Science and Technology Agency (JST).

As for intra-industry collaborations, we are 
developing new household energy storage system 
products in collaboration with Kyocera, Sekisui 
Chemical and others, and in the EV field, we are 
bringing V2H systems to market jointly with major 
automobile manufacturers like Nissan Motor. We will 
continue to form alliances with companies that lead in 
their respective fields and create markets as we 
promote R&D that anticipates future trends to quickly 
meet customer demand.

In addition to these growth strategies, we will work on 
thorough compliance and will enhance our structure to 
ensure reliability of financial reporting while optimizing 
operations, promoting further development and 
implementation of internal control in the aim of 
improving corporate value.

The NICHICON Group recognizes returning profits to 
shareholders as an important management issue, and we 
are working to steadily increase dividends by maximizing 
corporate value and strengthening our business structure. 
The annual dividend for the year ended March 31, 2017 
was 21 yen per share.

We ask our stakeholders, including our shareholders 
and investors, for their ongoing support.

June 29, 2017

Promote Industry-Academia-Government 
and Intra-Industry Collaboration to Advance 
R&D in Anticipation of the Next Generation

Research and Development

Industry-
academia-
government 
collaboration

Intra-industry
collaboration

Government
agenciesUniversities

Other
manufacturers

NICHICON
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Development of new technologies

Development of easy-to-install
and easy-to-sell products

Acceleration of development

Development of new functions

Enhancement of sales promotions

Improvement of marketing accuracy

Message from the Chairman and the President



Communications equipment, which are diversifying with 
the development of new key technologies such as IoT 
and AI. As a result, net sales declined 8.6% year on year, 
to ¥100,402 million; operating income fell 36.8%, to 
¥3,019 million; and net income attributable to owners of 
the parent was ¥2,624 million, compared with a net loss 
of ¥591 million in the preceding fiscal year. 

By product category, sales of capacitors used in 
automotive electronics were robust, but sales of 
capacitors used in home appliances and inverters 
declined, resulting in lower sales overall. Sales of 
capacitors for electric apparatus and power utilities and 
applied systems and equipment fell as a result of falling 
capacitor sales despite robust sales of devices. Sales of 
circuit products also fell, primarily as a result of a 
decline in sales of various power supply products and 
household energy storage systems.

Overseas, in the Asian market sales of products for use 
in home appliances declined, lowering overseas sales 9.3% 
year on year, to ¥57,622 million. As a result, the overseas 

During the year ended March 31, 2017, the Japanese 
economy continued its gentle recovery, boosted by robust 
exports despite the appreciation of the yen. Looking at the 
situation overseas, there was a recovery in corporate 
earnings and steady consumer spending in the United 
States, leading to mild economic growth. In Europe, the 
economy was in a recovery phase as the impact of 
England’s decision to exit the European Union was 
limited. On the other hand, the pace of economic recovery 
in China and emerging countries continued to lack vigor.

Against this backdrop, the NICHICON Group 
continued to focus on the four important fields of Energy, 
Environment (Ecology) & Medical equipment, Automotive 
& Railway-car related appliances, Household Electrical 
Appliances & Industrial Inverters and Information & 

sales ratio decreased 0.5 percentage points, to 57.4%. The 
NICHICON Group will continue working to expand sales 
in overseas markets as it strives to achieve growth.

The NICHICON Group’s mission statement indicates its 
aims of “striving to attain a better global environment” 
and “contributing to a brighter future for society by 
creating valued products.” Based on this statement, we 
have set forth top-notch management, which aims for 
first-class performance in every aspect of our business, 
including quality, cost, delivery, service and technology, 
as our management policy in the aim of establishing a 
creation business that is capable of Koto-Zukuri (the 
creation of customer expectations), providing value that 
exceeds customer expectations and delivering joy and 
inspiration. We are developing our business based on the 
closely connected capacitor business and NECST 
business, which aims for stable supply of energy and 
protection of the global environment.

In the capacitor business, we have provided highly 
reliable products, from aluminum electrolytic capacitors 
for the automotive market to film capacitors for motor 
drives. Additionally, in the power electronics market, 
including products for renewable energy and factory 
automation equipment, we have provided solutions that 
showcase our sophisticated technological capabilities, 

such as industry-leading high voltage and miniature 
products for energy savings. Moreover, we carried out 
technical and development investments in anticipation of 
growth of new businesses and strategic investments to 
strengthen our core businesses. These efforts have 
established a foundation for the next stage of our growth, 
and we will continue to leverage the strengths of our 
Group as we promote our business.

In the NECST business, we have been expanding sales 
of household energy storage systems and V2H systems 
for the coming smart society and have delivered many 
quick chargers to promote the spread of EVs and public 
and industrial power storage systems for evacuation 
centers. In the middle of 2016, the household energy 
storage system subsidies ended, so sales decreased, but 
we expanded our lineup, introducing a 12 kWh hybrid 
energy storage system in July of the same year and an 
11.1 kWh outdoor system in October that is under 
¥300,000 per kWh to address a wide range of needs.

Additionally, in December of 2016, we opened the 
NICHICON Tokyo Building in Nihonbashi, Chuo-ku, 
Tokyo, consolidating the Tokyo Branch Office, POWER 
SUPPLY CENTER and group company YUTAKA 
ELECTRIC MFG., which had been in separate locations 
within Tokyo. With power supply and storage technology 
at the core, we are integrating planning, engineering and 
sales to implement Koto-Zukuri (the creation of customer 
expectations) for new value creation at an overwhelming 
pace. We have installed a power storage type solar 
generating system on the roof of our new building as well 
as quick chargers to charge EVs with power from solar 
power generation and V2H systems. These systems 
embody our initiatives based on the themes of the new 
era of power storage and EV solutions.

In regard to the market environment in the year ending 
March 31, 2018, the Japanese market is expected to 
exhibit a mild recovery, while overseas the United States 

economy is expected to be robust overall even as the 
situations in Europe and China remain uncertain. Under 
these circumstances, overall demand in the industry to 
which our Group belongs has bottomed out, so we expect 
things to turn around in the year ending March 31, 2018.

The capacitor business, which is the backbone of our 
Group, is in a mature market, but we hope to promote 
development of appealing products to cultivate new 
markets. For example, our policy is to supply aluminum 
electrolytic capacitors with newly developed 
oscillation-proof structures and conductive polymer 
hybrid aluminum electrolytic capacitors, a new product 
for which mass production was launched this spring, for 
onboard ECUs and switching power supplies, which are 
increasing in demand, and develop these into the main 
products of the capacitor business. Furthermore, we will 
expand our lineup of new products for automobiles and 
railway cars and increase the sales ratio of automotive & 
railway-car related appliances from the current 18% to 
more than 30%. We are working on technical proposals 
for the use of our newly developed large aluminum 
electrolytic capacitors in industrial equipment, robots 

and major household appliances.
In the NECST business, the year ending March 31, 2018 

is being considered the beginning of the new era of power 
storage, and we will tie it into growth of the clean energy 
market, including generating, storing and saving energy. 
The NICHICON Group was the first in the industry to 
bring household energy storage systems to the market, and 
as of the year ended March 31, 2017, we have achieved 
cumulative sales of 36,000 units. As one of the leading 
companies in the industry, we will expand our sales ahead 
of the transition from the early phase to the popularization 
phase in terms of demand. As for our products for EVs, we 
predict increasing demand for 50kW to 100kW quick 
chargers and will simultaneously achieve improved output 
and miniaturization. We will expand our lineup of V2H 
systems to a total of four models to increase sales.

In recent years, the populations of emerging countries 
have been growing, while the populations of advanced 
countries are shrinking as birthrates decline and the 

populations age. Additionally, various challenges such as 
energy and environmental problems are coming to the 
surface, and expectations are growing for new markets 
and fields like advanced medicine, IoT, AI and automatic 
driving. We will promptly get to work on solving these 
challenges faced by society and will develop and sell 
products that contribute to the fields of power electronics, 
energy and the environment, and advanced medicine to 
contribute to achieving local production of energy for 
local consumption and creating a smart society.

Household energy storage systems are one of the main 
products of our NECST business, and as a leading 
company, we will grow the business substantially in 
anticipation of the new era of energy storage where every 
family will have such a system. We will also capture 
demand for public and industrial power storage systems 
and smart agriculture from the penetration of business 
continuity planning (BCP) measures. Marked expansion 
is expected in the EV-related market with the sudden 
materialization of EV and PHV markets in China and 
other Asian countries and the distinct shift from diesel 
engines to EVs in the European market. The NICHICON 
Group will promote development and sales of unique new 
products that anticipate environmental demand, such as 

onboard chargers, which are key devices of EVs, quick 
chargers for infrastructure development and V2H systems 
that connect the coming EV society and smart houses.

Additionally, in the capacitor business, we will focus 
on growth fields such as automobile-related advanced 
driver assist systems (ADAS), automatic driving, fusion 
with IoT in the field of power electronics, and the robot 
market, which is expected to grow rapidly in the future.

In the academic research field, our ultra-high-precision 
accelerator power supply was adopted for use in the heart 
of SACLA, RIKEN’s X-ray Free Electron Laser (XFEL) 
facility, and in the smart medicine field, that technology 
is utilized in corpuscular ray cancer treatment systems. 
This technology will be rolled out into the next 
generation of products in the NECST business.

As for R&D, we have established a system that integrates 
everything from production to sales under the 

organizational structure that manages R&D resources 
centered on the Technology Center of the Capacitor 
Business Headquarters and the R&D Center of the 
NECST Business Headquarters to accelerate the 
development of new products.

Not only are we engaged in in-house development but 
we are also aggressively pursuing industry-academia- 
government and intra-industry collaborations. In October 
2016, we signed a comprehensive industry-academia 
collaborative agreement with the Institute of Industrial 
Science, the University of Tokyo, for the purpose of 
contributing to local production of energy for local 
consumption and the creation of a smart society, and 
we have since been actively promoting joint R&D. This 
agreement promotes development of next-generation 
devices that use revolutionary new technologies and 
methods that are not possible as an extension of existing 
technologies. We will develop next-generation NECST 
products like small, high-performance household energy 
storage systems and EV and PHV quick chargers that are 
equipped with power semiconductors working on higher 
frequencies than in the past to create new value. We have 
dispatched three engineers to work at the Institute of 
Industrial Science, the University of Tokyo, and they 
conduct joint research on electrode material and 
electrolytes for aluminum electrolytic capacitors and 
train human resources that will handle the launching of 
new businesses.

Additionally, under the NEDO (New Energy and 
Industrial Technology Development Organization) project, 
we are developing a power conversion module that uses 
SiC semiconductors jointly with Osaka University and 
RIKEN. Field tests equipping SACLA, RIKEN’s X-ray 
Free Electron Laser (XFEL) facility, with our accelerator 
power supply were successful. We have applied this 
technology in miniaturizing and increasing the 
functionality of V2H systems that supply electricity to 
houses from EVs and public and industrial power storage 
systems. We are promoting collaboration and interaction 
with Ritsumeikan University for research and education. 
Our engineers participate in Management of Technology 
(MOT) classes provided by Ritsumeikan University so that 
we can train engineers that understand management. We 
are also engaged in joint development of electrolytes for 
aluminum electrolytic capacitors with Mie University, and 
with Kyoto University, we are jointly developing a SiC 

power conversion module under the super cluster program 
of the Japan Science and Technology Agency (JST).

As for intra-industry collaborations, we are 
developing new household energy storage system 
products in collaboration with Kyocera, Sekisui 
Chemical and others, and in the EV field, we are 
bringing V2H systems to market jointly with major 
automobile manufacturers like Nissan Motor. We will 
continue to form alliances with companies that lead in 
their respective fields and create markets as we 
promote R&D that anticipates future trends to quickly 
meet customer demand.

In addition to these growth strategies, we will work on 
thorough compliance and will enhance our structure to 
ensure reliability of financial reporting while optimizing 
operations, promoting further development and 
implementation of internal control in the aim of 
improving corporate value.

The NICHICON Group recognizes returning profits to 
shareholders as an important management issue, and we 
are working to steadily increase dividends by maximizing 
corporate value and strengthening our business structure. 
The annual dividend for the year ended March 31, 2017 
was 21 yen per share.

We ask our stakeholders, including our shareholders 
and investors, for their ongoing support.

June 29, 2017

Ippei Takeda
NICHICON CORPORATION
Representative Director
and Chairman

Shigeo Yoshida
Representative Director, 
President & CEO
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Performance

Net sales

Operating income

Income before income taxes 

Net income attributable to owners of the parent

Capital expenditures

Depreciation and amortization

Total assets

Shareholders’ equity

Net income

Cash dividends

Shareholders’ equity

Shareholders’ equity ratio (%)

Ratio of net income to shareholders’ equity

For the year

At year-end

Per share of common stock

¥ 90,813

(3,360)

(4,718)

(6,237)

5,353

7,554

125,742

88,348

¥ (87.30)

15.00

1,236.67

70.3%

(6.9)

$ 894,845

26,909

36,252

23,386

66,724

30,628

1,258,524

891,397

0.34

0.19

12.80

3/2013

¥ 104,690

4,216

4,336

3,183

2,315

5,137

135,050

96,406

¥ 44.56

16.00

1,349.49

71.4%

3.4

3/2014

¥ 107,294

3,877

4,381

2,258

2,401

4,279

141,252

103,298

¥ 31.65

18.00

1,473.12

73.1%

2.3

3/2015

¥ 109,816

4,778

347

(591)

2,565

4,378

136,684

96,855

¥ (8.49)

20.00

1,390.80

70.9%

(0.6)

3/2016

¥ 100,402

3,019

4,067

2,624

7,486

3,436

141,206

100,016

¥ 37.68

21.00

1,436.19

70.8%

2.7

3/2017 3/2017

Millions of Yen
Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

Yen U.S. Dollars

Financial Information

No. of employees

Frequency rate

Severity rate

Fuel oil consumption (kl)

LPG (Liquefied petroleum gas) consumption (kg)

Electricity consumption (kWh 1,000’s)

Water consumption (t 10,000’s)

Underground water consumption (t 10,000’s)

CO2 emissions (t-CO2)

Waste water emissions (t 10,000’s)

Transaction volume of chemical substances

Emissions of chemical substances

At year-end

6,026

0.459

0.020

12,596

345,915

612,170

44

1,064

294,463

821

171.35

16.77

3/2013

5,792

0.224

0.007

4,796

371,366

608,313

48

701

286,681

542

201.03

30.04

3/2014

4,809

0.221

0.000

1,072

305,378

638,863

39

694

297,549

533

199.37

26.87

3/2015

4,818

0.216

0.003

954

291,935

708,805

38

736

327,690

579

204.19

17.74

3/2016

5,183

0.000

0.000

1,036

314,718

653,362

38

703

302,989

559

180.98

19.17

3/2017

Non-financial Information

Notes: 1. Amounts less than 1 million yen have been rounded off.
2. The U.S. dollar amounts are provided solely for convenience at the rate of ¥112.20 to U.S. $1, the approximate exchange rate at March 31, 2017.
3. Certain reclassifications of previously reported amounts have been made to conform with current classifications.
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3/2013

120,000

5,000

120,000

90,000

60,000

30,000

0

80.00

40.00

0

−40.00

−80.00

−120.00

150,000

120,000

90,000

60,000

30,000

0

−5,000

−10,000

0

90,000

60,000

30,000

0

6,000

3,000

0

−6,000

−3,000

-87.30

−8.49

44.56 125,742
135,050

88,348
96,406

90,813

3/2014

104,690

10,000

8,000

6,000

4,000

0

2,000

800

600

400

200

6,026

50

40

1,000

0

30

20

10

0

821

44

500,000

400,000

300,000

200,000

100,000

0

1,200,000

1,000,000

800,000

600,000

400,000

200,000

0

1,200

1,000

800

600

400

200

0

1,064

294,463 286,681

612,170 608,313

-3,360

4,216

103,298
96,855 100,016

3/2015

107,294

3/2016

109,816

3/2017

100,402 3,877
4,778

3,019

3/2013 3/2014 3/2015 3/2016 3/2017 3/2013 3/2014 3/2015 3/2016 3/2017

3/2013 3/2014 3/2015 3/2016 3/2017

-6,237

3,183
2,258 2,624

−591

3/2013 3/2014 3/2015 3/2016 3/2017

3/2013 3/2014 3/2015 3/2016 3/20173/2013 3/2014 3/2015 3/2016 3/2017

3/2013 3/2014 3/2015 3/2016 3/2017

701
542

141,252 136,684 141,206

4,809
5,792

4,818 5,183

297,549
327,690

302,989

638,863
708,805

653,362

694 736 703
533

579 559

31.65 37.68

3/2013 3/2014 3/2015 3/2016 3/20173/2013 3/2014 3/2015 3/2016 3/20173/2013 3/2014 3/2015 3/2016 3/2017

3/2013 3/2014 3/2015 3/2016 3/2017

48

39 38 38

(t 10,000’s)

■ Underground Water Consumption
(t-CO2)

■ CO2 Emissions
(t 10,000’s)

■ Waste Water Emissions

■ No. of Employees
(kWh 1,000’s)

■ Electricity Consumption
(t 10,000’s)

■ Water Consumption

(yen)

■ Net Income per Share
(million yen)

■ Total Assets
(million yen)

■ Shareholders’ Equity

(million yen)

■ Net Sales
(million yen)

(million yen)

■ Operating Income ■ Net income attributable to owners
   of the parent
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We are engaging in industry–academia–government and 
intra-industry collaboration to create and accelerate the 
spread of new value. Our activities range from the creation 
of markets to the development of novel technologies.

We are jointly developing electrolytes for 
the electrolytic solutions used in aluminum 
electrolytic capacitors. In the autumn of 
2016, we developed an electrolyte with a 
molecular structure optimized for 
electrolytic solutions in high-voltage power 
conditioners and other items, which we 
are working to commercialize.

In August 2005, we created a joint program with Ritsumeikan 
University with two pillars—R&D and human resource development—
and have been engaging in exchanges since that time. We have had 
success in this program on two fronts: the early commercialization of 
research successes and the cultivation of human resources who can 
take charge of future technologies and management. 
     Ritsumeikan University has introduced a joint management of 
technology (MOT) education program aimed at NICHICON. Through 
MOT education, the program centers on cultivating human resources 
capable of converting new technologies into business and encouraging 

these members to start up businesses. 
The joint development of digital 
control technologies for momentary 
voltage sag compensators emerged 
as a result of this initiative. Horizontal 
development of the jointly developed 
digital control technologies led to their 
use in current NECST products, such 
as bidirectional converters for 
household and public and industrial 
power storage systems, as well as EV 
quick charging systems.

We have taken the industry lead by 
launching household energy 
storage systems, our flagship 
product in the NECST business. 
As a leading company in energy 
storage systems, we are 
developing our extensive lineup. 

We were the first company in the 
world to commercialize 
vehicle-to-home (V2H) systems, 
which use EVs, plug-in hybrid 
vehicles (PHVs) and fuel cell 
vehicles (FCVs) as backup power 
sources for the home. We are also 
responding to broad-ranging needs 
by adding to our lineup with Power 
Mover portable power feeder.

With various countries announcing their policies on the shift to electric vehicles (EVs), the reality of advanced driver 
assistance systems (ADAS) and automatic driving is growing closer. Meanwhile, in the power electronics �eld, fusion 
with the Internet of Things (IoT) and advances in robotics through the use of arti�cial intelligence (AI) are accelerating the 
rate of technological change. Given this pace, it is no longer possible for a single company to respond to society’s needs 
by developing technologies and products on its own. For this reason, we are entering alliances with universities, 
research institutions, government bodies and other private-sector companies with strengths in different areas. By 
pursuing R&D a step ahead of society’s needs, we are working to swiftly introduce new products into the market. 
     Going forward, we will continue working to make the switch from being a manufacturing business to being a creation 
business by shifting our perspective from manufacturing to Koto-Zukuri (the creation of customer expectations) through 
industry–academia–government and intra-industry collaboration. Through this process, we will strive to expand our 
business by promoting the development of novel technologies and creating new value and markets. 

Home Power Station
Household Energy Storage System

Collaborator: Kyocera Corporation,
Sekisui Chemical Co., Ltd.

Developing new high-value-added products

Creating new markets

The �rst certi�cation received from the Japan Electrical Safety & 
Environment Technology Laboratories (JET) 

The world’s �rst commercialization Joint development of digital 
control technologies

13 I n t e g r a t e d  R e p o r t  2 0 1 7

Special Feature

EVPower Station 
V2H System

Collaborator: Nissan Motor Co., Ltd.

Research on Higher Withstand
Voltages on Capacitors

Collaborator: Mie University

R&D and MOT Education in
the Power Electronics Field

Collaborator: Ritsumeikan University



As a NEDO project, we have jointly developed a power conversion 
module enabling a high-frequency drive through the use of a silicon 
carbide (SiC) next-generation power semiconductor. Employed in 
accelerator power supplies for the SPring-8 large synchrotron radiation 
facility, demonstration tests have indicated functionality comparable with 
existing power sources. By reflecting this success in creating guidelines 
on the establishment of reliability assessment methods and domestic and 
overseas standardization activities, going forward we plan to promote the 
commercialization and popularization of power conversion modules using 
SiC, a next-generation power conductor material.

Through joint research with Kyoto University and ROHM Co., Ltd., on 
JST’s Super Cluster Program (a program for developing research 
successes), we have developed an SiC power conversion module with a 
drive frequency of 1MHz and 1kW conversion efficiency of more than 
95%.
     Having met the high targets for this project, we are currently working 
to increase efficiency further and pursuing R&D in the hopes of raising 
performance still higher. 

NICHICON entered into a comprehensive 
collaboration agreement with the 
University of Tokyo Institute of Industrial 
Science aimed at realizing the local 
production of energy for local 
consumption and contributing to the 
creation of a smart society. We are 
pursuing joint R&D on electrolytic solutions 
that exhibit innovative characteristics for 
use in next-generation capacitor materials, 
solid electrolyte materials and electrode 
foils. We have already dispatched three 
researchers to the Institute of Industrial 
Science. Going forward, we plan to 
expand our research themes into such 
areas as R&D on next-generation energy 
management systems.

Development of an SiC Power Conversion Module

Collaborators: Osaka University, RIKEN and the New Energy and
Industrial Technology Development Organization (NEDO)

NEDO Project

Super Cluster Program
Collaborators: Kyoto University, ROHM Co., Ltd.,

and the Japan Science and Technology Agency (JST)

Developing technologies for the development of groundbreaking products

We plan to develop NECST products, such as household energy storage systems, public and industrial 
power storage systems, V2H systems, EV quick chargers and accelerator power supplies at medical facilities.
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Development of Next-Generation Devices Using New 
Technologies and Innovative Techniques; 

Development of Next-Generation NECST Products
Collaborator: Institute of Industrial Science, the University of Tokyo



The NICHICON Group is composed of three production departments: capacitors for electronics and circuit 
products, capacitors for electric apparatus and power utilities & capacitor applied systems and equipment. 
These departments are each rolling out proactive product development strategies in four key markets: 
Energy, Environment (Ecology) & Medical equipment; Automotive & Railway-car related appliances; 
Household Electrical Appliances & Industrial inverters; and Information & Communications equipment.

Capacitors for electronics account for two-thirds of the 
NICHICON Group’s business operations, constituting the 
majority of consolidated net sales. We develop and sell 
high-quality, highly functional products, including 
aluminum electrolytic capacitors, in which we command 
a leading global market share; and plastic film capacitors 
with exceptional high-voltage, high-frequency 
characteristics, which utilize changes in resistance 
values caused by temperature fluctuation.

other types of industrial equipment, we added to our lineup the 
105°C 2,000 hours-guaranteed ultra-miniature-sized LGM series 
of snap-in terminal type aluminum electrolytic capacitors, 
achieving miniaturization that makes these the smallest in the 
industry in their class. We also added the LGN series of 
105°C-guaranteed miniature-sized aluminum electrolytic 
capacitors rated to 600V, the highest level in the industry. In 
addition, we developed the LAS series of miniature-sized snap-in 
terminal-type aluminum electrolytic capacitors with permissible 
abnormal voltage guaranteed for 105°C and 2,000 hours, which 
are ideal for use on equipment in overseas regions where power 
supplies are unstable. This series has a rated voltage of 450V, the 
industry’s highest-class.

3/2013

Aluminum electrolytic 
capacitors
Plastic film capacitors
Positive thermistors

Capacitors for Electronics

(million yen)

3/2017

100,402

120,000

100,000

80,000

60,000

40,000

20,000

0

(million yen)

3/2014

90,813

104,690 107,294

19,940

10,584

60,289

22,578

13,049

69,063

3/2015

109,816

21,273

13,207

72,814

3/2016

27,433

12,713

69,670

100,402

3/2017

22,545

12,195

65,662

Sales Breakdown by Product Sector in 
Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2017

Sales by Product Sector

65.3%

Capacitors for 
electronics

22.5%

Circuit 
products

12.2%

Capacitors for 
electric apparatus 
and power utilities 
& capacitor applied 
systems and equipment

Capacitors for electronics Capacitors for electric apparatus and power utilities & 
capacitor applied systems and equipment

Circuit products

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2017, sales of capacitors 
for electronics amounted to ¥65,662 million, down 5.8% from the 
preceding fiscal year, accounting for 65.3% of consolidated net 
sales. Although sales of capacitors for automotive equipment were 
robust, sales of capacitors for household electronics and inverters 
decreased.
     Principal products developed during the year were as follows.
     For automobiles, we developed the UXY series of radial lead 
type aluminum electrolytic capacitors with a vibration-resistant 
structure. This series employs proprietary technologies and a new 
structure to withstand vibration accelerations of up to 40G. In the 
UBY series, which is capable of operating at a high temperature, 
high capacitance and high ripple current, we added products with 
rated voltages of 63–100V. We also developed UCH series chip 
type aluminum electrolytic capacitors, the industry’s highest-level 
125°C 2,000 hours-guaranteed endurance-tested ESR 6Ω-rated 
product, and raised capacitance by adding ratings under 220–330μ. 
     The automotive and industrial equipment sectors are moving 
toward the use of electronic controls and increased compactness, 
requiring higher-performance substrates and units and higher 
mounting density. Accordingly, even more than in the past 
demand is increasing for aluminum electrolytic capacitors to meet 
needs for higher temperature, longer life and higher ripple current. 
In response to these needs, the NICHICON Group has developed 
the GYA series of conductive polymer hybrid aluminum 
electrolytic capacitors.
     For high-voltage inverter circuits for power electronics and 

Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2017

Review by Product Sector
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This department focuses on the environmental products 
of the NICHICON Energy Control System Technology 
(NECST) Business Headquarters, which is driving new 
business in energy generation / energy storage / energy 
saving, etc. It is also focusing on growing the business of 
switching power supplies, which is indispensable to all 
electronic equipment, as well as function modules on 
which various electronic components such as capacitors 
and semiconductor chips are mounted. We are 
proceeding with the development, manufacture and sale 
of such environmental products as our “Home Power 
Station” household energy storage system, public and 
industrial power storage systems and the “EVPower 
Station,” a Vehicle-to-Home (V2H) system essential to 
the proliferation of EVs.

other types of industrial equipment, we added to our lineup the 
105°C 2,000 hours-guaranteed ultra-miniature-sized LGM series 
of snap-in terminal type aluminum electrolytic capacitors, 
achieving miniaturization that makes these the smallest in the 
industry in their class. We also added the LGN series of 
105°C-guaranteed miniature-sized aluminum electrolytic 
capacitors rated to 600V, the highest level in the industry. In 
addition, we developed the LAS series of miniature-sized snap-in 
terminal-type aluminum electrolytic capacitors with permissible 
abnormal voltage guaranteed for 105°C and 2,000 hours, which 
are ideal for use on equipment in overseas regions where power 
supplies are unstable. This series has a rated voltage of 450V, the 
industry’s highest-class.

Circuit Products
radiation facility. Based on this success, we will promote 
application in V2H systems, as well as public and industrial power 
storage systems.

Capacitors for electronics, a core business segment for the 
NICHICON Group, is a mature market. However, growth is 
expected in the markets for automotive and industrial equipment. 
Accordingly, we are moving ahead with proposal-based 
development and sales activities that anticipate customer needs. 
In the automotive sector, in particular, we expect to introduce new 
products and expand sales in growth fields, such as those related 
to advanced driver assistance systems (ADAS), automatic driving, 
and advances in robotics due to fusion with the Internet of Things 
(IoT). 

Going Forward

In the year under review, sales of circuit products fell 17.8% year 
on year, to ¥22,545 million, accounting for 22.5% of consolidated 
net sales. This decline was due to lower sales for various power 
supplies and household energy storage systems.
     As we move toward a new era of power storage, as a leading 
company in household energy storage systems we will launch 
hybrid energy storage systems optimized to the local production of 
energy for local consumption. At the same time, we responded to 
broad-ranging needs with additions to our lineup of 
single-function storage systems offering superior cost 
performance. 
     In industry–academia–government and intra-industry 
collaboration, we promoted joint development on a NEDO project 
with Osaka University and RIKEN. We collaborated on the use of 
silicon carbide (SiC), a next-generation power semiconductor 
material, in the development of a power conversion module 
with a stable, high-frequency drive. We also succeeded in a 
demonstration test on an accelerator power supply for the SACLA 
(SPring-8 Angstrom Compact Free Electron Laser) synchrotron 

Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2017

Environment-related products

• Household energy storage 
system “Home Power Station”

• Vehicle-to-Home (V2H) system 
“EVPower Station”

• Public and industrial power 
storage systems

Switching power 
supplies

Function modules

UXY series radial lead type aluminum 
electrolytic capacitors

UBY series radial lead type aluminum 
electrolytic capacitors

UCH series chip type aluminum electrolytic 
capacitors

LGM series snap-in terminal type 
aluminum electrolytic capacitors

LGN series snap-in terminal type 
aluminum electrolytic capacitors

LAS series snap-in terminal type 
aluminum electrolytic capacitors

GYA series conductive polymer hybrid 
aluminum electrolytic capacitors
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This department develops and markets products 
centered on factory, building and other industrial power 
reception/transformation facilities, including smoothing 
capacitors for EVs, HVs and railway cars and capacitor 
applied systems.

Capacitors for Electric 
Apparatus and Power Utilities & 
Capacitor Applied Systems and 
Equipment

radiation facility. Based on this success, we will promote 
application in V2H systems, as well as public and industrial power 
storage systems.

Each year, growing awareness of environmental protection and 
energy conservation is pushing up demand for 
environment-related products. In response to these needs, in our 
Home Power Station lineup of household energy storage systems 
we will continue working to develop new products and secure our 
position as Japan’s leading company in this area. In addition to 
enhancing the convenience of our EVPower Station, we are 
working to commercialize the Power Mover. This portable 
vehicle-to-load (V2L) EVPower Station makes electricity from 
such sources as EVs, PHVs and FCVs available as emergency 
power sources or for outdoor use. At the same time, in pursuit of 
greater convenience we will work on wireless charging systems.
     Also, we are proactively engaging in industry–academia 
collaboration. Aiming to contribute toward to local power 
production for local consumption and the creation of a smart 
society, last year we entered into a comprehensive research 
collaboration alliance with the University of Tokyo Institute of 
Industrial Science. This alliance targets the development of 
next-generation devices employing groundbreaking new 
technologies and innovative techniques. In our efforts to promote 
the commercialization and popularization of power conversion 
modules using SiC, a next-generation power semiconductor 
material, we are working primarily with Osaka University on the 
establishment of reliability assessment methods and other 
guidelines, as well as on domestic and overseas standardization 
activities.

Going Forward

Film capacitors (for power electronics)
Capacitor applied systems and equipment

• EV and PHV Quick Charger
• Accelerator power supplies at medical facilities
• Accelerator power supplies for academic study
• Momentary voltage sag compensator / power outage 

compensator

During the year, sales in capacitors for electric apparatus and 
power utilities & capacitor applied systems and equipment 
declined 4.1% year on year, to ¥12,195 million, accounting for 
12.2% of consolidated net sales.
     Key initiatives during the year included the launch of our 
CHAdeMO 1.0.1 system of space-saving Quick Chargers for EVs 
and PHV with outputs of 25kW and 35kW following certification, 
as well as the development of a product with output of 50kW. In 
addition to our conventional core 20kW and 30kW models, we 
will expand our lineup of high-output, space-saving types.

Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2017

Highlighting their reliability as a strength, we aim to expand the 
model compatibility on our film capacitors for EV and HV motor 
drives. We are developing more compact EV Quick Chargers 
compatible with EVs having higher-capacitance output. By 
creating environmentally friendly products, we will contribute to 
the realization of a safe and secure low-carbon society. In power 
supplies for medical equipment, we are promoting and have a high 
share of the domestic market for accelerator power supplies for 
corpuscular ray cancer treatment. Going forward, we are 
expanding introduction at facilities overseas.

Going Forward

EVPower Station “Power Mover”

Household energy storage system EV and PHV Quick Charger

Review by Product Sector
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During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2017, overseas sales 
decreased 9.3%, to ¥57,622 million, owing to lower sales of 
capacitors for household electronics in Asian markets. By region, 
sales amounted to ¥43,119 million in Asia (down 9.6% year on 
year), ¥6,896 million in the Americas (down 5.9%), and ¥7,607 
million in Europe and other regions (down 10.4%). Overseas sales 
consequently decreased 0.5 percentage points as a percentage of 
consolidated net sales, to 57.4%.
     In overseas production, we are moving forward with efforts to 
optimize our production locations. We are building a production 
system to manufacture core products in China and other parts of 
Asia. In Malaysia, we produce various chip-type, miniature and 
large electrolytic aluminum electrolytic capacitors. In Wuxi, 
China, we produce various chip-type, miniature and large 
electrolytic aluminum electrolytic capacitors, as well as switching 
power supplies, while in Suqian, China, we produce conductive 
polymer aluminum solid electrolytic capacitors. Meanwhile, we 
are setting up our Japanese and overseas production bases so that 
they can take over production of core products if needed, thereby 
dispersing the risk of over-centralization. 
     We have established an R&D Center at NICHICON Wuxi, which 
develops and designs switching power supplies and adaptors for office 
equipment, LED lighting, home game consoles, and other items. We 
are also evaluating local sourcing of parts and raw materials and 
planning and development for aluminum electrolytic capacitors.
     On the sales front, we are responding to customer needs and 

developing markets in locations around the world and working to 
expand sales. We have NICHICON (AMERICA) CORP. covering 
the Americas and NICHICON (AUSTRIA) GmbH and its UK office 
covering Europe. In Asia, we have NICHICON ELECTRONICS 
(WUXI) CO., LTD., and NICHICON ELECTRONICS TRADING 
(SHANGHAI) CO., LTD., covering eastern China, with the latter 
company’s Dalian representative office handling northern China. We 
also have NICHICON (HONG KONG) LTD. and NICHICON 
ELECTRONICS TRADING (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD., covering 
Hong Kong and southern China, and in inland China, we opened two 
branches of NICHICON ELECTRONICS TRADING 
(SHENZHEN) CO., LTD., in Chongqing and Chengdu. In Taiwan, 
we have NICHICON (TAIWAN) CO., LTD., and have located an 
office in South Korea, through which we are cultivating local 
demand. Meanwhile, we have NICHICON (MALAYSIA) SDN. 
BHD., NICHICON (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD., and NICHICON 
(THAILAND) CO., LTD. covering the entire ASEAN region. 
Furthermore, we established NICHICON ELECTRONICS (INDIA) 
PVT. LTD. in Bengaluru, where demand continues to grow. We also 
opened an office in Delhi and Mumbai to provide better sales 
coverage for automotive and industrial equipment companies and 
respond more closely to local needs.
     We will continue striving to increase our overall earnings by 
attracting new customers and increasing the market share of our 
products through the promotion of products and services that are 
attuned to economic trends and customer needs in countries 
around the world.
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NICHICON ELECTRONICS 
(WUXI) CO., LTD.

WUXI NICHICON ELECTRONICS 
R&D CENTER CO., LTD.

NICHICON ELECTRONICS 
(SUQIAN) CO., LTD.

NICHICON (MALAYSIA) SDN. BHD.

NICHICON CORPORATION  
KOREA REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE

NICHICON ELECTRONICS (INDIA) PVT. LTD.
MUMBAI OFFICE

We are consolidating our production system and strengthening 
our sales structures in Europe, the Americas and Asia.

NICHICON (AMERICA) CORPORATION

NICHICON (AUSTRIA) GmbH

NICHICON (HONG KONG) LTD.

NICHICON (AUSTRIA) GmbH U.K.OFFICE

NICHICON ELECTRONICS TRADING
(SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.

NICHICON (THAILAND) CO., LTD.

NICHICON (TAIWAN) CO., LTD.

NICHICON (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.

NICHICON ELECTRONICS TRADING
(SHENZHEN) CO., LTD. 
CHONGQING BRANCH

NICHICON ELECTRONICS TRADING
(SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
DALIAN REPRESENTATIVE OFFICE

NICHICON ELECTRONICS TRADING
(SHENZHEN) CO., LTD. 
CHENGDU BRANCH

NICHICON ELECTRONICS TRADING
(SHENZHEN) CO., LTD.

NICHICON ELECTRONICS (INDIA) PVT. LTD.

14 NICHICON ELECTRONICS (INDIA) PVT. LTD.  
DELHI OFFICE
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question must formulate specific countermeasures and aim for 
ongoing improvements using the PDCA cycle–Plan, Do, Check 
and Act.

The NICHICON Group complies with relevant laws related to 
securities’ transactions and various stock exchange regulations to 
fulfill its responsibility to customers, shareholders, investors and all 
stakeholders to realize management that is fair and highly transparent.
     The Group makes a sincere effort to promptly disclose 
information in recognition of our extremely vital obligation to 
disclose important company information that impacts investment 
decisions in a timely and appropriate manner to build and maintain 
trusting relationships with shareholders and investors.

The FY2016 Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders was held 
on June 29, 2017, and attended by 84 shareholders. During the 
shareholders’ meeting, we did our best to report operating 
performance in an easy-to-understand manner, using graphs and 
other visuals. We also displayed our products at the meeting venue 
to help attendees understand our business.
     For the capacitor business, these displays centered on products 
in our focal business areas: automobiles and industrial equipment. 
For the NECST business, displays were themed on a new era of 
power storage and EV solutions and included various modules, a 
household energy storage system, a V2H system, Quick Charger 
and new V2L system, introducing our extensive range of products 
and solutions supporting an EV-oriented society. Also, 
background music was played using amplifiers and audio 
equipment that incorporate the Group’s capacitors.
     Those unable to attend the shareholders’ meeting are able to 
execute voting rights via the internet. We also hold financial 
results briefings for institutional investors at the end of the second 
quarter and the end of the year in Tokyo.

Corporate Governance Structure

External Directors
NICHICON has three external directors (all of whom are fully 
independent) and two external corporate auditors. The external 
directors attend meetings of the Board of Directors, monitor the 
business execution of each unit, and perform oversight. The external 
corporate auditors attend meetings of the Board of Directors and the 
Board of Corporate Auditors, and also audit business operations and 
provide advice by conducting operational audits of each executing 
unit. None of the external directors or external corporate auditors 
has any special interests in the Company.

Operating Officers
NICHICON introduced an operating officer system to clarify the 
role of management monitoring and business execution functions 
in an attempt to realize speedy management and accurate and 
effective business execution through systematic decision-making in 
response to the clarification of division of duties and administrative 
authorities and the special characteristics of each department.

NICHICON has established the CSR Promotion Committee to 
build a platform for ensuring that its business conforms to the 
Companies Act and the Ordinance for Enforcement of the 
Companies Act. In addition, the Internal Control Promotion 
Committee has been established to create an internal control 
system as required by the Japanese Financial Instruments and 
Exchange Act. Both committees are chaired by the president.
     The CSR Promotion Committee has been established to 
maintain the public’s trust and avoid or prevent risk that could 
damage operations. The committee is composed of five 
sub-committees, Compliance, Competition Law Compliance 
(established in July 2016), Risk Management, Environmental 
Management, and Information Security, which meet monthly to 
confirm the status of progress in resolving each issue. The CSR 
Office and the General Administration Division currently function 
as secretariats for the committee.
     As the head secretariat for the Internal Control Promotion 
Committee, the general manager of the Financial & Accounting 
Headquarters conducts activities centered on the Financial & 
Accounting Division, E.D.P. System Division and the Corporate 
Planning Division, creating and assessing the organization and 
operating structure for Group-wide internal controls. In practice, 
this means dividing the business of the Committee into four 
discrete control categories – Company-wide Controls, Financial 
Reporting Process Controls, General IT Controls, and Work 
Process Controls – and building a platform for the spiraling up and 
effective functioning of internal control.
     In terms of internal audit functions, the Auditing & Legal 
Affairs Office, which operates under the direction of the president, 
gives specific guidance and advice based on audits of accounting, 
business operations and systems, and internal control, which it 
conducts periodically.
     In terms of guidance from internal auditing, the division in 

■ Corporate Governance Structural Diagram

Board of Directors

Business Facilities / Related Companies

Directors
External Directors

Accounting Auditor

Chairman & CEO /
President & COOCSR Office

CSR Promotion
Committee

CSR Committee

Shareholders’ Meeting

Based on our Group Mission Statement (see p. 1), the 
strengthening of corporate governance is positioned as one of our 
most important priorities. We ensure transparency and fairness 
and promote speedy decision-making and other management 
efficiencies.
     We are engaged in corporate governance enhancements in an 
effort to respond agilely to business environment and market 
changes and improve performance while maintaining sound 
management through the creation, strengthening and practical 
management of internal control systems to maximize corporate 
value and meet our ethical and social responsibilities in 
accordance with the following basic approach.

(1) Respect the rights of shareholders, ensure fairness.

(2) Cooperate appropriately with stakeholders, taking into 
account the interests of shareholders and all other 
stakeholders.

(3) Ensure transparency and the appropriate disclosure of 
Company information

(4) The Board of Directors attempts to establish an effective 
executive supervisory function from an objective 
standpoint emphasizing the role of independent external 
directors in light of fiduciary responsibilities and 
accountability to shareholders.

(5) Strive to engage shareholders in constructive dialogue that 
contributes to sustainable growth and the maximization of 
corporate value over the medium- to long-term.

While maintaining a Board of Directors system comprising a 
small number of members to heighten the effectiveness of 
discussions at Board meetings, NICHICON appoints external 
directors and corporate auditors in an effort to maintain 
management soundness and transparency.

Board of Directors
At present, NICHICON’s Board of Directors consists of seven 
members, which is considered as a scale appropriate for promoting 
continued rapid decision-making.
     Furthermore, external directors are appointed for their high 
degree of specialization in an effort to ensure an optimal structure 
achieving diversity and an overall balance between knowledge, 
experience and skills.

Corporate Auditors
At present, NICHICON has appointed four corporate auditors who 
attend Board of Directors and other important meetings to provide 
opinions. Based on their review of the execution of business duties 
by the Board of Directors and the Company’s operational and 
financial condition, corporate auditors conduct legality audits and 
monitor business duties, including ascertaining management 
conditions, through site visits to divisional headquarters, worksites 
and Group companies.
     The Board of Corporate Auditors conducts reports on the 
condition of reciprocal business duty execution, and based on 
audit planning and implementation conditions with Accounting 
Auditors, works in close cooperation when necessary to exchange 
mutual information and opinions in an effort to improve the 
efficacy and efficiency of auditing.

Basic Approach Structural Overview

Governance

Auditing & Legal
Affairs Office

Operating Division
Directors /

Operating Officers

Internal Control
Promotion Committee

Internal Control
Committee

Board of Corporate Auditors
Corporate Auditors

External Corporate Auditors

Auditors Office
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question must formulate specific countermeasures and aim for 
ongoing improvements using the PDCA cycle–Plan, Do, Check 
and Act.

The NICHICON Group complies with relevant laws related to 
securities’ transactions and various stock exchange regulations to 
fulfill its responsibility to customers, shareholders, investors and all 
stakeholders to realize management that is fair and highly transparent.
     The Group makes a sincere effort to promptly disclose 
information in recognition of our extremely vital obligation to 
disclose important company information that impacts investment 
decisions in a timely and appropriate manner to build and maintain 
trusting relationships with shareholders and investors.

The FY2016 Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders was held 
on June 29, 2017, and attended by 84 shareholders. During the 
shareholders’ meeting, we did our best to report operating 
performance in an easy-to-understand manner, using graphs and 
other visuals. We also displayed our products at the meeting venue 
to help attendees understand our business.
     For the capacitor business, these displays centered on products 
in our focal business areas: automobiles and industrial equipment. 
For the NECST business, displays were themed on a new era of 
power storage and EV solutions and included various modules, a 
household energy storage system, a V2H system, Quick Charger 
and new V2L system, introducing our extensive range of products 
and solutions supporting an EV-oriented society. Also, 
background music was played using amplifiers and audio 
equipment that incorporate the Group’s capacitors.
     Those unable to attend the shareholders’ meeting are able to 
execute voting rights via the internet. We also hold financial 
results briefings for institutional investors at the end of the second 
quarter and the end of the year in Tokyo.

External Directors
NICHICON has three external directors (all of whom are fully 
independent) and two external corporate auditors. The external 
directors attend meetings of the Board of Directors, monitor the 
business execution of each unit, and perform oversight. The external 
corporate auditors attend meetings of the Board of Directors and the 
Board of Corporate Auditors, and also audit business operations and 
provide advice by conducting operational audits of each executing 
unit. None of the external directors or external corporate auditors 
has any special interests in the Company.

Operating Officers
NICHICON introduced an operating officer system to clarify the 
role of management monitoring and business execution functions 
in an attempt to realize speedy management and accurate and 
effective business execution through systematic decision-making in 
response to the clarification of division of duties and administrative 
authorities and the special characteristics of each department.

NICHICON has established the CSR Promotion Committee to 
build a platform for ensuring that its business conforms to the 
Companies Act and the Ordinance for Enforcement of the 
Companies Act. In addition, the Internal Control Promotion 
Committee has been established to create an internal control 
system as required by the Japanese Financial Instruments and 
Exchange Act. Both committees are chaired by the president.
     The CSR Promotion Committee has been established to 
maintain the public’s trust and avoid or prevent risk that could 
damage operations. The committee is composed of five 
sub-committees, Compliance, Competition Law Compliance 
(established in July 2016), Risk Management, Environmental 
Management, and Information Security, which meet monthly to 
confirm the status of progress in resolving each issue. The CSR 
Office and the General Administration Division currently function 
as secretariats for the committee.
     As the head secretariat for the Internal Control Promotion 
Committee, the general manager of the Financial & Accounting 
Headquarters conducts activities centered on the Financial & 
Accounting Division, E.D.P. System Division and the Corporate 
Planning Division, creating and assessing the organization and 
operating structure for Group-wide internal controls. In practice, 
this means dividing the business of the Committee into four 
discrete control categories – Company-wide Controls, Financial 
Reporting Process Controls, General IT Controls, and Work 
Process Controls – and building a platform for the spiraling up and 
effective functioning of internal control.
     In terms of internal audit functions, the Auditing & Legal 
Affairs Office, which operates under the direction of the president, 
gives specific guidance and advice based on audits of accounting, 
business operations and systems, and internal control, which it 
conducts periodically.
     In terms of guidance from internal auditing, the division in 

Establishment of Internal Control System 
and PDCA Cycle

While maintaining a Board of Directors system comprising a 
small number of members to heighten the effectiveness of 
discussions at Board meetings, NICHICON appoints external 
directors and corporate auditors in an effort to maintain 
management soundness and transparency.

Board of Directors
At present, NICHICON’s Board of Directors consists of seven 
members, which is considered as a scale appropriate for promoting 
continued rapid decision-making.
     Furthermore, external directors are appointed for their high 
degree of specialization in an effort to ensure an optimal structure 
achieving diversity and an overall balance between knowledge, 
experience and skills.

Corporate Auditors
At present, NICHICON has appointed four corporate auditors who 
attend Board of Directors and other important meetings to provide 
opinions. Based on their review of the execution of business duties 
by the Board of Directors and the Company’s operational and 
financial condition, corporate auditors conduct legality audits and 
monitor business duties, including ascertaining management 
conditions, through site visits to divisional headquarters, worksites 
and Group companies.
     The Board of Corporate Auditors conducts reports on the 
condition of reciprocal business duty execution, and based on 
audit planning and implementation conditions with Accounting 
Auditors, works in close cooperation when necessary to exchange 
mutual information and opinions in an effort to improve the 
efficacy and efficiency of auditing.

Information Disclosure

Dialogue with Shareholders and Investors

Shareholders’ Meeting

Product display
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CSR Management

The NICHICON Group enacted the NICHICON Group’s CSR 
Charter in December 2005 as Corporate Social Responsibility 
guidelines to be shared by all employees. While a company’s 
actions can greatly affect society, it is important for a company to 

engage in CSR in a proactive and serious manner in order to 
maintain its existence.
     Efforts are being made to familiarize all NICHICON Group 
employees with the NICHICON Group’s CSR Charter, together 
with the NICHICON Group’s Environmental Charter (enacted in 
December 1997; revised in July 2001) as important action 
guidelines.

The NICHICON Group has promoted CSR as a Group-wide 
activity since the establishment of the CSR Office in June 
2003.
     To ensure CSR efforts are effective, the NICHICON Group 
established a CSR Promotion Committee consisting of 
directors and operating officers organized into five 
subcommittees focused on: Compliance, Competition Law 
Compliance (established in July 2016), Risk Management, 
Environmental Management and Information Security. Each 
subcommittee incorporates individual issues and problems 
into annual business planning, confirms progress via monthly 
reports from each facility and provides guidance.
     Customer demands regarding the details and content of 
CSR corporate activities have become more diverse in recent 
years. The NICHICON Group recognizes the importance of 
the KEIDANREN (Japan Business Federation) Implementation 
Guidance on Charter of Corporate Behavior (6th version), the 

Voice

CSR Promotion Structure

Chairman & CEO /
President & COO

Auditors Office

CSR Office

Business Facilities / Related Companies

Japan Electronics and Information Technology Industries 
Association (JEITA) Supply Chain CSR Promotion Guidebook, 
ISO 26000 (Guidance on social responsibility) and the 
Electronic Industry Code of Conduct (EICC), which were 
formulated primarily by US and European electronics 
companies, and has been making an effort to incorporate 
these concepts into all of its practices.
     Having taken into consideration our experiences with 
natural disaster and nuclear accidents, as well as our 
examination of the impact such events have had on materials 
and distribution in the supply chain, the entire Group is 
engaged in ongoing improvements to its business continuity 
plan (BCP) and the implementation and entrenchment of 
business continuity management (BCM).
     At the same time, the NICHICON Group is engaging more 
deeply with social and environmental issues through expanded 
sales of environmental and energy-related products developed 
using advanced energy generation and energy storage 
technologies, public and industrial power storage systems and 
other elements to realize Vehicle-to-Home (V2H) system and 
other household energy storage system, smart grids through 
the fusion of various technologies accumulated over the years.
     The NICHICON Group also recognizes the effective and 
efficient internal controls necessary to ensure proper business 
conduct are one part of CSR activity, and we will continue 
with ongoing developments.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities

Board of Corporate Auditors
Corporate Auditors 

External Corporate Auditors

Board of Directors
Directors

External Directors

Auditing & Legal
Affairs Office

Compliance
Hotline

(Internal Reporting System)

Compliance Hotline
(Business Facilities,
Related Companies)

CSR Committee
(Business Facilities,
Related Companies)

CSR Promotion Committee
(President, Directors,
Operating Officers)

Compliance

Competition Law Compliance

Risk Management

Environmental Management

Information Security

The NICHICON Group makes a 
combined effort to promote 
CSR activities

Hirotsugu Morishita
Senior Operating Officer and 
General Manager of the CSR Office

Foundation of CSR — 
The NICHICON Group’s CSR Charter
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Compliance plays a significant role in the promotion of sound 
corporate activities in conformity with all laws, ordinances, 
internal rules, policies, codes of ethics, etc. NICHICON enacted 
the Internal Reporting System Regulations as a mechanism for 
enhancing compliance, from which it established the Compliance 
Hotline (internal reporting system).
     Specifically, points of contact and means of consultation are 
provided, and investigations are conducted when necessary, 
should reports be received. Furthermore, we thoroughly protect 
the personal information of the people who file reports so as to 
prevent them from suffering any negative effects. As such, efforts 
are being made for the prevention and early detection of 
misconduct by utilizing the Compliance Hotline.
     In July 2016, the Competition Law compliance external 
reporting hotline was established.

Compliance

In addition to the Company Credo, the Mission Statement defines 
the direction and social responsibility on which every employee 
should be focused. In October 2002, we established the 
NICHICON Group Code of Conduct as guidance for director and 
employee observance of laws and regulations and to spread shared 
ethics and values.
     Since the NICHICON Group Code of Conduct was established 
in 2002, the Electronic Industry Code of Conduct (EICC) was 
created and has been revised several times. In November 2010, 
ISO 26000 (guidance on social responsibility) was published. We 
have made adjustments concerning the social responsibilities 
called for by the EICC and ISO 26000, and in April 2013 we 
issued a revised version of the NICHICON Group Code of 
Conduct (with Japanese/English/Chinese/Malay editions) with 
extensive content enhancement.
     After issuing the revised version of the code, we presented each 
of our employees in Japan and overseas with a Code of Conduct 
Understanding Checklist, to educate everyone at each business 
facility and ensure that they are aware of and understand the 
revised code. We then scored these at the head office and returned 
them to the business facilities so that errors could be reviewed in 
order to improve understanding of the code.

The NICHICON Group has made an effort to engage in activities 
that thoroughly comply with social ethics and follow laws and 
rules to fulfill our social responsibility. However, as we have been 
suspected of violating antitrust laws in Japan and competition laws 
in other countries in the past, we have been investigated by the 
Japan Fair Trade Commission and overseas competition 
authorities. In Japan, these investigations led to cease and desist 
orders and the levying of penalties. 
     We sincerely apologize for the concern these events caused our 
shareholders and all other stakeholders.
     The NICHICON Group solemnly accepts these findings with 
sincerity and strives to strengthen compliance structures and 
educational activities to more thoroughly comply with antitrust 
laws in Japan and competition laws in other countries. In an 
attempt to further enhance the NICHICON Group competition law 
compliance structure, the Competition Law Compliance 
Subcommittee was established under the CSR Promotion 
Committee in July 2016. In addition, competition law compliance 
regulations were formulated to prevent competition law violations 
before they occur and clarify basic items that must be observed 
when executing business duties. These regulations specify the 
establishment of a competition law compliance external reporting 
hotline for reporting and consultation, the implementation of 
regular auditing by the Auditing Department related to 
competition law compliance, pre-approval and post-reporting 
procedures for the prevention and monitoring of contact with 
competitors to implement supervision and guidance of the status 
of compliance with competition laws. Furthermore, since July 
2016 we have held competition law compliance workshops mainly 
for sales divisions to ensure thorough compliance with 
competition laws in the workplace. These workshops provide 
detailed explanations of completion law compliance regulations, 
as well as numerous specific case studies taken from real incidents 
presented by lawyers. These activities have also been rolled out to 
production and overseas worksites in an effort to ensure thorough 
compliance and strengthen the Group-wide competition law 
compliance structure.

Dissemination of the NICHICON Group 
Code of Conduct (revised)

Enhanced Structure for Competition Law 
Compliance

Provision of Internal and External Consultation 
Services (Internal Reporting System)

NICHICON Group Code of Conduct (revised) (published in four languages)

Competition law compliance workshop
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Discoverer Head of Division/business facility

(In case of emergency)

Company-Wide Liaison System in the Event of 
Materialization of Risks

NICHICON Group Information Management Framework

Risk Management
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities

The NICHICON Group makes an effort to take the appropriate 
responses and countermeasures to prevent risk and minimize 
damage from the perspective of employees, trading partners, 
customers, regional communities and all our stakeholders with 
respect to systems and countermeasures for risks with the potential 
to significantly impact business, such as natural disasters and 
accidents, management risks, and political, economic and social 
risks. In an effort to maintain safe and stable corporate 
management, operations and compliance are conducted 
thoroughly in accordance with disaster and crime prevention 
management regulations and risk management regulations.
     The NICHICON Group places importance on the establishment 
of business continuity management for the quick resumption or 
continuation of business in the event of damage from a natural 
disaster or accident during the course of business activities.
     The Great East Japan Earthquake, which occurred on March 
11, 2011, provided the NICHICON Group with an opportunity to 
complete preparation of an outline for the NICHICON Group 
business continuity plan (BCP) formulation guidelines in 2012, 
and business continuity regulations incorporated the 

already-drafted business continuity plan and its management. 
Based on these activities, NICHICON is establishing business 
continuity management including continuous improvements via 
the PDCA cycle to further enhance its business continuity plan.

While convenience is increasing by leaps and bounds owing to the 
progress in computer networking, there is a danger not only of 
suffering business losses but also of losing social credibility in the 
event of information leakage or falsification. In terms of information 
security measures, the NICHICON Group established the 
Information Security Basic Policy in February 2007. The Group is 
distributing the Information Security Handbook and the NICHICON 
Employees’ Guide on “ko-do” (Think & Work)* to thoroughly 
familiarize employees with the rules and other matters concerning 
the handling of information assets, in order to ensure recognition by 
all employees of the importance of protecting information assets, as 
well as the reflection thereof in their daily work.
     At the same time, we believe that information assets can 
generate new business if our employees are able to utilize them 
strategically, although the information must be used correctly in 
performing business operations.
     The NICHICON Group will work to establish a foundation for 
stable and sustainable growth by continuing to utilize information 
assets safely and accurately.

The Risk Management Subcommittee is part of the NICHICON 
Group CSR Promotion Committee established at the Head Office. 
The Risk Management Subcommittee receives monthly activity 
reports from each facility, which it uses to confirm the content of 
their activities and provide directions.
     Beginning in FY2013, the subcommittee also began using Risk 
Management Effort Status Reports in addition to the monthly 
activity reports, with each business facility responsible for 
determining and managing important risks. The actual progress of 
such efforts and their verification are confirmed through the 
monthly reports, with guidance provided for ongoing improvement.

Ongoing Improvements to the Business 
Continuity Plan (BCP) and Business Continuity 
Management (BCM) Entrenchment Efforts

Strengthening of Information Security

Determine and Manage Important Risks

General Manager of
Administration Headquarters

General Manager
of the CSR Office

CSR Promotion Committee

Establishment of Task Force

(If risk is large in scale, etc.)

(If risk is material/significant)

General Manager of Financial & Accounting Headquarters
General Manager of Corporate Planning Headquarters
General Manager of Quality Assurance Headquarters
General Manager of Capacitor Business Headquarters
General Manager of NECST Business Headquarters

Chairman/President

Standing Corporate Auditor

* NICHICON has created this word (in the Japanese original), which refers 
to thinking and working.

General Manager of General
Administration Division of

Head Office

Head of Supervisory Division
Responsible for Risk at

Head Office

Head of Related
Responsible

Divisions

NICHICON Group CSR Charter CSR Promotion Committee Mission Statement

Related regulations, 
etc.

Information Management Provisions

Personal Information 
Management

Management of
Confidential Information of

Other Companies

Information System 
Management

Basic Policy on Information Security Personal Information Protection Policy

Information System 
Security Management

Operation Management for 
System Administrators

PC and Network 
Usage Control

Document Management Confidentiality Management Industrial Property Rights 
Management

Insider Trading 
Prevention Management

Industrial Property
Rights Control

Operation Management

Working Regulations

NICHICON Group Code of Conduct

Information Security Handbook
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CSR Activity Plan and Results

FY2016 Results FY2017 Activity Plan

P22

FY2016 Activity PlanActivity Category

•Execute compliance trainingCompliance

P22

P23

•Confirm and advise concerning BCP 
execution status

•Determine and manage important 
risks

•Promote competition law compliance 
education activities

•Introduce system of application prior 
to and after contacting competitors

Risk Management

Competition Law Compliance

P28

•Proceed with CO2 emissions reduction 
measures at business facilities and 
provide guidance and support

•Measure level of achievement of CO2 
reduction activities and introduce 
system for assessing the content of 
these activities

•Strengthen organization for activities 
at business offices

•Promote environmental training 
initiatives

Environmental Management

P23
•Continue with actual development of 
information security measures using 
checklists

Information Security

P29

•Install high-function, high-efficiency 
equipment to lead to a low-carbon 
society

•1% lower per unit of sales compared 
to FY2015

Contribution 
to a 
low-carbon 
society

•CO2 reduction

Lowering 
environmental 
load through 
products and 
technology

•Expanding the 
number of 
environmentally 
friendly products 
using core 
technology

•Expanding the 
products of 
generating, 
storing, and 
saving energy

Lowering 
environmental 
load through 
business 
activities

•Waste material 
reduction

•Reduction of 
environmental 
pollutants

Social 
contribution 
activities

•Promotion of 
beautification 
around facilities

•Promotion of / 
participation in 
regional civic 
activities

Green 
Procurement

•Thorough 
enforcement of 
non-use of 
prohibited 
substances in 
products

P30

P30

P29

P27

•Maintain 99.8% recycling rate

•Examine trends in environmental 
regulations in Japan and overseas

•Respond systematically to rules and 
regulations

P30

•Promote beautification around 
facilities

•Promote/participate in regional civic 
activities

•Continue with green procurement 
surveys and maintain procurement of 
items that comply with the green 
procurement guidelines

•Smoothly respond to chemical 
substance regulations of various 
countries

•Reduce substances of concern and 
seek to switch to substitutes

•Recited the Code of Conduct (revised 
version) and conducted training using 
case studies

•Conducted employee training that 
uses the Compliance news in the 
company bulletin

•Conducted parallel development of 
the business continuity plan (BCP) 
and business continuity management 
(BCM) at each business facility 
(Ongoing)

•Determined and managed important 
risks (Ongoing)

•Conducted competition law 
compliance education activities

•Introduced system of application prior 
to and after contacting competitors

•Promoted parallel development of 
related measures by using checklists 
at each business facility

•Upgrade air conditioning equipment / 
switch to LED lighting

•1.1% higher per unit of sale 
compared to FY2015

•Maintained a recycling rate of 99.6%

•Acquired copies of latest versions of 
the rules, such as Revised RoHS, 
REACH-Substances of Very High 
Concern (SVHC), etc., and 
responded accordingly within the 
internal control system

•Executed beautification around 
facilities

•Hosted factory tours

•Switch to alternative materials in 
response to RoHS revisions

•Procured appropriate items without 
delay in accordance with the internal 
control system

•Execute compliance training

•Confirm and advise concerning BCP 
execution status

•Determine and manage important 
risks

•Promote competition law compliance 
education activities

•Continue with system of application 
prior to and after contacting 
competitors

•Continue to improve activities for 
promoting compliance with 
competition law

•Proceed with CO2 emissions reduction 
measures at business facilities and 
provide guidance and support

•Continue introducing system for 
assessing degree of achievement of 
CO2 reduction activities and activity 
details

•Strengthen organization for activities 
at business offices

•Promote environmental training 
initiatives

•Continue with actual development of 
information security measures using 
checklists

•Install high-function, high-efficiency 
equipment to lead to a low-carbon 
society

•1% lower per unit of sales compared 
to FY2016

•Promote EV proliferation by 
expanding the lineup of quick 
chargers

•Expand the lineup of public and 
industrial power storage systems, 
from small to large, three-phase to 
single-phase

•Increase the energy storage effect by 
boosting the capacitance of 
household energy storage system. 
Develop HEMS and demand 
response capabilities

•Increased the environmental 
performance of the “EVPower 
Station” (enabled connection to 
cogeneration using high-end 
functionality, augmented FCV and 
PHV connectivity and increased 
energy-saving effects)

•Expanded the lineup of public and 
industrial power storage systems (by 
increasing the lineup of compact 10 
kW models to medium-sized 40 kW 
models, contributed to peak shift and 
energy storage)

•Household energy storage system 
(developed system equipped with 12 
kW high-capacitance storage battery)

•Promote EV proliferation by 
expanding the lineup of quick 
chargers

•Expand the lineup of public and 
industrial power storage systems, 
from small to large, three-phase to 
single-phase

•Increase the energy storage effect by 
boosting the capacitance of 
household energy storage system. 
Develop HEMS and demand 
response capabilities

•Maintain 99.8% recycling rate

•Examine trends in environmental 
regulations in Japan and overseas

•Respond systematically to rules and 
regulations

•Promote beautification around 
facilities

•Promote/participate in regional civic 
activities

•Continue with green procurement 
surveys and maintain procurement of 
items that comply with the green 
procurement guidelines

•Smoothly respond to chemical 
substance regulations of various 
countries

•Reduce substances of concern and 
seek to switch to substitutes

E
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•Promoted and provided guidance and 
support for CO2 reduction measures 
at business facilities

•Measured level of achievement of 
CO2 reduction activities and 
introduced system for assessing the 
content of these activities

•Conducted environmental training to 
employees that uses the Environment 
Newsletter in the company bulletin

Related
page(s)
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September
1991

List of Business Facilities with ISO 9001 2008 Certification

List of Business Facilities with ISO/TS 16949 Certification

November
2000 00-245

NICHICON CORPORATION HEAD OFFICE
TOKYO SALES OFFICE
NAGOYA SALES OFFICE
WEST JAPAN SALES OFFICE
POWER SUPPLY CENTER

NICHICON HI-TECH FOIL CORPORATION
NICHICON (KUSATSU) CORPORATION
NICHICON (KAMEOKA) CORPORATION
NICHICON (OHNO) CORPORATION
NICHICON (IWATE) CORPORATION
NICHICON (WAKASA) CORPORATION

TORISHIMA ELECTRIC WORKS LTD.

May 2006 AR4005NICHICON (MALAYSIA) SDN. BHD. SIRIM

May 1993 JP93/001832YUTAKA ELECTRIC MFG. CO., LTD. SGS

June 2003
(renewed)
May 2015

15/03Q0572R00
(renewed)
15/15Q5702R41

NICHICON ELECTRONICS (WUXI) CO., LTD. WIT

June 2013

April 2004

February 2013

January 2004

May 2004

May 2005

October 2012

15/13Q0483R00WUXI NICHICON ELECTRONICS R&D
CENTER CO., LTD. WIT

July 2013
(renewed)
July 2016

15/13Q0538R00
(renewed)
15/16Q6196R11

NICHICON ELECTRONICS
(SUQIAN) CO., LTD. WIT

JQA

December 
2005 03237NIPPON LINIAX CO., LTD.

MOODY
INTER-
NATIONAL

JQA-AU0031

JQA-AU0031-2

JQA-AU0013

JQA-AU0037

AR3641

No.161012148

NICHICON (OHNO) CORPORATION

NICHICON (IWATE) CORPORATION

NICHICON (MALAYSIA) SDN. BHD.

NICHICON ELECTRONICS (WUXI) CO., LTD.

JQA

SIRIM

DEKRA

Response Rate in FY2016
(%)

95

90

85

80

0

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 1 2 3 (Month)

93

Enhancing Quality and Customer Satisfaction
NICHICON and Society

The NICHICON Group develops, manufactures and sells a 
home-use Vehicle-to-Home (V2H) system, “EVPower Station,” and 
a household energy storage system, “Home Power Station.” In doing 
so, we emphasize the “consumer health & safety preservation” 
aspects of ISO 26000, the international standard on organizational 
social responsibility, and strive to provide accurate information.
     We are also in accordance with all aspects of the road vehicle 
functional safety standard ISO 26262 (issued in November 2011).

Ensuring Product Safety/
Providing Accurate Information

The NICHICON Group is a member of the Subcommittee on 
Electronic Component Safety under the Electronic Components 
Technology Standardization Strategy Committee of the Electronic 
Components Board in the Japan Electronics and Information 
Technology Industries Association (JEITA). Through this 
participation, we work to maintain or improve component 
reliability technologies and promote awareness of electronic 
component knowledge. In addition, participating in the committee 
enables us to obtain information quickly and accurately and 
respond to issues related electronic component reliability, as well 
as trends in product safety legislation and various safety standards.
     Going forward, we will continue to cooperate with equipment and 
component manufacturers on initiatives to enhance component safety 
and reliability, ultimately aiming to meet society’s safety requirements.

Boosting the Reliability of Electronic 
Components

The NICHICON Group has established a Customer Consultation 
Office to provide consultation and field requests regarding the 
BtoC*1 products it develops, manufactures and sells, such as the 
EVPower Station, a V2H system, and the Home Power Station, a 
household power storage system, and respond conscientiously to 
their inquiries. To avoid making customers wait when they call 
with inquiries and for consultations, we are working to improve 
our response rate*2.

Responding Conscientiously at the Customer 
Consultation Office

The NICHICON Group has adopted the Japanese Standards 
Association QM/QC* Examination (Certification) as an essential part 
of its quality improvement measures and is encouraging qualification 
in all departments, centering on quality management, technology and 
production units. Adherence to this standard assures Level 1 and other 
certifications, which contribute to improved quality.

Utilizing QM/QC Examination (Certification) 
to Enhance Product Quality

Names of business
facilities with certification

Date of
registration

Examination
and

registration
body

Registered
certification No.

JQA

ClassNK

JMI-0007
ISO 9001:
Transition to 2015 
version complete

Names of business
facilities with certification

Date of
registration

Examination
and

registration
body

Registered
certification No.

* Quality Management and Quality Control

*1 A contraction of “business to consumer”

*2 Response rate: An indicator of the ease of connection via telephone, 
defined as the ratio of calls responded to divided by the total number of 
incoming calls

The mission of the Customer Consultation Office is to provide 
customer feedback upstream (to the Planning, R&D, Production 
and Quality Assurance units). In addition to improving 
products, we strive to exceed customer expectations by 
responding to their issues quickly, which increases 
customer satisfaction. To expand the circle of “NICHICON 
fans,” we are doing our utmost to respond quickly, 
accurately and intelligently from the customer’s perspective. 

Resolving Customer Issues 
Quickly, Accurately and 
Intelligently

Shinichi Watanabe
Chief, Customer Consultation Office
NECST Business Headquarters

Voice
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     Also, in order to raise the motivation of employees involved in 
research and development we have instituted an “Invention 
Incentive System” to incentivize employees creating work-related 
patents, utility models and designs. In FY2016, 158 incentives 
were awarded. Also applying for external awards for superior 
patents, utility models and designs, in FY2016 we received the 
Kyoto Invention Merit Award outstanding performance award.

Human Resource Cultivation and Utilization

The NICHICON Group considers the proper awareness of human 
rights to be of paramount importance. Our Code of Conduct 
expresses this sentiment, highlighting “the basic human rights, 
dignity and privacy of all persons.”
     Based on this principle, the “Code of Conduct” is recited at our 
weekly morning assemblies as part of our efforts to prevent human 
rights violations due to sexual or power harassment.

Respect for Fundamental Human Rights and 
Human Rights Education

Each year on the Company’s anniversary, the NICHICON Group 
bestows awards on employees who have made significant 
achievements. Employees who have received awards are introduced in 
the Company bulletin in addition to receiving prizes or award money.

Commendation System and Invention 
Incentive System

The NICHICON Group knows that people are its most valuable 
managerial asset. Similarly, we believe that our employees are the 
driving force behind the Company. Therefore, we offer a wide range 
of personnel training programs. The NICHICON Group offers 
specialized courses, including new employment training, training for 
technical personnel, training for sales personnel, compliance training, 
individual class instruction, and etiquette and manners seminars.
     By collaborating with various universities, we also offer 
management of technology (MOT) education. This program is 
designed to cultivate engineers who understand management and 
managers who know the value of technology. This program, 
which has been in operation for more than 10 years, has been 
instrumental in new product development successes. In addition, 
we encourage each of our employees to obtain QM/QC 
certification and take part in a variety of correspondence courses 
to boost their skills on multiple fronts.

Education / Training System

In addition to initiatives to reduce overtime working hours, we have 
in place the Extended Child Care Leave System and the Extended 
Family Care Leave System as programs to encourage an appropriate 
balance between employees’ work and private lives and maximize 
their capabilities. Details of these systems, as well as the impressions 
and comments of those who have used the systems, are introduced in 
the Company bulletin to create a climate in which the systems can be 
used easily at all Group facilities. We have formulated an action plan 
based on the Act on Advancement of Measures to Support Raising 
Next-Generation Children and expanded our system of shortened 
working hours for maternal care and childcare to promote an 
environment that fosters a balance between work and childcare and 
nursing care. Going forward, we plan to extend these systems to 
encourage more flexible working styles.

Work-Life Balance Realization

The NICHICON Group is engaged in the promotion of diversity. 
With regard to the employment of people with physical 
disabilities, we conduct ongoing recruiting activities to maintain 
employment above the statutory employment rate. As for the 
employment of seniors, those with motivation and ability who are 
to leave their jobs after reaching retirement age are re-employed, 
and as a system in which they can utilize their skills and 
experience for the further development of the Company, we have 
instituted a post-retirement re-employment system.
     We have formulated an action plan based on the Act to Promote 
Women’s Participation and Advancement in the Workplace, and 
are endeavoring to create a working environment that encourages 
women to make the most of their capabilities. In addition, for more 
than 10 years we have hired foreign exchange students each year, 
seeking human resources who can quickly discern changes in 
global perspectives and respond to them appropriately.

Promotion of Diversity

The NICHICON Group provides periodic safety and health 
education programs to its employees. Each day, our employees 
recite the safety rules and identify any potential danger. Our 
operators also engage in kiken yochi (danger prediction) training, 
or KYT, to increase their safety and reduce the possibility of 
injury. Regarding the safety of our new employees, they are 
thoroughly educated so that every task, including on-the-job 
training (OJT), is conducted safely. 
     Making “zero occupational accidents and compliance with 
work procedures” a priority Group-wide, at the quarterly 
cross-check meetings attended by representatives from the head 
office and business facilities, participants identify problems that 
are addressed by relevant facilities along with any corrective 
measures. Meeting participants also adopt the good practices of 
other facilities in their own activities. We create similar work 
environments throughout each facility by compiling a 
Company-wide report on the status of activities at individual 
facilities and providing it to each facility.

Ensuring Occupational Safety and Health

Seminar on etiquette and manners
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Supply Chain Management Popularizing Products that 
Help Resolve External Issues

NICHICON and Society

The NICHICON Group asks its business partners for their 
understanding of its CSR philosophy, which incorporates the 
Electronic Industry Code of Conduct (EICC) and ISO 26000, the 
international standard on organizational social responsibility. In 
this manner, we fulfill our responsibility throughout the supply 
chain.
     The NICHICON Group sources materials from a variety of 
countries and regions. We also require our business partners to 
comply with the laws in each country in which they conduct their 
operations and act in accordance with social norms.
     The basic transactional agreement that we draw up with 
business partners clearly describes these expectations, as follows.

(1) We respect the human rights of our employees, provide 
safe and sanitary working environments, do not engage in 
discriminatory activities and strive to provide equal 
working opportunities.

(2) We do not engage in forced labor, child labor or the illegal 
employment of foreign nationals. We comply with the laws 
of countries and regions in which we operate with respect 
to working conditions, including employee compensation 
and working hours.

To instill awareness regarding our strict demand for the respect of 
human rights, we do not seek procurement from any business 
partners who do not understand and practice these values. 
     In December 2016, we distributed the NICHICON Group 
Supply Chain CSR Procurement Promotion Guidebook to principal 
business partners, requesting that they understand the content of 
this guidebook and the EICC standards of conduct. At the same 
time, we asked them to complete self-assessment checklists, 
enabling us to confirm the status of individual companies’ initiatives.
     Also, we have adopted a basic policy of non-use of conflict 
minerals in light of the U.S. Dodd–Frank Act and the Securities 
and Exchange Commission (SEC) disclosure rules in accordance 
with that act, and are working to improve transparency throughout 
the supply chain by sharing data with suppliers and other 
measures.

Promoting CSR in the Supply Chain

The NICHICON Group’s basic purchasing policies provide for 
ensuring that transactions are open, fair and lawful. We maintain 
thorough compliance, including with the Subcontracting Law.
     To reduce risk, we have established a business continuity plan 
(BCP) and respond appropriately to the issue of conflict minerals 
proactively and across the supply chain.

Thorough Compliance and Risk Reduction in 
the Supply Chain

In December 2016, we completed construction of our new 
NICHICON Tokyo Building in Nihonbashi, Chuo-ku, Tokyo, 
combining and relocating the Tokyo Sales Office, the POWER 
SUPPLY CENTER and Group company YUTAKA ELECTRIC 
MFG. to the new location. 
     The NICHICON Tokyo Building is a smart building, with nine 
floors above ground and one below. A power storage-type solar 
generating system is installed on its roof, and the parking lot is 
equipped with EV quick chargers powered by solar generation. 
V2H systems are also arranged to serve as energy storage systems, 
providing electricity from EVs to the building in the event of power 
outages due to disaster or other circumstances. These systems are 
the embodiment of two 
important Company themes: 
“a new era of power 
storage” and “EV solutions.”
     The NICHICON Tokyo 
Building also serves as a 
venue for verification 
experiments to further our 
proposal-making efforts in 
the aim of contributing to 
the local production of 
energy for local 
consumption and realizing 
a smart society.

Completion of the NICHICON Tokyo Building, 
Which Embodies the Themes of “A New Era of 
Power Storage” and “EV Solutions”

Group company NICHCON (KAMEOKA) CORPORATION 
received the Kyoto Environmental Conservation Merit Award 
(Environmental Top Runner Division) in June 2017. As one aspect 
of our sales promotion efforts for the EVPower Station V2H system 
and the Power Mover portable power feeder, the company provided 
EVs and Power Movers at a fireworks event in the city of Kameoka, 
with the systems providing power to illuminate the venue. Our first 
such effort in Kyoto Prefecture, the initiative earned high praise. 
     We were extremely pleased that the NICHICON Group’s 
business activities were able to contribute to the local community, 
even receiving a merit award. Encouraged by this award, going 
forward we will 
continue with initiatives 
to truly contribute to the 
local community by 
working to develop, 
produce and popularize 
products to help resolve 
environmental issues. 

Receiving the Kyoto Environmental 
Conservation Merit Award

NICHICON Tokyo Building

Kyoto Environmental Conservation Merit Award 
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Promoting Environmental 
Management

Environmental Accounting
NICHICON and the Environment

Within the NICHICON Group, the general manager of the CSR 
Office (operating officer) takes full responsibility for 
environmental management and strategies, policies, objectives and 
environmental conservation promotion activities. These 
responsibilities are discussed and decided upon by the 
Environmental Management Committee. At this time, the facilities 
are informed of the decisions made by the committee, and they 
engage in environmental management and environmental impact 
reduction activities through repetition of the PDCA cycle.
     Finally, in each domestic manufacturing facility the factory 
manager determines environmental management. The manager 
designates the environmental management system (EMS) supervisor 
and drafts an appropriate environmental conservation policy based 
on the environmental impact assessment for each facility.

Environmental Management System
In FY2000, we introduced accounting for environmental 
conservation costs to measure its effect to improve environmental 
performance and data. The calculation in the following data 
complies with the “2005 Environmental Accounting Guideline” 
made public by the Ministry of the Environment.

Idea of Environmental Accounting

With respect to environmental accounting for FY2016, the total 
environmental conservation cost was ¥1,961 million, while the 
total economic effect amounted to ¥277 million. As part of our 
capital investment for environmental conservation, we renovated 
deteriorating facilities. This included updating air conditioning 
systems at factory buildings and replacing old light fixtures with 
LED lighting to promote energy conservation. 

●Period Covered  April 1, 2016–March 31, 2017
●Range of Calculation  Manufacturing facilities in the country 

that have acquired ISO 14001 certification

FY2016 Results

In August 1996, aiming at harmonious coexistence with the global 
environment, the NICHICON Group decided to obtain ISO 14001 
environmental management system certification. Based on this 
policy, manufacturing facilities at home and abroad have already 
obtained the certification.
     During their regular reviews and renewal audits, our 
manufacturing facilities are currently undergoing audits for 
migrating to the 2015 version of ISO 14001. 

Acquisition Status of Certification of ISO 14001

As the emitter, we bear the responsibility for managing emissions 
of exhaust gases, water and waste. To meet this responsibility, we 
strive to reduce risk by complying with the standards set forth in 
laws and ordinances and managing these substances through an 
environmental risk management system based on ISO 14001.
     For waste, we conduct preliminary reviews of processing 
companies prior to outsourcing these operations, and conduct 
checks after outsourcing waste processing activities. Furthermore, 
on a daily basis we work to manage waste properly by thoroughly 
enforcing patrolled inspection of the waste storage areas and 
management based on the Industrial Waste Control Manifest. We 
also work to prevent illegal dumping and pollution accidents. 
     The NICHICON Group has established voluntary emission 
standards for air and water pollution that are stricter than the 
standards stipulated by current laws and regulations. Through 
regular testing and rigorous management, we strive to prevent 
leaks and other forms of pollution.
     We submit reports to the government on chemical substances 
targeted by the PRTR Law* after determining their handling 
amount and emission and transfer volumes. We also endeavor to 
reduce emissions into the atmosphere, water and soil of hazardous 
chemicals (subjects of Type 1 specified chemical substances in the 
PRTR).

Environmental Risk Management

Note: Please refer to our website, at http://www.nichicon.co.jp/, for details 
on facilities with ISO 14001 certification and their certification dates.

* Law concerning Pollutant Release and Transfer Register

Pollution control Global environment Research and developmentRecycling
Other (Management activity, social activity, environmental damage)

Pollution control Global environment Research and development
Other (Management activity, social activity, environmental damage)

Recycling

Reduction of used chemicals, materials, etc. Energy saving Gain on sale of recycled waste
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working to reduce CO2 by decreasing the number of product 
deliveries and moving to consolidated shipments. We expect the 
circle of such activities to spread from the facilities to our 
suppliers and local communities.
     In FY2016, we set the target of reducing CO2 emissions per 
basic unit by 1% compared with FY2015 levels. Although 
emissions decreased, the fall in CO2 emissions per basic unit was 
less pronounced than the drop in sales. We will continue working 
to improve production efficiency and reduce the percentage of 
defective products.

Aiming for the establishment of a sound material-recycling 
society, the NICHICON Group has been promoting the reduction 
and recycling of waste. We set the definition of zero emission as 
“recycling at least 98% of total waste,” and we have achieved this 
goal continuously since FY2002.
     In FY2016, we our recycling rate was 99.6% as a result of 
progress in converting waste, such as paper, scrap metal and waste 
plastic, into valuable resources.
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Reducing the Environmental Impact of Business Activities
NICHICON and the Environment

The NICHICON Group as a whole works to reduce CO2 
emissions that cause global warming. In addition to efforts to 
reduce energy consumption per basic unit by working aggressively 
to improve the efficiency of production processes that consume 
large amounts of energy and reduce the percentage of defective 
products, we are promoting the improvement and efficient 
operation of facilities, which lead to energy saving.
     Furthermore, CO2 reduction is viewed as an activity involving 
full employee participation. To give familiar examples, energy 
saving is being promoted through such ongoing efforts as 
switching to low-emissions equipment, shifting from the use of 
fuel oil to liquefied natural gas (LNG) as an energy source, proper 
management of air-conditioning temperature, switching to LED 
illumination, suspension of unnecessary lighting and equipment, 
and adoption of the practice of turning off the engine rather than 
idling when stopped during commuting by private vehicle.
     We are also asking suppliers to practice eco-driving—avoiding 
sudden starting and acceleration—as well as to cooperate with our 
Idling Stop Campaign. In distribution and logistics, we are 

Approach on the Reduction of CO2 Emissions

Waste Reduction and Recycling Initiatives

CO2 Emissions Total Waste Emissions, Amount of Recycling, Recycling Rate

Transition of Consumed Energy Breakdown of Waste Generation Final Disposal Volume
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solar power generation to alternating current and then used a 
separate power conditioner to convert electricity back to DC to 
charge the battery. Our newly developed storage system combines 
the two power conditioners into one, so that the DC power 
provided by the solar power generating system can charge the 
battery directly. This move succeeded in reducing power loss and 
making the unit more compact. 
     With this system, we expect to contribute further to household 
energy savings and the realization of a low-carbon society. 
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Reducing Environmental Impact through Our Products

The beginning of NICHICON Group’s management mission 
clearly states its dedication to “creating valued products that will 
contribute to a brighter future for society” and “striving to attain a 
better global environment.” In line with this perspective, in 
addition to reducing environmental impact during product 
manufacturing and through the substances included in our 
products, we promote the development of products that will have a 
positive impact on the environment.
     In addition to mainstay capacitors and circuit products, our 
products named “GeoXXX” are free from polyvinyl chloride, lead 
and sulfur hexafluoride (SF6). As well as preventing hazardous 
substances from polluting the atmosphere when disposed of, these 
products are smaller, so they use fewer materials, and conserve 
energy use by equipment due to their low resistance.
     Used in combination with solar power generation, the power 
storage systems and dispersed power sources provided by our 
NECST Business, as well as V2H systems using automobile 
batteries to supply household electricity, can supply power 
without emitting CO2. Accordingly, this initiative has a positive 
environmental effect. This generation produces some 160 million 
kWh per year, achieving an equivalent reduction in CO2 emissions 
of around 90,000 t.
     We will continue working to develop products such as these 
that put our mission statement into practice and help achieve a 
low-carbon society.

Generation volume / CO2 reductions 
from products in the NECST Business

The NICHICON Group has the top share in Japan in shipments of 
household storage systems (based on Company estimates in 
FY2016). Now we have begun selling a hybrid household storage 
system that uses solar power for generation and uses electricity 
even more efficiently. 
     This large-capacity, high-output storage system provides peace 
of mind in the event of a power outage. Conventional products 
used power conditioners to convert the direct current supplied by 

Development of Hybrid Household Storage 
System That Achieves Low Power Loss, 
Large Capacity and High Output

The standard products sold by the NICHICON Group comply with 
the RoHS Directive. We plan to discontinue the use of and find 
alternatives to the four phthalate esters to be newly phased out under 
this directive prior to its enforcement on July 22, 2019.
     To comply with the REACH regulations, we communicate to our 
business partners each update of the list of substances of very high 
concern that the European Chemicals Agency (ECHA) announces 
semiannually and conduct surveys on contained substances.

Complying with the RoHS Directive and 
REACH Regulations

The ninth edition of the NICHICON Group Green Procurement 
Guidelines defines 56 types of prohibited substances, four types of 
curtailed substances and eight types of controlled substances based 
on various laws and regulations. We formulate and enforce these 
guidelines to protect the environment throughout the supply chain. 
     The NICHICON Group has applied to the Ministry of Economy, 
Trade and Industry to participate in chemSHERPA, a scheme the 
ministry developed to share information on chemical substances 
contained in new products throughout the supply chain. Through the 
proactive application of chemSHERPA, we aim to reduce the 
burden on customers, including the business partners to whom we 
provide information, and contribute to the smooth adoption of 
chemSHERPA as an international standard for communicating 
information.

Managing Hazardous Substances throughout 
the Supply Chain

Promoting Product Development to Reduce 
and Improve Environmental Impact



The following risks may affect the Group’s future operating results, stock 
prices, financial circumstances and other matters.

Note: Matters reported herein regarding the future were determined by the 
Group as of the securities report submission date.

(1) Economic Situation
The Group manufactures and sells capacitors for electronics, plastic film 
capacitors, circuit products and other products worldwide. Consequently, 
demand for the Group’s products is affected by the economic situation of the 
countries or regions where the products are sold.

(2) Risk of Exchange Rate Fluctuations
In the Group’s business operations, business results and financial condition, 
items denominated in foreign currencies have been converted into yen in order 
to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The values of these items after 
the conversion to yen may be affected by exchange rate fluctuations. Although 
the Group enters into forward exchange contracts when necessary to 
reduce/hedge exchange risks, there is no guarantee that effects on the Group’s 
business results and financial circumstances can be completely eliminated.

(3) Risk of Price Competition
The Group aims to strengthen its core businesses, comprising aluminum 
electrolytic capacitors, plastic film capacitors and circuit products, and create a 
global business framework by strengthening our production bases and 
expanding sales structures in Japan and overseas by expediting the development 
of new products. These efforts notwithstanding, as the Group’s products and 
services face price competition from other businesses, the Group’s business 
operations, business results and financial circumstances may be adversely 
affected.

(4) Development Risk of New Products
The Group believes that it will continue to be able to develop and supply new 
and attractive products that anticipate customer needs. However, if the Group 
lacks the following abilities, its business operations, business results and 
financial situation may be adversely affected.
1) Ability to deal with increasingly diverse and sophisticated customer needs
2) Ability to develop and produce new products on a timely basis at a 

reasonable cost
3) Ability to induce customers to use the Group’s new products
4) Ability to use and develop new products, services and technologies
5) Ability to improve existing products, services and technologies
6) Ability to effectively predict changes in the industry and market

(5) Potential Risk of Overseas Presence
Changes in the taxation system or tax rate; other economic, social, and political 
fluctuations; shifts in foreign exchange policy; and export/import regulatory 
changes in countries and regions where the Group conducts business activities 
may have harmful effects on the Group’s businesses, achievements or financial 
circumstances.

The Group has manufacturing bases in China for aluminum electrolytic 
capacitors and other products in Wuxi and Suqian. Unforeseen developments in 
the political climate, legal environment or economic situation could negatively 
impact business in China, adversely affecting the Group’s business operations, 
business results and financial circumstances.

(6) Escalation of Raw Materials Purchase Price
Purchase prices of raw materials used for the Group’s main products are 
significantly affected by international market conditions. Escalation of those 
prices may adversely affect the Group’s business results and financial 
circumstances.

(7) Product Liability
Although the Group imposes rigorous quality control measures and 
manufactures its products according to the highest international quality control 
standards, the possibility of defective products and services provided by the 
Group remain. In addition, although covered by product liability insurance, the 
Group cannot guarantee that claimable amounts will be fully recompensed.

Losses resulting from any defect may adversely affect the Group’s business 
operations, business results, and financial circumstances due to the large costs 
involved as well as damage to the reputation of the Group.

(8) Changes in and Reinforcement of Legal Restrictions
Significant statutory and regulatory changes in countries or regions where the 
Group conducts business may adversely affect the Group’s business operations 
business results, or financial circumstances.

In addition, the business activities of the Group are subject to various 
environmental laws and regulations, and environmental responsibility is 
assumed for past, current, and future production activities. If environmental 
regulations are tightened in the future and additional obligations to remove 
hazardous and other substances are imposed, the costs of meeting such 
requirements may adversely affect the Group’s business operations, business 
results and financial circumstances.

(9) Effect of Accidents, etc.
Although the Group regularly inspects and checks all production facilities in 
order to prevent accidents, it is not guaranteed that the adverse effects of 
accidents, etc., can be completely prevented or alleviated. They may adversely 
affect the Group’s business operations, business results and financial 
circumstances.

(10) Others
The risk factors listed above do not cover all the risks regarding the business 
activities and other matters concerning the Group. Other risks may develop and 
adversely affect the Group’s business operations, business results, and financial 
circumstances.

Business Risks
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Sales
During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2017, sales of automotive components 
in the European market were robust, but sales of components for household 
electronics in Asian markets were down, and the impact of yen appreciation 
caused a decline in sales when converted to yen. Sales of automotive 
components were firm in the Japanese market, but sales of household energy 
storage systems and other circuit products decreased. As a result of these 
factors, net sales fell 8.6% year on year, to ¥100,402 million.

Overseas sales accounted for 57.4% of total sales, down 0.5 percentage point 
(¥57,622 million, down 9.3% year on year). Behind this figure were a 5.9% 
decrease in sales in the Americas, from ¥7,330 million to ¥6,896 million; a 
10.4% decrease in Europe, from ¥8,494 million to ¥7,607 million; and a 9.6% 
decrease in Asia, from ¥47,719 million to ¥43,119 million.

By sector, sales of capacitors for electronics decreased 5.8%, to ¥65,662 
million, due to lower sales for household electronics, although sales for use in 
automotive and industrial equipment were robust.

Sales of circuit products declined, falling 17.8% to ¥22,545 million, due to 
lower demand for use in power sources and household energy supply systems.

Sales of capacitors for electric apparatus and power utilities & applied 
systems and equipment dropped 4.1%, to ¥12,195 million. This decline was due 
mainly to lower sales of film capacitors for automobiles and railway cars.

Cost of sales and selling, general and administrative 
expenses
Cost of sales amounted to ¥82,622 million, down 8.3% year on year. We 
worked to lower fixed costs, reduced costs through productivity enhancements, 
bolstered product quality and engaged in extensive efforts to lower cost of sales. 
Nevertheless, our cost of sales ratio increased by 0.2 percentage point, to 
82.3%.

Selling, general and administrative (SG&A) expenses decreased 1.1%, to 
¥14,761 million. The main reasons were a ¥205 million decrease in product 
warranty provisions and ¥179 million lower sales commissions. Administrative 
expenses as a percentage of sales rose 1.1 percentage points, to 14.7%.

Operating income and income before taxes 
As a result of the above factors, operating income decreased 36.8%, to ¥3,019 
million.

In other income and expenses, the Group posted a foreign exchange gain of 
¥930 million, compared with a foreign exchange loss of ¥627 million in the 
previous fiscal year. Accordingly, net other income and expenses rose ¥5,479 
million. 

Consequently, income before income taxes was approximately 12 times 
higher, at ¥4,067 million.

Income tax, etc.
Current income tax, etc., increased 50.6% during the year, to ¥1,165 million.
     Due to the application of tax-effect accounting, the posting of deferred tax 
assets increased income taxes to ¥70 million.

As a result, the effective tax rate for the year was 28.7%, compared with 
223.1% in the preceding fiscal year.

Net Income Attributable to Non-Controlling Interests
Net income attributable to non-controlling interests came to ¥278 million, 
compared with ¥164 million in the preceding fiscal year. This decrease was 
mainly the result of an increase in net income attributable to non-controlling 
interests in consolidated subsidiaries.

Net Income Attributable to Owners of the Parent
As a result of the above factors, net income attributable to owners of the parent 
amounted to ¥2,624 million, compared with a net loss of ¥591 million in the 
preceding fiscal year. Net income per share was ¥37.68.

Comprehensive income
Comprehensive income, which consists of net income and other comprehensive 
income, amounted to income of ¥3,795 million, compared with a loss ¥4,499 
million in the preceding fiscal year. Principal factors included net income of 
¥2,902 million and a ¥3,220 million year-on-year increase in the unrealized 
gain on available-for-sale securities. Of comprehensive income, comprehensive 
income attributable to owners of the parent was ¥3,494 million, and 
comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests was ¥301 
million.

Liquidity of funds
Cash and cash equivalents stood at ¥21,279 million as of March 31, 2017, down 
¥4,578 million from the ¥25,857 million recorded on March 31, 2016.

The factors causing these changes were as follows:
Net cash provided by operating activities amounted to ¥3,310 million, 

¥6,912 million less than in the preceding fiscal year. Principal sources of cash 
included income before taxes of ¥4,067 million, a ¥987 million increase in trade 
accounts receivable and a ¥786 million decline in inventories.

Net cash used in investing activities was ¥5,358 million, ¥3,649 million 
more than in the previous fiscal year. Revenue from the sales and redemption of 
securities and investment securities provided ¥12,974 million. Major uses of 
cash included ¥5,491 million for purchases of property, plant, and equipment 
and ¥11,652 million for purchases of securities and investment securities.

Free cash flow (net cash provided by operating activities minus net cash 
used in investing activities) was a negative ¥2,048 million.

Net cash used in financing activities was ¥1,684 million, ¥773 million less 
than was used in the preceding fiscal year. Among major factors, dividends paid 
used ¥1,512 million.

Financial position
Total assets for the Group were ¥141,206 million as of March 31, 2017, up 
3.3% from one year earlier.

Current assets totaled ¥80,251 million, down 4.0%. This was mainly due to a 
¥4,578 million year-on-year decrease in cash and cash equivalents.

Property, plant and equipment (after excluding accumulated depreciation) 
amounted to ¥25,297 million, up 7.8%. Principal factors included the 
acquisition of real estate in line with the consolidation of bases in the Tokyo 
area, resulting in capital investment of ¥7,486 million. This amount outpaced 
depreciation costs.

Investments and other assets amounted to ¥35,658 million, up 20.4%. This 
was mainly because investment securities increased ¥5,329 million, to ¥29,062 
million.

At the same time, current liabilities fell 0.4%, to ¥31,036 million. This was 
mainly because trade payables, within notes and accounts payable, were down 
¥366 million year on year.

Long-term liabilities increased 18.6%, to ¥8,386 million. This change was 
mainly because deferred tax liabilities were up ¥1,418 million from the 
previous fiscal year-end.

In terms of net assets, common stock and additional paid-in capital were 
¥14,287 million and ¥17,069 million, respectively. Retained earnings increased 
¥2,291 million, to ¥69,637 million. The net unrealized gain on 
available-for-sale securities, which corresponds to the difference (after 
deducting the tax effect) between the current price and the book value of 
financial instruments (calculated by the mark-to-market accounting system of 
financial instruments), increased ¥3,220 million, to ¥8,493 million.

Foreign currency translation adjustments, which arise in the process of 
converting financial statements of foreign subsidiaries, etc., decreased ¥2,350 
million, to ¥651 million.

The outstanding balance of treasury stock as of March 31, 2017, was 
¥10,121 million. 

As a result of the above, net assets amounted to ¥101,784 million at fiscal 
year-end, up 3.4% from one year earlier, and the equity ratio stood at 70.8%, 
down 0.1 percentage point.

Financial Review
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See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. 
Dollars (Note 1)

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 2017 2016 2017

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Short-term borrowings (Notes 7 and 13)  ¥   1,800 ¥   1,800  $   16,043

Current portion of long-term debt (Note 7) 165 366  1,467

Payables (Note 13):

Trade 19,832 20,198 176,756

Unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated companies  32  31 281

Construction 1,183  1,054 10,546

Income taxes payable  792  574  7,061

Accrued expenses 6,655 6,926  59,310

Other current liabilities 577 221  5,149

Total current liabilities 31,036 31,170 276,612

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:

Long-term debt (Note 7) 390  464  3,476

Liability for retirement benefits (Note 8) 2,426 2,644  21,627

Deferred tax liabilities (Note 10) 3,643  2,225  32,473

Provision for product warranties 1,283  1,075  11,432

Other long-term liabilities 644  666  5,744

Total long-term liabilities 8,386  7,074 74,752

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Note 19)

EQUITY (Notes 9 and 17):

Common stock, authorized, 137,000,000 shares; 

issued, 78,000,000 shares in 2017 and 2016 14,287 14,287 127,332

Capital surplus 17,069 17,069 152,130

Retained earnings 69,637 67,346 620,648

Treasury stock, at cost,

8,360,947 shares in 2017 and 8,360,542 shares in 2016 (   10,121) (   10,121)  (   90,208)

Accumulated other comprehensive income:

Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities 8,493 5,273 75,694

Foreign currency translation adjustments 651 3,001 5,801

Total 100,016 96,855 891,397

Noncontrolling interests 1,768 1,585 15,763

Total equity 101,784 98,440  907,160

TOTAL ¥  141,206  ¥  136,684 $  1,258,524

NICHICON CORPORATION and Consolidated Subsidiaries
As of March 31, 2017 

Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. 
Dollars (Note 1)

ASSETS 2017 2016 2017

CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 13) ¥   21,279 ¥   25,857 $   189,654

Time deposits (Note 13) 1,219 ― 10,863

Marketable securities (Notes 4 and 13) 5,031 7,094 44,839

Receivables (Note 13):

Trade 30,692 30,219 273,555

Unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated companies 159 96 1,413

Allowance for doubtful accounts (         51) (         53) (          456)

Inventories (Note 5) 17,800 17,468 158,645

Deferred tax assets (Note 10) 677 705 6,030

Other current assets 3,445 2,215 30,707

Total current assets 80,251 83,601 715,250

PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT (Notes 2.(9), 6 and 18):

Land 5,419 4,049 48,297

Buildings and structures 38,729 37,677 345,175

Machinery and equipment 100,083 100,686 892,011

Furniture and fixtures 8,127 7,857 72,430

Lease assets 2,480 2,385 22,103

Construction in progress 336 201 2,997

Total property, plant, and equipment 155,174 152,855 1,383,013

Accumulated depreciation (129,877) (129,389) (1,157,550)

Net property, plant, and equipment 25,297 23,466 225,463

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS:

Investment securities (Notes 4 and 13) 29,062 23,733 259,026

Investments in and advances to unconsolidated subsidiaries  

and associated companies (Note 13)
4,893 4,250 43,608

Deferred tax assets (Note 10) 181 172 1,613

Asset for retirement benefit (Note 8) 238 241 2,125

Other assets 1,521 1,513 13,552

Allowance for doubtful accounts (Note 13) (       237) (       292) (       2,113)

Total investments and other assets 35,658 29,617 317,811

TOTAL ¥  141,206 ¥  136,684 $  1,258,524
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See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. 
Dollars (Note 1)

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 2017 2016 2017

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Short-term borrowings (Notes 7 and 13)  ¥   1,800 ¥   1,800  $   16,043

Current portion of long-term debt (Note 7) 165 366  1,467

Payables (Note 13):

Trade 19,832 20,198 176,756

Unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated companies  32  31 281

Construction 1,183  1,054 10,546

Income taxes payable  792  574  7,061

Accrued expenses 6,655 6,926  59,310

Other current liabilities 577 221  5,149

Total current liabilities 31,036 31,170 276,612

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:

Long-term debt (Note 7) 390  464  3,476

Liability for retirement benefits (Note 8) 2,426 2,644  21,627

Deferred tax liabilities (Note 10) 3,643  2,225  32,473

Provision for product warranties 1,283  1,075  11,432

Other long-term liabilities 644  666  5,744

Total long-term liabilities 8,386  7,074 74,752

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Note 19)

EQUITY (Notes 9 and 17):

Common stock, authorized, 137,000,000 shares; 

issued, 78,000,000 shares in 2017 and 2016 14,287 14,287 127,332

Capital surplus 17,069 17,069 152,130

Retained earnings 69,637 67,346 620,648

Treasury stock, at cost,

8,360,947 shares in 2017 and 8,360,542 shares in 2016 (   10,121) (   10,121)  (   90,208)

Accumulated other comprehensive income:

Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities 8,493 5,273 75,694

Foreign currency translation adjustments 651 3,001 5,801

Total 100,016 96,855 891,397

Noncontrolling interests 1,768 1,585 15,763

Total equity 101,784 98,440  907,160

TOTAL ¥  141,206  ¥  136,684 $  1,258,524

NICHICON CORPORATION and Consolidated Subsidiaries
As of March 31, 2017 

Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. 
Dollars (Note 1)

ASSETS 2017 2016 2017

CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 13) ¥   21,279 ¥   25,857 $   189,654

Time deposits (Note 13) 1,219 ― 10,863

Marketable securities (Notes 4 and 13) 5,031 7,094 44,839

Receivables (Note 13):

Trade 30,692 30,219 273,555

Unconsolidated subsidiaries and associated companies 159 96 1,413

Allowance for doubtful accounts (         51) (         53) (          456)

Inventories (Note 5) 17,800 17,468 158,645

Deferred tax assets (Note 10) 677 705 6,030

Other current assets 3,445 2,215 30,707

Total current assets 80,251 83,601 715,250

PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT (Notes 2.(9), 6 and 18):

Land 5,419 4,049 48,297

Buildings and structures 38,729 37,677 345,175

Machinery and equipment 100,083 100,686 892,011

Furniture and fixtures 8,127 7,857 72,430

Lease assets 2,480 2,385 22,103

Construction in progress 336 201 2,997

Total property, plant, and equipment 155,174 152,855 1,383,013

Accumulated depreciation (129,877) (129,389) (1,157,550)

Net property, plant, and equipment 25,297 23,466 225,463

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS:

Investment securities (Notes 4 and 13) 29,062 23,733 259,026

Investments in and advances to unconsolidated subsidiaries  

and associated companies (Note 13)
4,893 4,250 43,608

Deferred tax assets (Note 10) 181 172 1,613

Asset for retirement benefit (Note 8) 238 241 2,125

Other assets 1,521 1,513 13,552

Allowance for doubtful accounts (Note 13) (       237) (       292) (       2,113)

Total investments and other assets 35,658 29,617 317,811

TOTAL ¥  141,206 ¥  136,684 $  1,258,524
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Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. 
Dollars (Note 1)

2017 2016 2017

NET SALES (Note 18)  ¥  100,402  ¥  109,816  $  894,845

COST OF SALES (Note 12) 82,622 90,114  736,376

Gross profit 17,780 19,702  158,469

SELLING, GENERAL, AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (Notes 11 and 12) 14,761 14,924 131,560

Operating income 3,019 4,778 26,909

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES):

Interest and dividend income 523  644 4,663

Interest expense (         25)    (         37) (       222)

Foreign exchange gain (loss), net 930    (       627) 8,293

Equity in earnings (losses) of associated companies 100   (         98) 891

Gain on sales and disposals of property, plant, and equipment, net 150  541 1,335

Loss on impairment of long-lived assets (Note 6) (       218) (       480) (    1,940)

Losses relating to antitrust laws (       586) (    4,051) (    5,226)

Write-down of investment securities (         69) ― (       614)

Gain on sales of investment securities 40 ― 357

Other, net 203   (       323) 1,806

Other income (expenses), net 1,048  (    4,431) 9,343

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES 4,067 347 36,252

INCOME TAXES (Note 10):

Current 1,095 943 9,766

Deferred 70    (       169) 624

Total income taxes 1,165  774 10,390

NET INCOME (LOSS) 2,902    (       427) 25,862

NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS 278  164 2,476

NET INCOME (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT  ¥   2,624 ¥(       591)  $    23,386

Yen U.S. Dollars (Note 1)

PER SHARE OF COMMON STOCK (Notes 2.(19) and 16):

Basic net income (loss) ¥   37.68 ¥(   8.49)  $   0.34

Cash dividends applicable to the year 21.00 20.00  0.19

Thousands Millions of Yen

Accumulated Other 
Comprehensive Income 

Number of
Shares of

Common Stock 
Outstanding

Common
Stock

Capital
Surplus

Retained
Earnings

Treasury
Stock

Unrealized 
Gain  on 

Available-for-
Sale Securities

Foreign 
Currency

Translation 
Adjustments

Total Noncontrolling 
Interests Total Equity

BALANCE, APRIL 1, 2015 70,122  14,287 17,069 69,265       (  9,558)  7,500  4,735  103,298 1,657  104,955
Net loss attribute to owners of the parent ― ― ― (    591) ― ― ― (      591) ― (      591)
Cash dividends, ¥19.0 per share ― ― ― ( 1,328) ― ― ― (   1,328) ―    (   1,328)
Purchase of treasury stock (    483) ― ― ― (     563) ― ― (      563) ― (      563)
Disposal of treasury stock 0 ― (        0) ― 0 ― ― 0 ― 0
Net change in the year ― ― ― ― ―  (2,227)  (1,734) (   3,961)  ( 72) (   4,033)

BALANCE, APRIL 1, 2016 69,639  14,287  17,069 67,346 (10,121)  5,273  3,001  96,855 1,585  98,440
Net income attribute to owners of the parent ― ― ―  2,624 ― ― ―  2,624 ―  2,624
Cash dividends, ¥21.0 per share ― ― ― ( 1,393) ― ― ― (   1,393) ― (   1,393)
Purchase of treasury stock 0 ― ― ― (         0) ― ― (          0) ― (          0)
Disposal of treasury stock (        0) ― (        0) ― 0 ― ― 0 ― 0
Change of scope of equity method ― ― ―  1,060 ― ― ―  1,060 ―  1,060
Net change in the year ― ― ― ― ―  3,220  (2,350)  870 183  1,053

BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2017 69,639  ¥ 14,287 ¥ 17,069  ¥ 69,637  ¥(10,121) ¥ 8,493  ¥     651 ¥ 100,016 ¥ 1,768  ¥ 101,784

Thousands of U.S. Dollars (Note 1)

Accumulated Other 
Comprehensive Income 

Common
Stock

Capital
Surplus

Retained
Earnings

Treasury
Stock

Unrealized 
Gain  on 

Available-for-
Sale Securities

Foreign 
Currency

Translation 
Adjustments

Total Noncontrolling 
Interests Total Equity

BALANCE, APRIL 1, 2016 $ 127,332 $ 152,130 $ 600,234  $ (90,208) $ 46,997 $ 26,742 $ 863,227 $ 14,133 $ 877,360
Net income attribute to owners of the parent — —  23,386 — — —  23,386 —  23,386
Cash dividends, $0.19 per share — — (  12,413) — — —  (  12,413) — ( 12,413)
Purchase of treasury stock — — — (         0) — —  (           0) — (          0)
Disposal of treasury stock — (          0) —  0 — —  0 —  0
Change of scope of equity method — — 9,441 — — —  9,441 —  9,441
Net change in the year — — — — 28,697  (20,941)  7,756  1,630  9,386

BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2017 $ 127,332  $ 152,130 $ 620,648  $(90,208) $ 75,694  $   5,801 $ 891,397 $ 15,763 $ 907,160

Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. 
Dollars (Note 1)

2017 2016 2017
NET INCOME (LOSS) ¥ 2,902 ¥(   427) $ 25,862

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) (Note 15):
Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale securities 3,220 (2,253) 28,696

Foreign currency translation adjustments (2,070) (1,804) (18,439)

Share of other comprehensive loss in associates (   257) (     15) (  2,291)

Total other comprehensive income (loss) 893 (4,072) 7,966

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) ¥ 3,795 ¥(4,499) $ 33,828

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Owners of the parent ¥ 3,494 ¥(4,553) $ 31,142

Noncontrolling interests 301 54 2,686

NICHICON CORPORATION and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the Year Ended March 31, 2017

NICHICON CORPORATION and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the Year Ended March 31, 2017

NICHICON CORPORATION and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the Year Ended March 31, 2017

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

See notes to consolidated financial statements. 

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. 
Dollars (Note 1)

2017 2016 2017

NET SALES (Note 18)  ¥  100,402  ¥  109,816  $  894,845

COST OF SALES (Note 12) 82,622 90,114  736,376

Gross profit 17,780 19,702  158,469

SELLING, GENERAL, AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (Notes 11 and 12) 14,761 14,924 131,560

Operating income 3,019 4,778 26,909

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES):

Interest and dividend income 523  644 4,663

Interest expense (         25)    (         37) (       222)

Foreign exchange gain (loss), net 930    (       627) 8,293

Equity in earnings (losses) of associated companies 100   (         98) 891

Gain on sales and disposals of property, plant, and equipment, net 150  541 1,335

Loss on impairment of long-lived assets (Note 6) (       218) (       480) (    1,940)

Losses relating to antitrust laws (       586) (    4,051) (    5,226)

Write-down of investment securities (         69) ― (       614)

Gain on sales of investment securities 40 ― 357

Other, net 203   (       323) 1,806

Other income (expenses), net 1,048  (    4,431) 9,343

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES 4,067 347 36,252

INCOME TAXES (Note 10):

Current 1,095 943 9,766

Deferred 70    (       169) 624

Total income taxes 1,165  774 10,390

NET INCOME (LOSS) 2,902    (       427) 25,862

NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS 278  164 2,476

NET INCOME (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT  ¥   2,624 ¥(       591)  $    23,386

Yen U.S. Dollars (Note 1)

PER SHARE OF COMMON STOCK (Notes 2.(19) and 16):

Basic net income (loss) ¥   37.68 ¥(   8.49)  $   0.34

Cash dividends applicable to the year 21.00 20.00  0.19

Thousands Millions of Yen

Accumulated Other 
Comprehensive Income 

Number of
Shares of

Common Stock 
Outstanding

Common
Stock

Capital
Surplus

Retained
Earnings

Treasury
Stock

Unrealized 
Gain  on 

Available-for-
Sale Securities

Foreign 
Currency

Translation 
Adjustments

Total Noncontrolling 
Interests Total Equity

BALANCE, APRIL 1, 2015 70,122  14,287 17,069 69,265       (  9,558)  7,500  4,735  103,298 1,657  104,955
Net loss attribute to owners of the parent ― ― ― (    591) ― ― ― (      591) ― (      591)
Cash dividends, ¥19.0 per share ― ― ― ( 1,328) ― ― ― (   1,328) ―    (   1,328)
Purchase of treasury stock (    483) ― ― ― (     563) ― ― (      563) ― (      563)
Disposal of treasury stock 0 ― (        0) ― 0 ― ― 0 ― 0
Net change in the year ― ― ― ― ―  (2,227)  (1,734) (   3,961)  ( 72) (   4,033)

BALANCE, APRIL 1, 2016 69,639  14,287  17,069 67,346 (10,121)  5,273  3,001  96,855 1,585  98,440
Net income attribute to owners of the parent ― ― ―  2,624 ― ― ―  2,624 ―  2,624
Cash dividends, ¥21.0 per share ― ― ― ( 1,393) ― ― ― (   1,393) ― (   1,393)
Purchase of treasury stock 0 ― ― ― (         0) ― ― (          0) ― (          0)
Disposal of treasury stock (        0) ― (        0) ― 0 ― ― 0 ― 0
Change of scope of equity method ― ― ―  1,060 ― ― ―  1,060 ―  1,060
Net change in the year ― ― ― ― ―  3,220  (2,350)  870 183  1,053

BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2017 69,639  ¥ 14,287 ¥ 17,069  ¥ 69,637  ¥(10,121) ¥ 8,493  ¥     651 ¥ 100,016 ¥ 1,768  ¥ 101,784

Thousands of U.S. Dollars (Note 1)

Accumulated Other 
Comprehensive Income 

Common
Stock

Capital
Surplus

Retained
Earnings

Treasury
Stock

Unrealized 
Gain  on 

Available-for-
Sale Securities

Foreign 
Currency

Translation 
Adjustments

Total Noncontrolling 
Interests Total Equity

BALANCE, APRIL 1, 2016 $ 127,332 $ 152,130 $ 600,234  $ (90,208) $ 46,997 $ 26,742 $ 863,227 $ 14,133 $ 877,360
Net income attribute to owners of the parent — —  23,386 — — —  23,386 —  23,386
Cash dividends, $0.19 per share — — (  12,413) — — —  (  12,413) — ( 12,413)
Purchase of treasury stock — — — (         0) — —  (           0) — (          0)
Disposal of treasury stock — (          0) —  0 — —  0 —  0
Change of scope of equity method — — 9,441 — — —  9,441 —  9,441
Net change in the year — — — — 28,697  (20,941)  7,756  1,630  9,386

BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2017 $ 127,332  $ 152,130 $ 620,648  $(90,208) $ 75,694  $   5,801 $ 891,397 $ 15,763 $ 907,160

Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. 
Dollars (Note 1)

2017 2016 2017
NET INCOME (LOSS) ¥ 2,902 ¥(   427) $ 25,862

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) (Note 15):
Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale securities 3,220 (2,253) 28,696

Foreign currency translation adjustments (2,070) (1,804) (18,439)

Share of other comprehensive loss in associates (   257) (     15) (  2,291)

Total other comprehensive income (loss) 893 (4,072) 7,966

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) ¥ 3,795 ¥(4,499) $ 33,828

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Owners of the parent ¥ 3,494 ¥(4,553) $ 31,142

Noncontrolling interests 301 54 2,686

NICHICON CORPORATION and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the Year Ended March 31, 2017

NICHICON CORPORATION and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the Year Ended March 31, 2017

NICHICON CORPORATION and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the Year Ended March 31, 2017

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

See notes to consolidated financial statements. 

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. 
Dollars (Note 1)

2017 2016 2017

OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Income before income taxes ¥   4,067 ¥      347 $   36,252

Adjustments for: 

Income taxes paid (     386) (  1,263) (    3,437)

Depreciation and amortization 3,436 4,378 30,628

Gain on sales and disposals of property, plant, and equipment, net (     150) (     541) (    1,335)

Changes in assets and liabilities:

(Increase) decrease in trade accounts receivable (     987) 505 (    8,797)

(Increase) decrease in inventories (     786) 750 (    7,007)

Increase in trade accounts payable 3,990 100 35,560

(Decrease) increase in accrued expenses and other current liabilities (     248) 707 (    2,212)

Decrease in liability for retirement benefits (     217) (     203) (    1,937)

Losses relating to antitrust laws 586 4,051 5,226

Surcharge paid (  3,640) (    411) (  32,444)

Other, net (  2,357) 1,802 (  20,994)

Total adjustments (     757) 9,875 (    6,749)

Net cash provided by operating activities 3,310 10,222 29,503

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Payments into time deposits (  1,219) ― (  10,863)

Purchases of marketable and investment securities (11,652) (  9,913) (103,847)

Proceeds from sales and redemption of marketable and investment securities 12,974 11,805 115,637

Payments for long-term loans ― (     150) ―

Purchases of property, plant, and equipment (  5,491) (  2,141) (  48,945)

Collection of long-term loans receivable 119 226 1,056

Payments for transfer of business ― ( 2,382) ―

Other, net (       89) 846 (       792)

Net cash used in investing activities (  5,358) (  1,709) (  47,753)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Purchases of treasury stock (         0) (     563) (           4)

Dividends paid (  1,512) (  1,453) (  13,470)

Other, net (     172) (     441) (    1,533)

Net cash used in financing activities (  1,684) (  2,457) (  15,006)

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION ADJUSTMENTS ON  
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(     847) (  1,096) (    7,546)

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (  4,578) 4,960 (  40,803)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 25,857 20,897 230,457

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR ¥21,279 ¥25,857 $   189,654

NICHICON CORPORATION and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the Year Ended March 31, 2017

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with the provisions set forth in the Japanese Financial Instruments 
and Exchange Act and its related accounting regulations and in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in Japan (“Japanese GAAP”), which 
are different in certain respects as to the application and disclosure requirements 
of International Financial Reporting Standards.
 In preparing these consolidated financial statements, certain reclassifications 
and rearrangements have been made to the consolidated financial statements 
issued domestically in order to present them in a form which is more familiar to 
readers outside Japan.  In addition, certain reclassifications have been made in 

the 2016 consolidated financial statements to conform them to the classifications 
used in 2017.
 The consolidated financial statements are stated in Japanese yen, the 
currency of the country in which NICHICON CORPORATION (the 
“Company”) is incorporated and operates.  The translations of Japanese yen 
amounts into U.S. dollar amounts are included solely for the convenience of 
readers outside Japan and have been made at the rate of ¥112.20 to $1, the 
approximate rate of exchange at March 31, 2017.  Such translations should not 
be construed as representations that the Japanese yen amounts could be 
converted into U.S. dollars at that or any other rate.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(1) Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements as of March 31, 2017, include the accounts of the Company and its 21 (22 in 2016) significant subsidiaries (together, the 
“Group”), which are listed below. 

(2)  Unification of Accounting Policies Applied to 
Foreign Subsidiaries for the Consolidated Financial 
Statements

Under Accounting Standards Board of Japan (“ASBJ”) Practical Issues Task 
Force (“PITF”) No. 18, “Practical Solution on Unification of Accounting Policies 
Applied to Foreign Subsidiaries for the Consolidated Financial Statements,” the 
accounting policies and procedures applied to a parent company and its 
subsidiaries for similar transactions and events under similar circumstances 
should in principle be unified for the preparation of the consolidated financial 
statements.  However, financial statements prepared by foreign subsidiaries in 
accordance with either International Financial Reporting Standards or the 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification—
“FASB ASC”) tentatively may be used for the consolidation process, except for 
the following items should be adjusted in the consolidation process so that net 
income is accounted for in accordance with Japanese GAAP, unless  

Under the control and influence concepts, those companies in which the 
Company, directly or indirectly, is able to exercise control over operations are 
fully consolidated, and those companies over which the Group has the ability 
to exercise significant influence are accounted for by the equity method. 
 Investment in two (one in 2016) associated companies are accounted for by 
the equity method.  Investments in five (five in 2016) unconsolidated 
subsidiaries and two (three in 2016) associated companies are stated at cost.  If 
the equity method of accounting had been applied to the investments in these 
companies, the effect on the accompanying consolidated financial statements 
would not have been material.
 All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been 
eliminated in consolidation.  All material unrealized profit included in assets 
resulting from transactions within the Group is also eliminated.
 
FPCAP ELECTRONICS (SUZHOU) CO., LTD. was liquidated and excluded 
from the consolidated financial statements for year ended March 31, 2017.

*1  Although the consolidated subsidiaries “NICHICON ELECTRONICS TRADING (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD.” have a closing date falling on December 31, the 
consolidated financial statements contained herein are based on the statements of provisional settlement of accounts, which were performed on the consolidated 
closing date.

NICHICON HI-TECH FOIL CORPORATION
NICHICON (KUSATSU) CORPORATION
NICHICON (KAMEOKA) CORPORATION
NICHICON (OHNO) CORPORATION
NICHICON (IWATE) CORPORATION 
NICHICON (WAKASA) CORPORATION
TORISHIMA ELECTRIC WORKS LTD.
NIPPON LINIAX CO., LTD.
YUTAKA ELECTRIC MFG. CO., LTD.
NICHICON (AMERICA) CORPORATION
NICHICON (HONG KONG) LTD.
NICHICON (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.
NICHICON (MALAYSIA) SDN. BHD.
NICHICON (TAIWAN) CO., LTD.
NICHICON (AUSTRIA) GmbH
NICHICON (THAILAND) CO., LTD.
NICHICON ELECTRONICS (WUXI) CO., LTD.
NICHICON ELECTRONICS TRADING (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
NICHICON ELECTRONICS TRADING (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD.  *1
WUXI NICHICON ELECTRONICS R&D CENTER CO., LTD. 
NICHICON ELECTRONICS (SUQIAN) CO., LTD.

Japan
Japan
Japan
Japan
Japan
Japan
Japan
Japan
Japan
USA

China (Hong Kong)
Singapore
Malaysia
Taiwan
Austria

Thailand
China
China
China
China
China

100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
  49.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%

March 31
March 31
March 31
March 31
March 31
March 31
March 31
March 31
March 31
March 31
March 31
March 31
March 31
March 31
March 31
March 31

December 31
December 31
December 31
December 31
December 31

Name
Country and Jurisdiction of 

Incorporation
Equity Ownership Percentage  

at March 31, 2017
Fiscal 

Year End
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Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. 
Dollars (Note 1)

2017 2016 2017

OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Income before income taxes ¥   4,067 ¥      347 $   36,252

Adjustments for: 

Income taxes paid (     386) (  1,263) (    3,437)

Depreciation and amortization 3,436 4,378 30,628

Gain on sales and disposals of property, plant, and equipment, net (     150) (     541) (    1,335)

Changes in assets and liabilities:

(Increase) decrease in trade accounts receivable (     987) 505 (    8,797)

(Increase) decrease in inventories (     786) 750 (    7,007)

Increase in trade accounts payable 3,990 100 35,560

(Decrease) increase in accrued expenses and other current liabilities (     248) 707 (    2,212)

Decrease in liability for retirement benefits (     217) (     203) (    1,937)

Losses relating to antitrust laws 586 4,051 5,226

Surcharge paid (  3,640) (    411) (  32,444)

Other, net (  2,357) 1,802 (  20,994)

Total adjustments (     757) 9,875 (    6,749)

Net cash provided by operating activities 3,310 10,222 29,503

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Payments into time deposits (  1,219) ― (  10,863)

Purchases of marketable and investment securities (11,652) (  9,913) (103,847)

Proceeds from sales and redemption of marketable and investment securities 12,974 11,805 115,637

Payments for long-term loans ― (     150) ―

Purchases of property, plant, and equipment (  5,491) (  2,141) (  48,945)

Collection of long-term loans receivable 119 226 1,056

Payments for transfer of business ― ( 2,382) ―

Other, net (       89) 846 (       792)

Net cash used in investing activities (  5,358) (  1,709) (  47,753)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Purchases of treasury stock (         0) (     563) (           4)

Dividends paid (  1,512) (  1,453) (  13,470)

Other, net (     172) (     441) (    1,533)

Net cash used in financing activities (  1,684) (  2,457) (  15,006)

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION ADJUSTMENTS ON  
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(     847) (  1,096) (    7,546)

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (  4,578) 4,960 (  40,803)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 25,857 20,897 230,457

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR ¥21,279 ¥25,857 $   189,654

NICHICON CORPORATION and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the Year Ended March 31, 2017

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with the provisions set forth in the Japanese Financial Instruments 
and Exchange Act and its related accounting regulations and in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in Japan (“Japanese GAAP”), which 
are different in certain respects as to the application and disclosure requirements 
of International Financial Reporting Standards.
 In preparing these consolidated financial statements, certain reclassifications 
and rearrangements have been made to the consolidated financial statements 
issued domestically in order to present them in a form which is more familiar to 
readers outside Japan.  In addition, certain reclassifications have been made in 

the 2016 consolidated financial statements to conform them to the classifications 
used in 2017.
 The consolidated financial statements are stated in Japanese yen, the 
currency of the country in which NICHICON CORPORATION (the 
“Company”) is incorporated and operates.  The translations of Japanese yen 
amounts into U.S. dollar amounts are included solely for the convenience of 
readers outside Japan and have been made at the rate of ¥112.20 to $1, the 
approximate rate of exchange at March 31, 2017.  Such translations should not 
be construed as representations that the Japanese yen amounts could be 
converted into U.S. dollars at that or any other rate.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(1) Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements as of March 31, 2017, include the accounts of the Company and its 21 (22 in 2016) significant subsidiaries (together, the 
“Group”), which are listed below. 

(2)  Unification of Accounting Policies Applied to 
Foreign Subsidiaries for the Consolidated Financial 
Statements

Under Accounting Standards Board of Japan (“ASBJ”) Practical Issues Task 
Force (“PITF”) No. 18, “Practical Solution on Unification of Accounting Policies 
Applied to Foreign Subsidiaries for the Consolidated Financial Statements,” the 
accounting policies and procedures applied to a parent company and its 
subsidiaries for similar transactions and events under similar circumstances 
should in principle be unified for the preparation of the consolidated financial 
statements.  However, financial statements prepared by foreign subsidiaries in 
accordance with either International Financial Reporting Standards or the 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification—
“FASB ASC”) tentatively may be used for the consolidation process, except for 
the following items should be adjusted in the consolidation process so that net 
income is accounted for in accordance with Japanese GAAP, unless  

Under the control and influence concepts, those companies in which the 
Company, directly or indirectly, is able to exercise control over operations are 
fully consolidated, and those companies over which the Group has the ability 
to exercise significant influence are accounted for by the equity method. 
 Investment in two (one in 2016) associated companies are accounted for by 
the equity method.  Investments in five (five in 2016) unconsolidated 
subsidiaries and two (three in 2016) associated companies are stated at cost.  If 
the equity method of accounting had been applied to the investments in these 
companies, the effect on the accompanying consolidated financial statements 
would not have been material.
 All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been 
eliminated in consolidation.  All material unrealized profit included in assets 
resulting from transactions within the Group is also eliminated.
 
FPCAP ELECTRONICS (SUZHOU) CO., LTD. was liquidated and excluded 
from the consolidated financial statements for year ended March 31, 2017.

*1  Although the consolidated subsidiaries “NICHICON ELECTRONICS TRADING (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD.” have a closing date falling on December 31, the 
consolidated financial statements contained herein are based on the statements of provisional settlement of accounts, which were performed on the consolidated 
closing date.

NICHICON HI-TECH FOIL CORPORATION
NICHICON (KUSATSU) CORPORATION
NICHICON (KAMEOKA) CORPORATION
NICHICON (OHNO) CORPORATION
NICHICON (IWATE) CORPORATION 
NICHICON (WAKASA) CORPORATION
TORISHIMA ELECTRIC WORKS LTD.
NIPPON LINIAX CO., LTD.
YUTAKA ELECTRIC MFG. CO., LTD.
NICHICON (AMERICA) CORPORATION
NICHICON (HONG KONG) LTD.
NICHICON (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.
NICHICON (MALAYSIA) SDN. BHD.
NICHICON (TAIWAN) CO., LTD.
NICHICON (AUSTRIA) GmbH
NICHICON (THAILAND) CO., LTD.
NICHICON ELECTRONICS (WUXI) CO., LTD.
NICHICON ELECTRONICS TRADING (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
NICHICON ELECTRONICS TRADING (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD.  *1
WUXI NICHICON ELECTRONICS R&D CENTER CO., LTD. 
NICHICON ELECTRONICS (SUQIAN) CO., LTD.

Japan
Japan
Japan
Japan
Japan
Japan
Japan
Japan
Japan
USA

China (Hong Kong)
Singapore
Malaysia
Taiwan
Austria

Thailand
China
China
China
China
China

100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
  49.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%
100.0%

March 31
March 31
March 31
March 31
March 31
March 31
March 31
March 31
March 31
March 31
March 31
March 31
March 31
March 31
March 31
March 31

December 31
December 31
December 31
December 31
December 31

Name
Country and Jurisdiction of 

Incorporation
Equity Ownership Percentage  

at March 31, 2017
Fiscal 

Year End

37 38

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Consolidated Financial Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Consolidated Financial Statements

NICHICON CORPORATION and Consolidated Subsidiaries
As of and for the Year Ended March 31, 2017
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they are not material:  
 (1) amortization of goodwill; (2) scheduled amortization of actuarial gain or 
loss of pensions that has been directly recorded in the equity through other 
comprehensive income; (3) expensing capitalized development costs of research 
and development (“R&D”); and (4) cancellation of the fair value model 
accounting for property, plant, and equipment and investment properties and 
incorporation of the cost model accounting.

(3)  Unification of Accounting Policies Applied to 
Foreign-Associated Companies for the Equity 
Method

ASBJ Statement No. 16, “Accounting Standard for Equity Method of 
Accounting for Investments,” requires adjustments to be made to conform the 
associate’s accounting policies for similar transactions and events under similar 
circumstances to those of the parent company when the associate’s financial 
statements are used in applying the equity method, unless it is impracticable to 
determine such adjustments.  In addition, financial statements prepared by 
foreign-associated companies in accordance with either International Financial 
Reporting Standards or the accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America tentatively may be used in applying the equity method 
if the following items are adjusted so that net income is accounted for in 
accordance with Japanese GAAP, unless they are not material:  
 (1) amortization of goodwill; (2) scheduled amortization of actuarial gain or 
loss of pensions that has been recorded in equity through other comprehensive 
income; (3) expensing capitalized development costs of R&D; and (4) 
cancellation of the fair value model accounting for property, plant, and 
equipment and investment properties and incorporation of the cost model 
accounting.

(4)  Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are composed of cash on hand, bank deposits that are 
able to be withdrawn on demand, and highly liquid time deposits with an 
insignificant risk of changes in value and that have maturities of three months or 
less when purchased.

(5) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, determined by the average method for 
finished products and work in process, and by the moving-average method 
principally for raw materials and supplies, or net selling value. 

(6)  Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The allowance for doubtful accounts is stated in amounts considered to be 
appropriate based on the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries’ past credit 
loss experience and an evaluation of potential losses in the receivables 
outstanding. 

(7)  Provision for Product Warranties

A provision for product warranties is provided to cover the cost of all services 
anticipated to be incurred during the entire warranty period and based on past 
experience.

(8)  Marketable and Investment Securities

Marketable and investment securities are classified and accounted for, depending 
on management’s intent, as follows:  

i) Held-to-maturity debt securities, for which there is a positive intent and 
ability to hold to maturity, are reported at amortized cost.

ii)  Available-for-sale securities, which are not classified as the 
aforementioned securities, are reported at fair value, with unrealized 
gains and losses, net of applicable taxes, reported as a separate 
component of equity.

Nonmarketable available-for-sale securities are stated at cost determined by the 
moving-average method.  For other-than-temporary declines in fair value, 
investment securities are reduced to net realizable value by a charge to income.

(9) Property, Plant, and Equipment
Property, plant, and equipment are stated at cost.  Depreciation of property, plant, 
and equipment of the Company and its consolidated domestic subsidiaries is 
computed substantially by the declining balance method, while the straight-line 
method is applied to buildings acquired on or after April 1, 1998, and building 
improvements and structures acquired on or after April 1, 2016, and lease assets.  
Depreciation of consolidated foreign subsidiaries is computed principally by the 
straight-line method.  The range of useful lives is from 7 to 50 years for 
buildings and structures, and from 4 to 11 years for machinery and equipment.  
The useful lives for lease assets are the terms of the respective leases.
 Pursuant to an amendment to the corporate Tax Act, the Company adopted 
ASBJ PITF No. 32, “Practical Solution on a change in depreciation method due 
to Tax Reform 2016” and changed the depreciation method for building 
improvements and structures acquired on or after April 1, 2016, from the 
declining-balance method to the straight-line method.  The effect of this change 
was not significant.
 Under certain conditions, such as exchanges of similar kinds of fixed assets, 
sales, and purchases resulting from expropriation and acquisitions made with the 
benefit of a government subsidy, Japanese tax laws permit companies to defer 
the profit arising from such transactions by reducing the cost of the assets 
acquired or by providing a special reserve in the equity section.  The cumulative 
reduction in acquisition cost of property, plant, and equipment as of March 31, 
2017 and 2016, were ¥7,104 million ($63,316 thousand) and ¥6,543 million, 
respectively.
 
(10) Long-Lived Assets
The Group reviews its long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or 
changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount of an asset or asset group 
may not be recoverable.  An impairment loss would be recognized if the carrying 
amount of an asset or asset group exceeds the sum of the undiscounted future 
cash flows expected to result from the continued use and eventual disposition of 
the asset or asset group.  The impairment loss would be measured as the amount 
by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, which 
is the higher of the discounted cash flows from the continued use and eventual 
disposition of the asset or the net selling price at disposition. 

(11) Capitalized Computer Software Costs
Capitalized computer software costs comprise costs related to software used in 
the Group’s business.  Amortization of capitalized computer software costs, 
which are included in “Other assets” in investments and other assets, is 
computed using the straight-line method over five years, the estimated useful life 
of the assets.

(12) Retirement and Pension Plans
Under the terms of the Company’s retirement plans, employees of the Company 
with more than three years of service are generally entitled to receive lump-sum 
payments at the time of retirement.  The amount of the retirement benefit is, in 
general, determined based on the length of service, the cause of retirement, and 
the remuneration at the time of retirement.
 The Company and certain consolidated domestic subsidiaries have 
noncontributory, funded defined benefit pension plans and severance lump-sum 
payment plans.  The Company and certain consolidated overseas subsidiaries 
have defined contribution pension plans.
 The Company accounts for the liability for retirement benefits based on the 
projected benefit obligations and plan assets at the consolidated balance sheet 
date.  The projected benefit obligations are attributed to periods on a benefit 
formula basis.  Past service costs and actuarial gains and losses are charged or 
credited to income as incurred. 

(13) R&D Costs
R&D costs are charged to income as incurred.

(14) Leases
Finance lease transactions are capitalized by recognizing lease assets and lease 
obligations in the balance sheet.All other lease are accounted for as operating 
lease.

(15) Income Taxes
The provision for income taxes is computed based on the pretax income included 
in the consolidated statement of operations.  The asset and liability approach is 
used to recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax 
consequences of temporary differences between the carrying amounts and the tax 
bases of assets and liabilities.  Deferred taxes are measured by applying currently 
enacted tax laws to the temporary differences.  The Company applied ASBJ 
Guidance No. 26, “Guidance on Recoverability of Deferred Tax Assets,” 
effective April 1, 2016.  There was no impact from this for the year ended March 
31, 2017.

(16) Foreign Currency Transactions
Both short-term and long-term monetary receivables and payables denominated 
in foreign currencies are translated into Japanese yen at the exchange rates in 
effect at the consolidated balance sheet date.  The foreign exchange gains and 
losses from translation are recognized in the consolidated statement of operations 
to the extent that they are not hedged by forward exchange contracts. 

(17) Foreign Currency Financial Statements
The balance sheet accounts of the consolidated foreign subsidiaries are translated 
into Japanese yen at the current exchange rate as of the consolidated balance 
sheet date, except for equity, which is translated at the historical rate.  
Differences arising from such translation are shown as “Foreign currency 
translation adjustments” under accumulated other comprehensive income in a 
separate component of equity.  Revenue and expense accounts of consolidated 
foreign subsidiaries are translated into yen at the average exchange rate.  

(18) Derivatives and Hedging Activities
The Group uses derivative financial instruments to manage its exposures to 
fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates.  Foreign exchange forward 
contracts are utilized by the Group to reduce foreign currency exchange rate 
risks.  The Group does not enter into derivatives for trading or speculative 
purposes.
 The foreign currency forward contracts employed to hedge foreign exchange 
exposures for export sales are measured at fair value and the unrealized gains/
losses are recognized in income.  Forward contracts applied for forecasted (or 
committed) transactions are also measured at fair value, but the unrealized gains/
losses are deferred until the underlying transactions are completed.
 
(19) Per Share Information
Basic net income per share is computed by dividing net income available to 
common shareholders by the weighted-average number of common shares 
outstanding for the period, retroactively adjusted for stock splits.  Diluted net 
income per share is not presented due to the absence of dilutive securities.
 Cash dividends per share presented in the accompanying consolidated 
statement of operations are dividends applicable to the respective years, 
including dividends to be paid after the end of the year.

(20) Accounting Changes and Error Corrections
Under ASBJ Statement No. 24, “Accounting Standard for Accounting Changes 
and Error Corrections,” and ASBJ Guidance No. 24, “Guidance on Accounting 
Standard for Accounting Changes and Error Corrections,” accounting treatments 
are required as follows:  (1) Changes in Accounting Policies - When a new 
accounting policy is applied with revision of accounting standards, the new 
policy is applied retrospectively, unless the revised accounting standards include 
specific transitional provisions.  When the revised accounting standards include 
specific transitional provisions, an entity shall comply with the specific 
transitional provisions.  (2) Changes in Presentation - When the presentation of 
financial statements is changed, prior-period financial statements are reclassified 
in accordance with the new presentation.  (3) Changes in Accounting Estimates 
- A change in an accounting estimate is accounted for in the period of the change 
if the change affects that period only, and is accounted for prospectively if the 
change affects both the period of the change and future periods.  (4) Corrections 
of Prior-Period Errors - When an error in prior-period financial statements is 
discovered, those statements are restated.
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they are not material:  
 (1) amortization of goodwill; (2) scheduled amortization of actuarial gain or 
loss of pensions that has been directly recorded in the equity through other 
comprehensive income; (3) expensing capitalized development costs of research 
and development (“R&D”); and (4) cancellation of the fair value model 
accounting for property, plant, and equipment and investment properties and 
incorporation of the cost model accounting.

(3)  Unification of Accounting Policies Applied to 
Foreign-Associated Companies for the Equity 
Method

ASBJ Statement No. 16, “Accounting Standard for Equity Method of 
Accounting for Investments,” requires adjustments to be made to conform the 
associate’s accounting policies for similar transactions and events under similar 
circumstances to those of the parent company when the associate’s financial 
statements are used in applying the equity method, unless it is impracticable to 
determine such adjustments.  In addition, financial statements prepared by 
foreign-associated companies in accordance with either International Financial 
Reporting Standards or the accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America tentatively may be used in applying the equity method 
if the following items are adjusted so that net income is accounted for in 
accordance with Japanese GAAP, unless they are not material:  
 (1) amortization of goodwill; (2) scheduled amortization of actuarial gain or 
loss of pensions that has been recorded in equity through other comprehensive 
income; (3) expensing capitalized development costs of R&D; and (4) 
cancellation of the fair value model accounting for property, plant, and 
equipment and investment properties and incorporation of the cost model 
accounting.

(4)  Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are composed of cash on hand, bank deposits that are 
able to be withdrawn on demand, and highly liquid time deposits with an 
insignificant risk of changes in value and that have maturities of three months or 
less when purchased.

(5) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, determined by the average method for 
finished products and work in process, and by the moving-average method 
principally for raw materials and supplies, or net selling value. 

(6)  Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The allowance for doubtful accounts is stated in amounts considered to be 
appropriate based on the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries’ past credit 
loss experience and an evaluation of potential losses in the receivables 
outstanding. 

(7)  Provision for Product Warranties

A provision for product warranties is provided to cover the cost of all services 
anticipated to be incurred during the entire warranty period and based on past 
experience.

(8)  Marketable and Investment Securities

Marketable and investment securities are classified and accounted for, depending 
on management’s intent, as follows:  

i) Held-to-maturity debt securities, for which there is a positive intent and 
ability to hold to maturity, are reported at amortized cost.

ii)  Available-for-sale securities, which are not classified as the 
aforementioned securities, are reported at fair value, with unrealized 
gains and losses, net of applicable taxes, reported as a separate 
component of equity.

Nonmarketable available-for-sale securities are stated at cost determined by the 
moving-average method.  For other-than-temporary declines in fair value, 
investment securities are reduced to net realizable value by a charge to income.

(9) Property, Plant, and Equipment
Property, plant, and equipment are stated at cost.  Depreciation of property, plant, 
and equipment of the Company and its consolidated domestic subsidiaries is 
computed substantially by the declining balance method, while the straight-line 
method is applied to buildings acquired on or after April 1, 1998, and building 
improvements and structures acquired on or after April 1, 2016, and lease assets.  
Depreciation of consolidated foreign subsidiaries is computed principally by the 
straight-line method.  The range of useful lives is from 7 to 50 years for 
buildings and structures, and from 4 to 11 years for machinery and equipment.  
The useful lives for lease assets are the terms of the respective leases.
 Pursuant to an amendment to the corporate Tax Act, the Company adopted 
ASBJ PITF No. 32, “Practical Solution on a change in depreciation method due 
to Tax Reform 2016” and changed the depreciation method for building 
improvements and structures acquired on or after April 1, 2016, from the 
declining-balance method to the straight-line method.  The effect of this change 
was not significant.
 Under certain conditions, such as exchanges of similar kinds of fixed assets, 
sales, and purchases resulting from expropriation and acquisitions made with the 
benefit of a government subsidy, Japanese tax laws permit companies to defer 
the profit arising from such transactions by reducing the cost of the assets 
acquired or by providing a special reserve in the equity section.  The cumulative 
reduction in acquisition cost of property, plant, and equipment as of March 31, 
2017 and 2016, were ¥7,104 million ($63,316 thousand) and ¥6,543 million, 
respectively.
 
(10) Long-Lived Assets
The Group reviews its long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or 
changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount of an asset or asset group 
may not be recoverable.  An impairment loss would be recognized if the carrying 
amount of an asset or asset group exceeds the sum of the undiscounted future 
cash flows expected to result from the continued use and eventual disposition of 
the asset or asset group.  The impairment loss would be measured as the amount 
by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, which 
is the higher of the discounted cash flows from the continued use and eventual 
disposition of the asset or the net selling price at disposition. 

(11) Capitalized Computer Software Costs
Capitalized computer software costs comprise costs related to software used in 
the Group’s business.  Amortization of capitalized computer software costs, 
which are included in “Other assets” in investments and other assets, is 
computed using the straight-line method over five years, the estimated useful life 
of the assets.

(12) Retirement and Pension Plans
Under the terms of the Company’s retirement plans, employees of the Company 
with more than three years of service are generally entitled to receive lump-sum 
payments at the time of retirement.  The amount of the retirement benefit is, in 
general, determined based on the length of service, the cause of retirement, and 
the remuneration at the time of retirement.
 The Company and certain consolidated domestic subsidiaries have 
noncontributory, funded defined benefit pension plans and severance lump-sum 
payment plans.  The Company and certain consolidated overseas subsidiaries 
have defined contribution pension plans.
 The Company accounts for the liability for retirement benefits based on the 
projected benefit obligations and plan assets at the consolidated balance sheet 
date.  The projected benefit obligations are attributed to periods on a benefit 
formula basis.  Past service costs and actuarial gains and losses are charged or 
credited to income as incurred. 

(13) R&D Costs
R&D costs are charged to income as incurred.

(14) Leases
Finance lease transactions are capitalized by recognizing lease assets and lease 
obligations in the balance sheet.All other lease are accounted for as operating 
lease.

(15) Income Taxes
The provision for income taxes is computed based on the pretax income included 
in the consolidated statement of operations.  The asset and liability approach is 
used to recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax 
consequences of temporary differences between the carrying amounts and the tax 
bases of assets and liabilities.  Deferred taxes are measured by applying currently 
enacted tax laws to the temporary differences.  The Company applied ASBJ 
Guidance No. 26, “Guidance on Recoverability of Deferred Tax Assets,” 
effective April 1, 2016.  There was no impact from this for the year ended March 
31, 2017.

(16) Foreign Currency Transactions
Both short-term and long-term monetary receivables and payables denominated 
in foreign currencies are translated into Japanese yen at the exchange rates in 
effect at the consolidated balance sheet date.  The foreign exchange gains and 
losses from translation are recognized in the consolidated statement of operations 
to the extent that they are not hedged by forward exchange contracts. 

(17) Foreign Currency Financial Statements
The balance sheet accounts of the consolidated foreign subsidiaries are translated 
into Japanese yen at the current exchange rate as of the consolidated balance 
sheet date, except for equity, which is translated at the historical rate.  
Differences arising from such translation are shown as “Foreign currency 
translation adjustments” under accumulated other comprehensive income in a 
separate component of equity.  Revenue and expense accounts of consolidated 
foreign subsidiaries are translated into yen at the average exchange rate.  

(18) Derivatives and Hedging Activities
The Group uses derivative financial instruments to manage its exposures to 
fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates.  Foreign exchange forward 
contracts are utilized by the Group to reduce foreign currency exchange rate 
risks.  The Group does not enter into derivatives for trading or speculative 
purposes.
 The foreign currency forward contracts employed to hedge foreign exchange 
exposures for export sales are measured at fair value and the unrealized gains/
losses are recognized in income.  Forward contracts applied for forecasted (or 
committed) transactions are also measured at fair value, but the unrealized gains/
losses are deferred until the underlying transactions are completed.
 
(19) Per Share Information
Basic net income per share is computed by dividing net income available to 
common shareholders by the weighted-average number of common shares 
outstanding for the period, retroactively adjusted for stock splits.  Diluted net 
income per share is not presented due to the absence of dilutive securities.
 Cash dividends per share presented in the accompanying consolidated 
statement of operations are dividends applicable to the respective years, 
including dividends to be paid after the end of the year.

(20) Accounting Changes and Error Corrections
Under ASBJ Statement No. 24, “Accounting Standard for Accounting Changes 
and Error Corrections,” and ASBJ Guidance No. 24, “Guidance on Accounting 
Standard for Accounting Changes and Error Corrections,” accounting treatments 
are required as follows:  (1) Changes in Accounting Policies - When a new 
accounting policy is applied with revision of accounting standards, the new 
policy is applied retrospectively, unless the revised accounting standards include 
specific transitional provisions.  When the revised accounting standards include 
specific transitional provisions, an entity shall comply with the specific 
transitional provisions.  (2) Changes in Presentation - When the presentation of 
financial statements is changed, prior-period financial statements are reclassified 
in accordance with the new presentation.  (3) Changes in Accounting Estimates 
- A change in an accounting estimate is accounted for in the period of the change 
if the change affects that period only, and is accounted for prospectively if the 
change affects both the period of the change and future periods.  (4) Corrections 
of Prior-Period Errors - When an error in prior-period financial statements is 
discovered, those statements are restated.
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Marketable and investment securities at March 31, 2017 and 2016, consisted of the following:

Millions of Yen Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2017 2016 2017

Current:
Government and corporate bonds ¥   3,011 ¥   5,516 $   26,839
Other 2,020 1,578 18,000
Total ¥   5,031 ¥   7,094 $   44,839

Noncurrent:
Marketable equity securities ¥ 21,101 ¥ 16,281 $ 188,078
Government and corporate bonds 7,792 7,283 69,442
Unlisted equity securities 169 169 1,506
Total ¥ 29,062 ¥ 23,733 $ 259,026

Any marketable and investment securities whose fair values cannot be reliably determined at March 31, 2017 and 2016, were as follows:

Millions of Yen Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2017 2016 2017

Noncurrent:
Available-for-sale equity securities ¥    169 ¥     169 $  1,506

4. MARKETABLE AND INVESTMENT SECURITIES

The costs and aggregate fair values of marketable and investment securities at March 31, 2017 and 2016, were as follows: 

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2017 Cost Unrealized Gains Unrealized Losses Fair Value

Securities classified as: 
Available-for-sale equity securities ¥  10,975 ¥  12,233 ¥   87 ¥   23,121
Held-to-maturity debt securities   10,803   23  9   10,817

The information for available-for-sale securities, which were sold during the year ended March 31, 2017, is as follows: 

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2017 Proceeds Realized Gains Realized Losses

Available-for-sale: Equity securities ¥   60 ¥   40 ¥ ─

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

March 31, 2017 Proceeds Realized Gains Realized Losses

Available-for-sale: Equity securities $ 535 $ 357 $ ─

There were no proceeds from the sale of available-for-sale securities for the year ended March 31, 2016.
The impairment loss on investment securities for the year ended March 31, 2017 was ¥69 million ($614 thousand).

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

March 31, 2017 Cost Unrealized Gains Unrealized Losses Fair Value

Securities classified as: 
Available-for-sale equity securities $ 97,824 $ 109,028 $ 774 $ 206,078
Held-to-maturity debt securities 96,281 212 83 96,410

March 31, 2016
Securities classified as: 

Available-for-sale equity securities ¥   8,739 ¥     7,928 ¥  386 ¥   16,281
Held-to-maturity debt securities 12,799 35 4 12,830

Inventories at March 31, 2017 and 2016, consisted of the following:

Millions of Yen Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2017 2016 2017

Finished products ¥    7,227 ¥    6,844 $    64,413

Work in process 4,839 5,541 43,127

Raw materials and supplies 5,734 5,083 51,105
Total ¥  17,800 ¥  17,468 $  158,645

The components of the impairment loss on long-lived assets for the year ended March 31, 2017, were as follows: 

Use Location Classification Millions of Yen Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

Assets for business Saitama Prefecture, etc. Buildings and structures, etc. ¥ 218 $ 1,940
Total ¥ 218 $ 1,940

5. INVENTORIES

6. LONG-LIVED ASSETS

The Group reviewed its long-lived assets for impairment as of March 31, 
2017.  As a result, the Group recognized an impairment loss of ¥218 million 
($1,940 thousand) in other expenses.  Due to a decline in the profitability of 
YUTAKA ELECTRIC MFG, CO., LTD., the carrying amount of the relevant 

The Group reviewed its long-lived assets for impairment as of March 31, 2016.  
As a result, the Group recognized an impairment loss of ¥480 million in other 
expenses for the conductive polymer aluminum solid electrolytic capacitors 
group.  Due to a continuous operating loss at that unit, the carrying amount of 

assets was written down to the recoverable amount as of March 31, 2017.  The 
recoverable amount of the assets for business was measured at the estimated 
net selling value based on the appraised value.

the relevant assets was written down to the recoverable amount as of March 31, 
2016.  The recoverable amount of the assets for business was measured at its 
value in use, and the discount rate used for computation of the present value of 
future cash flows was 6%. 

The components of the impairment loss on long-lived assets for the year ended March 31, 2016, were as follows: 

Use Location Classification Millions of Yen

Assets for business Suqian, China, etc. Machinery and equipment, etc. ¥ 480
Total ¥ 480

3. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

No significant business combinations were recognized in 2017 and 2016.
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Marketable and investment securities at March 31, 2017 and 2016, consisted of the following:

Millions of Yen Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2017 2016 2017

Current:
Government and corporate bonds ¥   3,011 ¥   5,516 $   26,839
Other 2,020 1,578 18,000
Total ¥   5,031 ¥   7,094 $   44,839

Noncurrent:
Marketable equity securities ¥ 21,101 ¥ 16,281 $ 188,078
Government and corporate bonds 7,792 7,283 69,442
Unlisted equity securities 169 169 1,506
Total ¥ 29,062 ¥ 23,733 $ 259,026

Any marketable and investment securities whose fair values cannot be reliably determined at March 31, 2017 and 2016, were as follows:

Millions of Yen Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2017 2016 2017
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Long-term debt at March 31, 2017 and 2016, consisted of the following:

Millions of Yen Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2017 2016 2017
Obligations under finance leases ¥     555 ¥     830 $   4,943
Less current portion (165) (366) (1,467)
Long-term debt, less current portion ¥     390 ¥     464 $   3,476

(1) The changes in defined benefit obligation for the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, were as follows (excluding the above simplified method):

Millions of Yen Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2017 2016 2017
Balance at beginning of year ¥  8,894 ¥  8,468 $  79,274

Current service cost 560 544 4,990
Interest cost 71 67 632
Actuarial losses 83 83 741
Benefits paid (   386) (   268) (  3,448)

Balance at end of year ¥  9,222 ¥  8,894 $  82,189

(2) The changes in plan assets for the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, were as follows (excluding the above simplified method):

Millions of Yen Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2017 2016 2017
Balance at beginning of year ¥  6,477 ¥  5,769 $  57,732

Expected return on plan assets 97 87 866
Actuarial (losses) gains (     30) 37 (     268)
Contributions from the employer 853 840 7,600
Benefits paid (   377) (   256) (  3,362)

Balance at end of year ¥  7,020 ¥  6,477 $  62,568

(3) The changes in defined benefit obligation calculated using the simplified method for the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, were as follows:

Millions of Yen Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2017 2016 2017
Balance at beginning of year ¥(14) ¥ 148 $(126)
Benefit costs 91 59 813
Benefits paid (40) (  27) (354)
Contributions from the employer (51) (  46) (454)
Effect of change in the scope of consolidation ─ ¥(148) ─
Balance at end of year ¥(14) ¥(  14) $(121)

(5) The components of net periodic benefit costs for the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, were as follows: 

Millions of Yen Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2017 2016 2017
Service cost ¥ 560 ¥ 544 $ 4,990
Interest cost 71 67 632
Expected return on plan assets (  97) (  87) (   866)
Recognized actuarial losses 113 46 1,009
Benefit costs calculated using the simplified method 91 59 813
Net periodic benefit costs ¥ 738 ¥ 629 $ 6,578

(4) Reconciliation between the liability recorded in the consolidated balance sheet and the balances of defined benefit obligation and plan assets was as follows 
(including the above simplified method):

Millions of Yen Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2017 2016 2017
Funded defined benefit obligation ¥ 9,492 ¥ 9,182 $ 84,599
Plan assets (7,731)  (7,196) (68,900)

1,761 1,986 15,699
Unfunded defined benefit obligation 427 417 3,803
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation ¥ 2,188 ¥ 2,403 $ 19,502

Millions of Yen Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2017 2016 2017
Liability for retirement benefits ¥ 2,426 ¥ 2,644 $ 21,627
Asset for retirement benefits (   238) (   241) (  2,125)
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation ¥ 2,188 ¥ 2,403 $ 19,502

Annual maturities of long-term debt as of March 31, 2017, for the next five years were as follows:

Year Ending March 31 Millions of Yen Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2018 ¥ 165 $ 1,467
2019 179 1,595
2020 112 997
2021 68 607
2022 31 277
Total ¥ 555 $ 4,943

7. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS AND LONG-TERM DEBT

Short-term borrowings at March 31, 2017 and 2016, consisted of notes to banks and bank overdrafts.  
 The weighted-average annual interest rates applicable to the short-term borrowings at March 31, 2017 and 2016, were 0.2% and 0.3%, respectively.

8. RETIREMENT AND PENSION PLANS

Under the pension plans, employees of the Company with more than three 
years of service are generally entitled to receive lump-sum payments at the 
time of retirement.  Employees terminating their employment are, in most 
circumstances, entitled to pension payments based on their average pay 

The Company has entered into loan commitment agreements amounting to 
¥13,500 million ($120,321 thousand) and ¥13,500 million with four banks as 
of March 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.  Under these loan commitment 

during their employment, length of service, and certain other factors.
 The defined benefit obligations of certain subsidiaries are calculated 
using a simplified method, which is permitted for small-size companies in 
accordance with the accounting standard for retirement benefits.

agreements, ¥1,800 million ($16,043 thousand) and ¥1,800 million has been 
executed as of March 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
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9. EQUITY

Japanese companies are subject to the Companies Act of Japan (the 
“Companies Act”).  The significant provisions in the Companies Act that affect 
financial and accounting matters are summarized below:

a. Dividends
Under the Companies Act, companies can pay dividends at any time during 
the fiscal year in addition to the year-end dividend upon resolution at the 
shareholders’ meeting.  Additionally, for companies that meet certain 
criteria, such as (1) having a Board of Directors; (2) having independent 
auditors; (3) having an audit and supervisory board; and (4) the term of 
service of the directors being prescribed as one year rather than the normal 
two-year term by its articles of incorporation.  However, the Company does 
not meet all the above criteria.
 The Companies Act permits companies to distribute dividends-in-kind 
(non-cash assets) to shareholders subject to a certain limitation and 
additional requirements.
 Semiannual interim dividends may also be paid once a year upon 
resolution by the Board of Directors if the articles of incorporation of the 
Company so stipulate.  The Companies Act provides certain limitations on 
the amounts available for dividends or the purchase of treasury stock.  The 
limitation is defined as the amount available for distribution to the 
shareholders, but the amount of net assets after dividends must be 
maintained at no less than ¥3 million.

b. Increases/Decreases and Transfer of Common Stock, Reserve, and 
Surplus
The Companies Act requires that an amount equal to 10% of dividends must 
be appropriated as a legal reserve (a component of retained earnings) or as 
additional paid-in capital (a component of capital surplus) depending on the 
equity account charged upon the payment of such dividends until the 
aggregate amount of legal reserve and additional paid-in capital equals 25% 
of the common stock.  Under the Companies Act, the total amount of 
additional paid-in capital and legal reserve may be reversed without 
limitation.  
 The Companies Act also provides that common stock, legal reserve, 
additional paid-in capital, other capital surplus, and retained earnings can be 
transferred among the accounts within equity under certain conditions upon 
resolution of the shareholders.

c. Treasury Stock and Treasury Stock Acquisition Rights
The Companies Act also provides for companies to purchase treasury stock 
and dispose of such treasury stock by resolution of the board of directors.  
The amount of treasury stock purchased cannot exceed the amount available 
for distribution to the shareholders, which is determined by a specific 
formula. 
 Under the Companies Act, stock acquisition rights are now presented as 
a separate component of equity.
 The Companies Act also provides that companies can purchase both 
treasury stock acquisition rights and treasury stock.  Such treasury stock 
acquisition rights are presented as a separate component of equity or 
deducted directly from stock acquisition rights.

10. INCOME TAXES

The Company and its domestic subsidiaries are subject to Japanese national 
and local income taxes, which, in the aggregate, resulted in a normal effective 
statutory tax rate of approximately 30.8% for the year ended March 31, 2017 

and 33.0% for the year ended March 31, 2016.  Consolidated foreign 
subsidiaries are subject to income taxes in the countries in which they operate.

The tax effects of significant temporary differences and tax loss carryforwards, which resulted in deferred tax assets and liabilities at March 31, 2017 and 2016, are 
as follows:

Millions of Yen Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2017 2016 2017
Deferred tax assets:

Liability for retirement benefits ¥    669 ¥    783 $   5,962
Allowance for doubtful accounts 7 6 60
Allowance for accrued bonuses 305 300 2,718
Expenses for environmental protection measures 839 874 7,476
Property, plant, and equipment 1,966 2,200 17,518
Tax loss carryforwards 3,953 4,216 35,236
Other 1,042 845 9,293
Less valuation allowance (7,797) (8,187)     (69,492)
Total deferred tax assets 984 1,037 8,771

Deferred tax liabilities:
Net unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities 3,667 2,283 32,683
Reserve for advanced depreciation of noncurrent assets    25 25 226
Other 82 94 729
Total deferred tax liabilities 3,774 2,402 33,638

Net deferred tax liabilities ¥ 2,790 ¥ 1,365 $ 24,867

A reconciliation between the normal effective statutory tax rates and the actual effective tax rates reflected in the accompanying consolidated statements of 
operations for the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, is as follows:

2017 2016
Normal effective statutory tax rate 30.8% 33.0% 

Expenses not deductible for income tax purposes 6.1   347.3
Per capita inhabitant tax 0.7    8.3
Foreign withholdings tax (  3.8)   69.4
Difference between Japanese and foreign tax rates (  5.5)   (  20.4)
Changes in valuation allowance (  0.2)  (339.5)
Equity in (earnings) losses of associated companies (  0.8)  9.4
Amendment of deferred tax asset by revising tax rate ─ 113.5
Other, net 1.4   2.1

Actual effective tax rate 28.7% 223.1%

(6) Plan assets
a. Components of plan assets

Plan assets as of March 31, 2017 and 2016, consisted of the following:

2017 2016
Life insurance company general accounts 84.9% 84.7%
Debt investments 14.7 15.0
Equity investments 0.2 0.3
Others 0.2 0.0
Total 100.0% 100.0%

(7) Assumptions used for the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, were set forth as follows:

2017 2016
Discount rate 0.8% 0.8%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 1.5% 1.5%

b. Method of determining the expected rate of return on plan assets
The expected rate of return on plan assets is determined considering the long-term rates of return, which are expected currently and in the future from 
the various components of the plan assets.

The Company determines the compensation increase index in accordance with the Company’s human resources and wage policy for the calculation of the 
defined benefit obligation.  The Company uses the indices as of November 30, 2016 and 2015, for the calculation as of March 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

The amount of contributions which the Company and certain consolidated overseas subsidiaries should contribute under the defined contribution plan is ¥27 
million ($239 thousand) and ¥26 million for the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
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(a) Fair value of financial instruments
Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. Dollars

March 31, 2017 Carrying
Amount Fair Value Unrealized Gain/

Loss
Carrying
Amount Fair Value Unrealized Gain/

Loss

Cash and cash equivalents ¥ 21,279 ¥ 21,279 ¥    ─ $ 189,654 $ 189,654  $       ─
Time deposits 1,219 1,219 ─ 10,863 10,863 ─

Receivables (net) 30,800 30,800 ─ 274,512 274,512 ─

Marketable and investment securities:

Held-to-maturity securities 10,803 10,817 14 96,281 96,410 129

Available-for-sale equity securities    23,121 23,121 ─ 206,078 206,078 ─

Investments in associated companies       479 855 376 4,266 7,623 3,357

Advances to unconsolidated subsidiaries     1,216 ─ ─ 10,839 ─ ─

Allowance for doubtful accounts     (         2) ─ ─    (         20) ─ ─

Advances to unconsolidated subsidiaries (net)     1,214 1,214 ─ 10,819 10,819 ─
Total ¥ 88,915 ¥ 89,305 ¥ 390 $ 792,473 $ 795,959 $ 3,486

Short-term borrowings ¥   1,800 ¥   1,800 ¥    ─ $   16,043 $   16,043 $       ─
Payables    21,047 21,047 ─ 187,583 187,583 ─

Total ¥ 22,847 ¥ 22,847 ¥    ─ $ 203,626 $ 203,626 $       ─

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2016 Carrying
Amount Fair Value Unrealized Gain/

Loss

Cash and cash equivalents ¥ 25,857 ¥ 25,857  ¥    ─

Receivables (net) 30,262 30,262 ─

Marketable and investment securities:

Held-to-maturity securities    12,799 12,830 31

Available-for-sale equity securities    16,281 16,281 ─

Investments in associated companies       529 618 89

Advances to unconsolidated subsidiaries     1,334 ─ ─

Allowance for doubtful accounts  (        66) ─ ─

Advances to unconsolidated subsidiaries (net)     1,268 1,268 ─

Total ¥ 86,996 ¥ 87,116 ¥ 120

Short-term borrowings ¥   1,800 ¥   1,800 ¥    ─
Payables 21,283 21,283 ─

Total ¥ 23,083 ¥ 23,083 ¥    ─

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Time Deposits, and Receivables
The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, time deposits, and receivables 
approximate fair value because of their short maturities. 

Marketable and Investment Securities
The fair values of marketable and investment securities are measured at the 
quoted market price of the stock exchange for the equity instruments, and at the 
quoted price obtained from the financial institution for certain debt instruments.  
Fair value information for the marketable and investment securities by 
classification is included in Note 4.

Investments in Associated Companies
The fair value of investments in an associated company is measured at the quoted 
market price of the stock exchange for the equity instruments.

Advances to Unconsolidated Subsidiaries
The fair values of advances to unconsolidated subsidiaries based on floating 
interest rates are determined by book values because their market value 
approximates book value.

Payables, Short-Term Borrowings
The carrying values of payables and short-term borrowings approximate fair 
value because of their short maturities.

11. SELLING, GENERAL, AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Selling, general, and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations for the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, consisted of 
the following:

Millions of Yen Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2017 2016 2017
Freight charges ¥   2,358 ¥   2,398 $   21,018
Advertising 288 236 2,565
Employees’ salary and bonuses 4,341 4,360 38,691
Net periodic retirement benefit costs 228 214 2,032
Provision for bonuses 239 228 2,129
R&D expenses 1,077 939 9,601
Provision for product warranties 208 413 1,853
Depreciation and amortization 246 239 2,196
Commission 2,013 1,987 17,938
Others 3,763 3,910 33,537
Total ¥ 14,761 ¥ 14,924 $ 131,560

12. R&D COSTS

R&D costs charged to income were ¥3,948 million ($35,187 thousand) and ¥3,708 million for the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

13. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

(1) Group Policy for Financial Instruments
The Group manages its funds through low-risk financial assets and uses 
borrowings for financing.
 Derivatives are not used for speculative purposes, but to hedge the 
exchange rate risk of the trade receivables denominated in foreign 
currencies.

(2) Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments, and 
Risk Management for Financial Instruments
Trade receivables, such as trade notes and trade accounts, are exposed to 
customer credit risk.  The Group, pursuant to its credit management rule, 
manages customers’ credit by monitoring the collection terms and balances 
of trade receivables and by updating customer credit conditions annually.
 Receivables denominated in foreign currencies are exposed to the 
market risk of fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates.
 The Group, according to its securities management rule, invests only in 
high-rated bonds.  Thus, the Group believes that the held-to-maturity 
securities included in marketable and investment securities are exposed to 
little credit risk.

 Equity securities held for business-relation purposes, included in 
investment securities, are exposed to the risk of market fluctuations.  The 
Group regularly reviews balances of investment equity securities according 
to the financial condition of the issuers.
 Advances to unconsolidated subsidiaries are regularly monitored for 
changes in the credit condition of such affiliated companies.
 Most payment terms of payables, such as trade notes and trade 
accounts, are less than one year.  Although trade payables and borrowings 
are exposed to liquidity risk, the Group manages the liquidity risk by 
appropriately preparing monthly cash flow projections.
 The Group deals and manages derivative transactions in accordance 
with its derivatives management policy.  To minimize credit risk associated 
with the derivatives transactions, the Group carries out derivative 
transactions only with highly rated financial institutions.

(3) Fair Values of Financial Instruments
Fair values of financial instruments are based on quoted prices in active 
markets.  If a quoted price is not available, other rational valuation 
techniques are used instead. 

(b)  The carrying amount of financial instruments whose fair values cannot be reliably determined is as follows:

Investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market ¥ 3,369 ¥ 2,558 $ 30,025
201720162017

Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. 
Dollars
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(a) Fair value of financial instruments
Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. Dollars

March 31, 2017 Carrying
Amount Fair Value Unrealized Gain/

Loss
Carrying
Amount Fair Value Unrealized Gain/

Loss

Cash and cash equivalents ¥ 21,279 ¥ 21,279 ¥    ─ $ 189,654 $ 189,654  $       ─
Time deposits 1,219 1,219 ─ 10,863 10,863 ─

Receivables (net) 30,800 30,800 ─ 274,512 274,512 ─

Marketable and investment securities:

Held-to-maturity securities 10,803 10,817 14 96,281 96,410 129

Available-for-sale equity securities    23,121 23,121 ─ 206,078 206,078 ─

Investments in associated companies       479 855 376 4,266 7,623 3,357

Advances to unconsolidated subsidiaries     1,216 ─ ─ 10,839 ─ ─

Allowance for doubtful accounts     (         2) ─ ─    (         20) ─ ─

Advances to unconsolidated subsidiaries (net)     1,214 1,214 ─ 10,819 10,819 ─
Total ¥ 88,915 ¥ 89,305 ¥ 390 $ 792,473 $ 795,959 $ 3,486

Short-term borrowings ¥   1,800 ¥   1,800 ¥    ─ $   16,043 $   16,043 $       ─
Payables    21,047 21,047 ─ 187,583 187,583 ─

Total ¥ 22,847 ¥ 22,847 ¥    ─ $ 203,626 $ 203,626 $       ─

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2016 Carrying
Amount Fair Value Unrealized Gain/

Loss

Cash and cash equivalents ¥ 25,857 ¥ 25,857  ¥    ─

Receivables (net) 30,262 30,262 ─

Marketable and investment securities:

Held-to-maturity securities    12,799 12,830 31

Available-for-sale equity securities    16,281 16,281 ─

Investments in associated companies       529 618 89

Advances to unconsolidated subsidiaries     1,334 ─ ─

Allowance for doubtful accounts  (        66) ─ ─

Advances to unconsolidated subsidiaries (net)     1,268 1,268 ─

Total ¥ 86,996 ¥ 87,116 ¥ 120

Short-term borrowings ¥   1,800 ¥   1,800 ¥    ─
Payables 21,283 21,283 ─

Total ¥ 23,083 ¥ 23,083 ¥    ─

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Time Deposits, and Receivables
The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, time deposits, and receivables 
approximate fair value because of their short maturities. 

Marketable and Investment Securities
The fair values of marketable and investment securities are measured at the 
quoted market price of the stock exchange for the equity instruments, and at the 
quoted price obtained from the financial institution for certain debt instruments.  
Fair value information for the marketable and investment securities by 
classification is included in Note 4.

Investments in Associated Companies
The fair value of investments in an associated company is measured at the quoted 
market price of the stock exchange for the equity instruments.

Advances to Unconsolidated Subsidiaries
The fair values of advances to unconsolidated subsidiaries based on floating 
interest rates are determined by book values because their market value 
approximates book value.

Payables, Short-Term Borrowings
The carrying values of payables and short-term borrowings approximate fair 
value because of their short maturities.

11. SELLING, GENERAL, AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Selling, general, and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations for the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, consisted of 
the following:

Millions of Yen Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

2017 2016 2017
Freight charges ¥   2,358 ¥   2,398 $   21,018
Advertising 288 236 2,565
Employees’ salary and bonuses 4,341 4,360 38,691
Net periodic retirement benefit costs 228 214 2,032
Provision for bonuses 239 228 2,129
R&D expenses 1,077 939 9,601
Provision for product warranties 208 413 1,853
Depreciation and amortization 246 239 2,196
Commission 2,013 1,987 17,938
Others 3,763 3,910 33,537
Total ¥ 14,761 ¥ 14,924 $ 131,560

12. R&D COSTS

R&D costs charged to income were ¥3,948 million ($35,187 thousand) and ¥3,708 million for the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

13. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

(1) Group Policy for Financial Instruments
The Group manages its funds through low-risk financial assets and uses 
borrowings for financing.
 Derivatives are not used for speculative purposes, but to hedge the 
exchange rate risk of the trade receivables denominated in foreign 
currencies.

(2) Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments, and 
Risk Management for Financial Instruments
Trade receivables, such as trade notes and trade accounts, are exposed to 
customer credit risk.  The Group, pursuant to its credit management rule, 
manages customers’ credit by monitoring the collection terms and balances 
of trade receivables and by updating customer credit conditions annually.
 Receivables denominated in foreign currencies are exposed to the 
market risk of fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates.
 The Group, according to its securities management rule, invests only in 
high-rated bonds.  Thus, the Group believes that the held-to-maturity 
securities included in marketable and investment securities are exposed to 
little credit risk.

 Equity securities held for business-relation purposes, included in 
investment securities, are exposed to the risk of market fluctuations.  The 
Group regularly reviews balances of investment equity securities according 
to the financial condition of the issuers.
 Advances to unconsolidated subsidiaries are regularly monitored for 
changes in the credit condition of such affiliated companies.
 Most payment terms of payables, such as trade notes and trade 
accounts, are less than one year.  Although trade payables and borrowings 
are exposed to liquidity risk, the Group manages the liquidity risk by 
appropriately preparing monthly cash flow projections.
 The Group deals and manages derivative transactions in accordance 
with its derivatives management policy.  To minimize credit risk associated 
with the derivatives transactions, the Group carries out derivative 
transactions only with highly rated financial institutions.

(3) Fair Values of Financial Instruments
Fair values of financial instruments are based on quoted prices in active 
markets.  If a quoted price is not available, other rational valuation 
techniques are used instead. 

(b)  The carrying amount of financial instruments whose fair values cannot be reliably determined is as follows:

Investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market ¥ 3,369 ¥ 2,558 $ 30,025
201720162017

Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. 
Dollars
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EPS

Diluted net income per share is not disclosed because no dilutive securities were outstanding and basic EPS was at a loss position for the year ended March 31, 2016, 
and no dilutive securities were outstanding for the year ended March 31, 2017.

16. NET INCOME (LOSS) PER SHARE

U.S. DollarsYenThousands of SharesMillions of Yen

Weighted-Average 
SharesNet Income

Basic earnings per share (“EPS”)
Net income available to common shareholders ¥ 2,624  69,639 ¥ 37.68 $ 0.34

Year Ended March 31, 2017:

YenThousands of SharesMillions of Yen

EPSWeighted-Average 
SharesNet Income (Loss)

Basic earnings per share (“EPS”)
Net loss available to common shareholders ¥ (  591) 69,660 ¥ (8.49)

Year Ended March 31, 2016:

Millions
of Yen

Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

Year-end cash dividends, ¥11 ($0.10) per share ¥ 766 $ 6,827

17. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Appropriation of Retained Earnings
The Company’s Board of Directors approved a resolution, which is subject to 
approval at the general meeting of shareholders on June 29, 2017, outlining a 
plan to pay cash dividends.
 The resolution of cash dividends is as follows:

Under ASBJ Statement No. 17, “Accounting Standard for Segment Information 
Disclosures,” and ASBJ Guidance No. 20, “Guidance on Accounting Standard 
for Segment Information Disclosures,” an entity is required to report financial 
and descriptive information about its reportable segments.  Reportable 
segments are operating segments or aggregations of operating segments that 
meet specified criteria.  Operating segments are components of an entity about 

(1)  Description of Reportable Segments 
The Group’s main operations are manufacturing and distributing capacitors 
and related products.  The Group consists of business segments based on 
sales offices and manufacturing bases.  Since the factors of each sales office 
and manufacturing base, such as the economic characteristics, the contents 

which separate financial information is available, and such information is 
evaluated regularly by the chief operating decisionmaker in deciding how to 
allocate resources and in assessing performance.  Generally, segment 
information is required to be reported on the same basis as is used internally 
for evaluating operating segment performance and deciding how to allocate 
resources to operating segments.

of the products and services, and the manufacturing or marketing processes 
of products, are similar, the Group’s reportable segment is a single segment, 
namely “manufacturing and distributing capacitors and related products.”  
Therefore, the Group has omitted segment information.

18. SEGMENT INFORMATION 

(4) Maturity Analysis for Financial Assets and Securities with Contractual Maturities

Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. Dollars

March 31, 2017 
Due in 

One Year 
or Less

Due after 
One Year 
through 

Five Years

Due after 
Five Years 

through 
10 Years

Due after 
10 Years

Due in 
One Year 
or Less

Due after 
One Year 
through 

Five Years

Due after 
Five Years 

through 
10 Years

Due after 
10 Years

Cash and cash equivalents ¥ 21,279     ¥ ─        ¥ ─        ¥ ─ $ 189,654   $ ─     $ ─     $ ─
Time deposits 1,219  ─  ─  ─ 10,863  ─  ─  ─
Receivables (net) 30,800  ─  ─  ─ 274,512  ─  ─  ─
Marketable and investment securities:

Held-to-maturity securities 3,011 7,791  ─  ─ 26,839 69,442  ─  ─
Negotiable certificates of deposit 2,020  ─  ─  ─ 18,000  ─  ─  ─

Advances to unconsolidated subsidiaries  ─ 611 310 295  ─ 5,447 2,765 2,627
Total ¥ 58,329 ¥ 8,402 ¥ 310 ¥ 295 $ 519,868 $ 74,889 $ 2,765 $ 2,627

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2016
Due in 

One Year 
or Less

Due after 
One Year 
through 

Five Years

Due after 
Five Years 

through 
10 Years

Due after 
10 Years

Cash and cash equivalents ¥ 25,857     ¥ ─        ¥ ─        ¥ ─
Receivables (net) 30,262  ─  ─  ─
Marketable and investment securities:

Held-to-maturity securities 5,516 7,283  ─  ─
Negotiable certificates of deposit 1,578  ─  ─  ─

Advances to unconsolidated subsidiaries  ─ 648 340 346
Total ¥ 63,213 ¥ 7,931 ¥ 340 ¥ 346

Please see Note 7 for annual maturities of long-term debt.

14. DERIVATIVES

15. COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

As of March 31, 2017 and 2016, there were no outstanding contract amounts of derivatives.

The components of other comprehensive income for the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, were as follows:

Millions of Yen Thousands of  
U.S. Dollars

2017 2016 2017

Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale securities:
Gains arising during the year ¥ 4,577 ¥(3,461) $ 40,793  

Reclassification adjustments to profit or loss 27 ─ 241
Amount before income tax effect 4,604 (3,461) 41,034
Income tax effect (1,384) 1,208 (12,338)

Total ¥(3,220) ¥(2,253) $ 28,696
Foreign currency translation adjustments:

Adjustments arising during the year ¥(1,350) ¥(1,804) $(12,032)
Reclassification adjustments to profit or loss (720) ─ (6,417)

Total ¥(2,070) ¥(1,804) $(18,439)
Share of other comprehensive income in associate:

Gains arising during the year ¥(   257) ¥(     15) $(  2,291)
Total ¥(   257) ¥(     15) $(  2,291)
Total other comprehensive income (loss) ¥    893 ¥(4,072) $   7,966

(2)  Information about Products and Services

Millions of Yen

2017

Capacitors for 
Electronics

Capacitors for 
Electric Apparatus 

and Power 
Utilities, and 

Capacitor Applied 
Systems

Circuit Products Other Total

Sales to external customers ¥   65,662 ¥   11,435 ¥   22,545 ¥    760 ¥ 100,402

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

2017

Capacitors for 
Electronics

Capacitors for 
Electric Apparatus 

and Power 
Utilities, and 

Capacitor Applied 
Systems

Circuit Products Other Total

Sales to external customers $ 585,224 $ 101,914 $ 200,929 $ 6,778 $ 894,845 

Millions of Yen

2016

Capacitors for 
Electronics

Capacitors for 
Electric Apparatus 

and Power 
Utilities, and 

Capacitor Applied 
Systems

Circuit Products Other Total

Sales to external customers ¥   69,670 ¥   11,853 ¥   27,433 ¥    860 ¥ 109,816
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EPS

Diluted net income per share is not disclosed because no dilutive securities were outstanding and basic EPS was at a loss position for the year ended March 31, 2016, 
and no dilutive securities were outstanding for the year ended March 31, 2017.

16. NET INCOME (LOSS) PER SHARE

U.S. DollarsYenThousands of SharesMillions of Yen

Weighted-Average 
SharesNet Income

Basic earnings per share (“EPS”)
Net income available to common shareholders ¥ 2,624  69,639 ¥ 37.68 $ 0.34

Year Ended March 31, 2017:

YenThousands of SharesMillions of Yen

EPSWeighted-Average 
SharesNet Income (Loss)

Basic earnings per share (“EPS”)
Net loss available to common shareholders ¥ (  591) 69,660 ¥ (8.49)

Year Ended March 31, 2016:

Millions
of Yen

Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

Year-end cash dividends, ¥11 ($0.10) per share ¥ 766 $ 6,827

17. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Appropriation of Retained Earnings
The Company’s Board of Directors approved a resolution, which is subject to 
approval at the general meeting of shareholders on June 29, 2017, outlining a 
plan to pay cash dividends.
 The resolution of cash dividends is as follows:

Under ASBJ Statement No. 17, “Accounting Standard for Segment Information 
Disclosures,” and ASBJ Guidance No. 20, “Guidance on Accounting Standard 
for Segment Information Disclosures,” an entity is required to report financial 
and descriptive information about its reportable segments.  Reportable 
segments are operating segments or aggregations of operating segments that 
meet specified criteria.  Operating segments are components of an entity about 

(1)  Description of Reportable Segments 
The Group’s main operations are manufacturing and distributing capacitors 
and related products.  The Group consists of business segments based on 
sales offices and manufacturing bases.  Since the factors of each sales office 
and manufacturing base, such as the economic characteristics, the contents 

which separate financial information is available, and such information is 
evaluated regularly by the chief operating decisionmaker in deciding how to 
allocate resources and in assessing performance.  Generally, segment 
information is required to be reported on the same basis as is used internally 
for evaluating operating segment performance and deciding how to allocate 
resources to operating segments.

of the products and services, and the manufacturing or marketing processes 
of products, are similar, the Group’s reportable segment is a single segment, 
namely “manufacturing and distributing capacitors and related products.”  
Therefore, the Group has omitted segment information.

18. SEGMENT INFORMATION 

(4) Maturity Analysis for Financial Assets and Securities with Contractual Maturities

Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. Dollars

March 31, 2017 
Due in 

One Year 
or Less

Due after 
One Year 
through 

Five Years

Due after 
Five Years 

through 
10 Years

Due after 
10 Years

Due in 
One Year 
or Less

Due after 
One Year 
through 

Five Years

Due after 
Five Years 

through 
10 Years

Due after 
10 Years

Cash and cash equivalents ¥ 21,279     ¥ ─        ¥ ─        ¥ ─ $ 189,654   $ ─     $ ─     $ ─
Time deposits 1,219  ─  ─  ─ 10,863  ─  ─  ─
Receivables (net) 30,800  ─  ─  ─ 274,512  ─  ─  ─
Marketable and investment securities:

Held-to-maturity securities 3,011 7,791  ─  ─ 26,839 69,442  ─  ─
Negotiable certificates of deposit 2,020  ─  ─  ─ 18,000  ─  ─  ─

Advances to unconsolidated subsidiaries  ─ 611 310 295  ─ 5,447 2,765 2,627
Total ¥ 58,329 ¥ 8,402 ¥ 310 ¥ 295 $ 519,868 $ 74,889 $ 2,765 $ 2,627

Millions of Yen

March 31, 2016
Due in 

One Year 
or Less

Due after 
One Year 
through 

Five Years

Due after 
Five Years 

through 
10 Years

Due after 
10 Years

Cash and cash equivalents ¥ 25,857     ¥ ─        ¥ ─        ¥ ─
Receivables (net) 30,262  ─  ─  ─
Marketable and investment securities:

Held-to-maturity securities 5,516 7,283  ─  ─
Negotiable certificates of deposit 1,578  ─  ─  ─

Advances to unconsolidated subsidiaries  ─ 648 340 346
Total ¥ 63,213 ¥ 7,931 ¥ 340 ¥ 346

Please see Note 7 for annual maturities of long-term debt.

14. DERIVATIVES

15. COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

As of March 31, 2017 and 2016, there were no outstanding contract amounts of derivatives.

The components of other comprehensive income for the years ended March 31, 2017 and 2016, were as follows:

Millions of Yen Thousands of  
U.S. Dollars

2017 2016 2017

Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale securities:
Gains arising during the year ¥ 4,577 ¥(3,461) $ 40,793  

Reclassification adjustments to profit or loss 27 ─ 241
Amount before income tax effect 4,604 (3,461) 41,034
Income tax effect (1,384) 1,208 (12,338)

Total ¥(3,220) ¥(2,253) $ 28,696
Foreign currency translation adjustments:

Adjustments arising during the year ¥(1,350) ¥(1,804) $(12,032)
Reclassification adjustments to profit or loss (720) ─ (6,417)

Total ¥(2,070) ¥(1,804) $(18,439)
Share of other comprehensive income in associate:

Gains arising during the year ¥(   257) ¥(     15) $(  2,291)
Total ¥(   257) ¥(     15) $(  2,291)
Total other comprehensive income (loss) ¥    893 ¥(4,072) $   7,966

(2)  Information about Products and Services

Millions of Yen

2017

Capacitors for 
Electronics

Capacitors for 
Electric Apparatus 

and Power 
Utilities, and 

Capacitor Applied 
Systems

Circuit Products Other Total

Sales to external customers ¥   65,662 ¥   11,435 ¥   22,545 ¥    760 ¥ 100,402

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

2017

Capacitors for 
Electronics

Capacitors for 
Electric Apparatus 

and Power 
Utilities, and 

Capacitor Applied 
Systems

Circuit Products Other Total

Sales to external customers $ 585,224 $ 101,914 $ 200,929 $ 6,778 $ 894,845 

Millions of Yen

2016

Capacitors for 
Electronics

Capacitors for 
Electric Apparatus 

and Power 
Utilities, and 

Capacitor Applied 
Systems

Circuit Products Other Total

Sales to external customers ¥   69,670 ¥   11,853 ¥   27,433 ¥    860 ¥ 109,816
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(3) Information by Geographical Area
(a) Sales

  ¥   42,780 ¥   6,896 ¥   43,119 ¥   7,607 ¥ 100,402

2017

Millions of Yen

AsiaUSA TotalJapan Other

  ¥   46,273 ¥   7,330 ¥   47,719 ¥   8,494 ¥ 109,816

2016

Millions of Yen

AsiaUSA TotalJapan Other

  $ 381,279 $ 61,459 $ 384,307 $ 67,800 $ 894,845

2017

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

AsiaUSA TotalJapan Other

(b) Property, plant, and equipment

  ¥   19,304 ¥    375 ¥   5,584 ¥   34 ¥   25,297

2017

Millions of Yen

AsiaUSA TotalJapan Other

  ¥   16,391 ¥    396 ¥   6,667 ¥   12 ¥   23,466

2016

Millions of Yen

AsiaUSA Total

Total

Japan Other

  $ 172,052 $ 3,340 $ 49,772 $ 299 $ 225,463

2017

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

AsiaUSAJapan Other

The Group is being investigated by authorities of the United States, Europe, 
etc., regarding the sale of capacitors.  On November 6, 2015, the Company and 
its European subsidiary received a Statement of Objections from the European 
Commission on suspicion of violating European Union Competition law 
regarding the sale of aluminum electrolytic capacitors and tantalum electrolytic 
capacitors in Europe.  The Group continues to cooperate with the authorities in 
their investigations.
 Moreover, class action lawsuits were filed against the Company and its 
subsidiary in the U.S. and Canada over the alleged violation of applicable laws, 
and the Company continues to deal with the lawsuits appropriately.
 These procedures are ongoing; therefore, the final conclusion might have 
consequences on our business results.

 In June 2014, the Company was investigated by the Japan Fair Trade 
Commission (the “Commission”) on suspicion of having violated the antitrust 
law in trading of capacitors.  On March 29, 2016, the Company received from 
the Commission a cease-and-desist order and an order to pay a surcharge.  
 In addition, in December 2015, NICHICON (HONG KONG) LTD., 
received a notice of reprimand from the Taiwan Free Trade Commission on 
violation of Taiwan’s Fair Trade Act regarding the sale of aluminum 
electrolytic capacitors and tantalum electrolytic capacitors in Taiwan.  
 Based upon an order to pay a surcharge from the Japan Fair Trade 
Commission and a notice of reprimand from the Taiwan Free Trade 
Commission, the Group recognized losses relating to antitrust law as other 
expense as of March 31, 2016.

19. INVESTIGATION BY COMPETITION AUTHORITIES
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I n t e g r a t e d  R e p o r t  2 0 1 7 I n t e g r a t e d  R e p o r t  2 0 1 7



(3) Information by Geographical Area
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AsiaUSA TotalJapan Other

(b) Property, plant, and equipment

  ¥   19,304 ¥    375 ¥   5,584 ¥   34 ¥   25,297

2017

Millions of Yen

AsiaUSA TotalJapan Other

  ¥   16,391 ¥    396 ¥   6,667 ¥   12 ¥   23,466

2016

Millions of Yen

AsiaUSA Total

Total

Japan Other

  $ 172,052 $ 3,340 $ 49,772 $ 299 $ 225,463

2017

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

AsiaUSAJapan Other

The Group is being investigated by authorities of the United States, Europe, 
etc., regarding the sale of capacitors.  On November 6, 2015, the Company and 
its European subsidiary received a Statement of Objections from the European 
Commission on suspicion of violating European Union Competition law 
regarding the sale of aluminum electrolytic capacitors and tantalum electrolytic 
capacitors in Europe.  The Group continues to cooperate with the authorities in 
their investigations.
 Moreover, class action lawsuits were filed against the Company and its 
subsidiary in the U.S. and Canada over the alleged violation of applicable laws, 
and the Company continues to deal with the lawsuits appropriately.
 These procedures are ongoing; therefore, the final conclusion might have 
consequences on our business results.

 In June 2014, the Company was investigated by the Japan Fair Trade 
Commission (the “Commission”) on suspicion of having violated the antitrust 
law in trading of capacitors.  On March 29, 2016, the Company received from 
the Commission a cease-and-desist order and an order to pay a surcharge.  
 In addition, in December 2015, NICHICON (HONG KONG) LTD., 
received a notice of reprimand from the Taiwan Free Trade Commission on 
violation of Taiwan’s Fair Trade Act regarding the sale of aluminum 
electrolytic capacitors and tantalum electrolytic capacitors in Taiwan.  
 Based upon an order to pay a surcharge from the Japan Fair Trade 
Commission and a notice of reprimand from the Taiwan Free Trade 
Commission, the Group recognized losses relating to antitrust law as other 
expense as of March 31, 2016.

19. INVESTIGATION BY COMPETITION AUTHORITIES
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Consolidated Subsidiaries    As of July 1, 2017

NICHICON HI-TECH FOIL CORPORATION
8224-1, Yashiro, Ohmachi-shi, Nagano Pref., 398-0003 Japan
TEL.81-261-21-3200 FAX.81-261-21-3206
Capital stock: 80 million yen
Product line: Electrode foil for aluminum electrolytic capacitors
ISO 9001 & ISO 14001 certified

NICHICON (KUSATSU) CORPORATION
3-1, Yagura 2-chome, Kusatsu-shi, Shiga Pref., 525-0053 Japan
TEL.81-77-563-1181 FAX.81-77-563-1208
Capital stock: 80 million yen
Product line: Capacitors for electric apparatus and power utilities, plastic film 
capacitors, and capacitor applied systems and equipment
ISO 9001 & ISO 14001 certified

NICHICON (KAMEOKA) CORPORATION
15-1, 2-chome, Kitakose-cho, Kameoka-shi, Kyoto Pref., 621-0811 Japan
TEL.81-771-22-5541 FAX.81-771-29-2010
Capital stock: 80 million yen
Product line: Function modules, V2H systems, positive thermistors, EV quick 
chargers, and various types of power supplies
ISO 9001 & ISO 14001 certified

NICHICON (OHNO) CORPORATION
1-11-2 Shimoyoro, Ohno-shi, Fukui Pref., 912-0095 Japan
TEL.81-779-66-0333 FAX.81-779-66-0312
Capital stock: 80 million yen
Product line: Aluminum electrolytic capacitors(chip type, lead type), 
conductive polymer aluminum solid electrolytic capacitors, and electric double 
layer capacitors
ISO 9001, ISO/TS 16949 & ISO 14001 certified

NICHICON (IWATE) CORPORATION
8-17-1, Kubo, Iwate-machi Iwate-gun, Iwate Pref., 028-4305 Japan
TEL.81-195-62-5311 FAX.81-195-62-3400
Capital stock: 100 million yen
Product line: Aluminum electrolytic capacitors (chip type) and conductive 
polymer hybrid aluminum electrolytic capacitors
ISO 9001, ISO/TS 16949 & ISO 14001 certified

NICHICON (WAKASA) CORPORATION
35-1-1 Tada, Obama-shi, Fukui Pref., 917-0026 Japan
TEL.81-770-56-2111 FAX.81-770-56-2116
Capital stock: 84 million yen
Product line: Various types of power supplies and household energy storage 
systems
ISO 9001 & ISO 14001 certified

TORISHIMA ELECTRIC WORKS LTD.
3-1, Yagura 2-chome, Kusatsu-shi, Shiga Pref., 525-0053 Japan
TEL.81-77-562-0891 FAX.81-77-562-0809
Capital stock: 30 million yen
Product and Business line: Manufacture and sales of various kinds of power 
transformers and reactors
ISO 9001 certified

NIPPON LINIAX CO., LTD.
3-2, Sugahara-cho, Kita-ku, Osaka, 530-0046 Japan
TEL.81-6-6362-6470 FAX.81-6-6362-6473
Capital stock: 15 million yen
Product and Business line: Manufacture and sales of pressure sensors and 
various kinds of instruments
ISO 9001 certified

YUTAKA ELECTRIC MFG. CO., LTD.
14-9, Nihonbashi Kabutocho, Chuo-ku, Tokyo, 103-0026 Japan
TEL.81-3-3666-7971 FAX.81-3-3666-7977
Capital stock: 330 million yen
Product and Business line: Manufacture and sales of power supply equipment
ISO 9001 & ISO 14001 certified

NICHICON (AMERICA) CORP.
927 East State Parkway, Schaumburg, Illinois 60173, U.S.A.
TEL.1-847-843-7500 FAX.1-847-843-2798
Capital stock: 3 million US$
Business line: Sales of company’s product

NICHICON (AUSTRIA) GmbH
Businesspark Marximum, Modecenterstrasse 17, Unit 2-7-A, 1110 Vienna, Austria
TEL.43-1-706-7932 FAX.43-1-706-7933
Capital stock: 1 million EUR
Business line: Sales of company’s product

NICHICON (HONG KONG) LTD.
Unit 308, Harbour Centre Tower 1, 1 Hok Cheung Street, Hunghom, Kowloon, 
Hong Kong
TEL.852-2363-4331 FAX.852-2764-1867
Capital stock: 5 million HK$
Business line: Sales of company’s product

NICHICON (SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.
20 Jalan Afifi, #06-08, Certis CISCO Centre II, Singapore 409179
TEL.65-6481-5641 FAX.65-6481-6485
Capital stock: 8 million SP$
Business line: Sales of company’s product

NICHICON (TAIWAN) CO., LTD.
23F, No.68, Sec.5, Zhongxiao East. Road, Xinyi District, Taipei City 110, Taiwan, 
R.O.C.
TEL.886-2-2722-2100 FAX.886-2-2722-2016
Capital stock: 30 million NT$
Business line: Sales of company’s product

NICHICON (THAILAND) CO., LTD.
1 Empire Tower, 15th Floor, Unit 1506, River Wing West, South Sathorn Road, 
Yannawa, Sathorn, Bangkok 10120 Thailand
TEL.66-2-670-0150 FAX.66-2-670-0153
Capital stock: 20 million BAHT
Business line: Sales of company’s product

NICHICON ELECTRONICS TRADING (SHANGHAI) CO., LTD.
Room 1206, Aetna Tower, 107 Zunyi Road, Shanghai, China 200051
TEL.86-21-6237-5538 FAX.86-21-6237-5537
Capital stock: 0.5 million US$
Business line: Sales of company’s product

NICHICON ELECTRONICS TRADING (SHENZHEN) CO., LTD.
Room A, 16/F, KK100 No.5016, Shen Nan Road East, Luo Hu District, Shenzhen, 
China 518001
TEL.86-755-2294-1800 FAX.86-755-8294-5716
Capital stock: 0.3 million US$
Business line: Service business regarding sales of company's products

NICHICON (MALAYSIA) SDN. BHD.
No.4 Jalan P/10, Kawasan Perusahaan Bangi, 43650 Bandar Baru Bangi, Selangor 
Darul Ehsan, Malaysia
TEL.60-3-8925-0678 FAX.60-3-8925-0858
Capital stock: 63 million M$
Product and Business line: Manufacture and sales of aluminum electrolytic 
capacitors
ISO 9001, ISO/TS 16949 & ISO 14001 certified

NICHICON ELECTRONICS (WUXI) CO., LTD.
Block 51-B, Wuxi National High & New Technology Industrial Development Zone, 
Wuxi, Jiangsu, China 214028
TEL.86-510-8521-8222 FAX.86-510-8522-1170
Capital stock: 75 million US$
Product and Business line: Manufacture and sales of aluminum electrolytic 
capacitors and various types of power supplies
ISO 9001, ISO/TS 16949 & ISO 14001 certified

WUXI NICHICON ELECTRONICS R&D CENTER CO., LTD.
Block 51-B, Wuxi National High & New Technology Industrial Development Zone, 
Wuxi, Jiangsu, China 214028
TEL.86-510-8521-8222 FAX.86-510-8522-1170
Capital stock: 5 million RMB
Business line: The design and development of various types of power supplies
ISO 9001 certified (Scope of certification: The design and development of switching 
power supplies)

NICHICON ELECTRONICS (SUQIAN) CO., LTD.
NO.18, Yangmingshan Avenue, Suzhou Suqian Industrial Park,Suqian, China 223800
TEL.86-527-8097-8855 FAX.86-527-8286-8966
Capital stock: 39 million US$
Product and Business line: Manufacture and sales of conductive polymer aluminum solid 
electrolytic capacitors
ISO 9001 certified

Domestic Overseas
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Corporate Data    As of June 29, 2017 Investor Information

Ippei Takeda

Shigeo Yoshida

Hitoshi Chikano

Akihiro Yano

Kazumi Matsushige (External Director)

Yasuhisa Katsuta (External Director)

Shigenobu Aikyo (External Director)

Sachihiko Araki

Atsushi Abe

Hideki Onishi (External)

Masahiro Morise (External)

Chairman & CEO

President & COO

Director

Standing Corporate Auditor

Corporate Auditor

Board of Directors

August 1, 1950

14,286 million yen (As of March 31, 2017)

5,183 (Consolidated) (As of March 31, 2017)

Karasumadori Oike-agaru, Nakagyo-ku, Kyoto,
604-0845 Japan
TEL.81-75-231-8461 FAX.81-75-256-4158

Date of 
Establishment

Capital Stock

Number of 
Employees

Head Office

Offices

14-9, Nihonbashi Kabutocho, Chuo-ku,
Tokyo, 103-0026 Japan
TEL.81-3-3666-7811 FAX. 81-3-3666-7831

18F Nishiki-Park Bldg. 4-3, Nishiki 2-chome, 
Naka-ku, Nagoya, 460-0003 Japan
TEL.81-52-223-5581 FAX.81-52-220-1839

Karasumadori Oike-agaru, Nakagyo-ku, 
Kyoto, 604-0845 Japan
TEL.81-75-241-5370 FAX.81-75-231-8467

Iwate, Sendai, Koriyama, Kitakantou, 
Okayama, Fukuoka

14-9, Nihonbashi Kabutocho, Chuo-ku, 
Tokyo, 103-0026 Japan
TEL.81-3-3666-7861 FAX. 81-3-3666-7881
Development & design for various types of 
power supplies

TOKYO SALES OFFICE

NAGOYA SALES OFFICE

WEST JAPAN SALES 
OFFICE

Sales Branches

POWER SUPPLY CENTER

137,000,000 shares

69,639,053 shares 
(excluding 8,360,947 shares of treasury stock)

7,439

First section, Tokyo Stock Exchange

Authorized number of 
shares

Issued number of shares

Number of shareholders

Listings

Major Stockholders As of March 31, 2017

Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (Trust account)

Bank of Kyoto, Ltd.

NICHICON suppliers’ stock ownership program

Mizuho Corporate Bank, Ltd.

Nippon Life Insurance Company

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd.

The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd. (Trust account)

DFA INTL SMALL CAP VALUE PORTFOLIO

Nichicon employees’ stock ownership program

Notes : 1) The Company holds 8,360 thousand shares of its own stock, but is excluded from the 
above list of major shareholders.

2) The shareholding ratio is calculated by subtracting treasury stock.
3) Shown with less than 1,000 shares truncated.
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Karasumadori Oike-agaru, Nakagyo-ku, Kyoto
604-0845 Japan

Inquiries: Corporate Communications Division
TEL. 81-75-231-8461   FAX. 81-75-256-4158

http://www.nichicon.co.jp/english

Out of consideration for protecting the global environment, this report is printed 
on FSCR-certi�ed paper using vegetable ink and a waterless printing method that 
does not employ harmful substances.




